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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in this document constitute “forward looking statements”.

These statements relate to the IGas Group’s, or following Completion, to the Enlarged Group’s future
prospects, developments and business strategies.

In some cases, these forward looking statements can be identified by the use of forward looking
terminology, including the terms “believes,” “estimates,” “plans,” “prepares,” “anticipates,” “expects,”
“intends,” “may,” “will,” or “should” or their negatives or other variations or comparable terminology.
These statements are primarily contained in Parts 1 to 4 and 7-9 of this document.

Such forward looking statements are based on current expectations and on numerous assumptions
regarding the IGas Group’s, or following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s present and future
business strategies and the environment in which the IGas Group, or following Completion, the
Enlarged Group will operate in the future and are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by those statements. Certain risks
and uncertainties for the IGas Group, or following Completion, the Enlarged Group are specifically
described in the section of this document headed “Risk Factors”. If one or more of these risk factors or
uncertainties materialises or if any one or more of the assumptions prove incorrect, the IGas Group’s,
or following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s actual results may vary very materially from those
expected, estimated or projected. Given these risks and uncertainties, potential investors should not
place any reliance on forward looking statements.

The forward looking statements speak only at the date of this document. Neither the Directors nor the
Company undertake any obligation to update such statements or the Risk Factors referred to above
other than as required by law or by the rules of any other relevant competent regulatory authority,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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ADMISSION STATISTICS

Number of Ordinary Shares in issue prior to Admission 160,323,721

Number of Ordinary Shares in issue following Admission 160,323,721

Number of Ordinary Shares in issue following the Acquisition 162,204,909

EXPECTED TIMETABLE OF PRINCIPAL EVENTS

Despatch of this document 22 November 2011

Lifting of suspension on trading of Ordinary Shares 23 November 2011

Latest time and date for receipt of Forms of Proxy 10:45 a.m. on 7 December 2011

IGas General Meeting 10.45 a.m. on 9 December 2011

Admission effective and dealings recommence in the Ordinary
Shares on AIM 12 December 2011

Completion of the Acquisition is expected to occur within 7 days of
Admission and the Company will make a further announcement
when the date is fixed.

Notes:

(1) Each of the times and dates mentioned in the above timetable and mentioned throughout this
document may be adjusted by the Company in which event details of the new dates will be
notified through a Regulatory Information Service and, where appropriate, to shareholders.

(2) References to times in this document are to London time.
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RISK FACTORS

An investment in the Ordinary Shares may not be suitable for all recipients of this document. Investors
are therefore strongly recommended to consult an investment adviser under the FSMA, who
specialises in advising on investments of this nature before making their decision to invest.

You should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described below, in addition to the other
information in this document. The risks and uncertainties described below represent all of those known
to the Directors as at the date of this document which the Directors consider to be material. However,
these risks and uncertainties are not the only ones facing the IGas Group, or following Completion the
Enlarged Group; additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to the Directors, or that the
Directors currently consider to be immaterial, could also impair the business of the IGas Group, or
following Completion the Enlarged Group. If any or a combination of these risks actually occurs, the
business, financial condition and operating results of the IGas Group, or following Completion the
Enlarged Group, could be adversely affected. In such case, the market price of the Ordinary Shares
could decline and you may lose all or part of your investment.

No statement contained in the risks and uncertainties described below should be taken as qualifying
the statement as to the sufficiency of working capital set out in paragraph 8 of Part 9 of this document.

1. Risk factors relating to IGas, Star and the Enlarged Group

Reserves replacement

Future hydrocarbon production will depend on IGas’ or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s
access to new reserves through exploration, negotiations with governments and other owners of
known reserves, and acquisitions. Failures in exploration or in identifying and finalising transactions to
access potential reserves could slow IGas’ or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s oil and gas
production growth and replacement of reserves. This, in turn, could have an adverse affect on the
turnover and profits of IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group.

In addition, the results of appraisal of discoveries are uncertain and may involve unprofitable efforts,
not only from dry wells, but also from wells that are productive but uneconomic to develop. Appraisal
and development activities may be subject to delays in obtaining governmental approvals or consents,
shut-ins of connected wells, insufficient storage or transportation capacity or other geological and
mechanical conditions all of which may variously increase IGas’ or, following Completion, the Enlarged
Group’s costs of operations.

Exploration and appraisal activities are capital intensive and inherently uncertain in their outcome.
There is therefore a risk that IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group will undertake
exploration activities and incur significant costs in so doing with no assurance that such expenditure
will result in the discovery of hydrocarbons, whether or not in commercially viable quantities. If
exploration and/or appraisal activities prove unsuccessful over a prolonged period of time, IGas or,
following Completion, the Enlarged Group may not, after 12 months from the date of this document,
have sufficient working capital to continue to meet their obligations and their ability to obtain additional
financing necessary to continue operations may also be adversely affected.

Producing natural gas reservoirs are typically characterised by declining production rates that vary
depending upon reservoir characteristics and other factors. Additionally the Coal Bed Methane (“CBM”)
proportion of IGas’s resources generally declines at a shallow rate after initial increases in production
which result as a consequence of the dewatering process. The rate of decline from IGas’ or, following
completion, the Enlarged Group’s existing wells may change in a manner different than what it has
estimated. Thus IGas’ or, following completion, the Enlarged Group’s future hydrocarbon resources
and production and, therefore, its cash flow and income are highly dependent on its success in
efficiently developing and exploiting its current resources and economically finding or acquiring
additional recoverable reserves. IGas, or following Completion, the Enlarged Group may not be able to
develop, find, or acquire additional reserves to replace its current and future production at acceptable
costs.

Estimation of reserves, resources and production profiles

The estimation of oil and gas reserves, and their anticipated production profiles involves subjective
judgments and determinations based on available geological, technical, contractual and economic
information. They are not exact determinations. In addition, these judgments may change based on
new information from production or drilling activities or changes in economic factors, as well as from
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developments such as acquisitions and disposals, new discoveries and extensions of existing fields
and the application of improved recovery techniques. Published reserve estimates are also subject to
correction for errors in the application of published rules and guidance.

The reserves, resources and production profile data contained in this document are estimates only and
should not be construed as representing exact quantities. They are based on production data, prices,
costs, ownership, geophysical, geological and engineering data, and other information assembled by
IGas or Star (as applicable). The estimates may prove to be incorrect and potential investors should
not place reliance on the forward-looking statements contained in this document concerning IGas’ or
Star’s reserves and resources or production levels.

If the assumptions upon which the estimates of IGas’ or Star’s hydrocarbon reserves, resources or
production profiles have been based prove to be incorrect, IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged
Group may be unable to recover and produce the estimated levels, quantity or quality of hydrocarbons
set out in this document and IGas’ or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s business, prospects,
financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

Competitive business environment

IGas operates or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group will operate in a very challenging business
environment and competition for access to exploration acreage, gas markets, oil services and rigs,
technology and processes, and human resources is intense. Competitors include companies with, in
many cases, greater financial resources, local contacts, staff and facilities than those of IGas or,
following Completion, the Enlarged Group. Competition for exploration and production licences as well
as other regional investment or acquisition opportunities may increase in the future. This may lead to
increased costs in the carrying on of IGas’ or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s activities
and reduced available growth opportunities. Any failure by IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged
Group to compete effectively could adversely affect IGas’ or, following Completion, the Enlarged
Group’s operating results and financial condition.

Third party contractors and providers of capital equipment

In particular, IGas has or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group will have an interest in contracts
or leases, services and capital equipment from third-party providers. Such equipment and services can
be scarce and may not be readily available at the times and places required. In addition, the costs of
third-party services and equipment have increased significantly over recent years and may continue to
rise. Scarcity of equipment and services and increased prices may, in particular, result from any
significant increase in regional exploration and development activities which in turn may be the
consequence of increased or continued high prices for oil or gas. The scarcity of such equipment and
services, as well as their potentially high costs, could delay, restrict or lower the profitability and
viability of IGas’ or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s projects and therefore have a material
adverse affect on IGas’ or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s business.

Production

The delivery of IGas’ production plans depends or, following Completion, the delivery of the Enlarged
Group’s production plans will depend on the successful continuation of existing field production
operations and the development of key projects. Both of these involve risks normally incidental to such
activities including blowouts, oil spills, explosions, fires, equipment damage or failure, natural disasters,
geological uncertainties, unusual or unexpected rock formations, abnormal pressures, seismic events,
availability of technology and engineering capacity, availability of skilled resources, maintaining project
schedules and managing costs, as well as technical, fiscal, regulatory, political and other conditions.
Such potential obstacles may impair IGas’ or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s continuation
of existing field production and delivery of key projects and, in turn, IGas’ or, following Completion, the
Enlarged Group’s operational performance and financial position (including the financial impact from
failure to fulfil contractual commitments related to project delivery).

IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group may face interruptions or delays in the availability of
infrastructure, including pipelines and storage tanks, on which exploration and production activities are
dependent. The production performance of the reservoirs and wells may also be different to that
forecast due to normal geological or mechanical uncertainties. Such interruptions, delays or
performance differences could result in disruptions or changes to IGas’ or, following Completion, the
Enlarged Group’s existing production and projects, lower production and increased costs, and may
have an adverse effect on IGas’ or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s profitability.
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Exploration and development risk

It is important for investors to appreciate that the development of CBM resources is a highly
speculative activity and there are a number of risks which may impact on the overall investment.

There is no certainty that the expenditures made by IGas or, following Completion, by the Enlarged
Group towards the search and evaluation of CBM deposits will result in development of commercial
quantities. The future profitability of IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group and the value of
its Ordinary Shares are directly related to the success of the project development and exploration
activities of the Company, and following Completion, the Enlarged Group.

CBM exploration is a high risk activity and consequently, no assurances can be given in relation to the
success of any development of CBM.

In the event that the exploration and development projects are unsuccessful, the value of IGas’ Shares
or, following Completion, the value of the Enlarged Group’s Shares and any associated exploration
licences may be diminished.

Explorations and Development costs

Exploration and development expenditure estimates are based on certain assumptions with respect to
the method and timing of exploration and development. By their nature, these estimates and
assumptions are subject to significant uncertainties and, accordingly, the actual costs may materially
differ from these estimates and assumptions. Additionally, CBM is a tight gas which sometimes
requires unconventional methods of exploration and development which can be more expensive than
conventional methods. Further, CBM by its nature often is also produced with a significant amount of
water and hence the environmental implications of carrying out both the drilling and dewatering
operations can be costly and time consuming. Accordingly, no assurance can be given that the cost
estimates and the underlying assumptions will be realised in practice, which may materially and
adversely affect IGas’, and following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s viability. Hydraulic fracturing
(commonly known as “fracking”) can be used to increase or restore the rate at which water and
hydrocarbon resources are released from subterranean natural reservoirs. Hydraulic fracturing is
achieved by injecting a fluid into the rock structure, typically a slurry of water proppants and chemical
additives. The process of hydraulic fracturing is currently under review by a number of governmental
and non-governmental environmental agencies around the world. Whilst IGas does not currently use
fracking as an exploration or development tool the results of these environmental assessments may
ultimately curtail its use as an exploration and development tool to enhance recoveries which in turn
may impact IGas’ or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s ability to maximise the recovery of its
resources in the future.

Human resources

IGas’ key human resources are or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s key human resources
will be, essential for the successful delivery of projects and continuing operations. Loss of personnel to
competitors or inability to attract quality human resources could affect IGas’ or, following Completion,
the Enlarged Group’s operational performance and growth strategy.

Hydrocarbon prices

Historically, hydrocarbon prices have been subject to large fluctuations in response to a variety of
factors that are beyond IGas’ or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s control. Factors that
influence these fluctuations include operational issues, natural disasters, weather, political instability or
conflicts, economic conditions or actions by major oil-exporting countries. Price fluctuations can affect
IGas’ or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s business assumptions, investment decisions and
financial position. In particular, lower hydrocarbon prices may reduce the economic viability of IGas’
projects or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s projects, result in a reduction in revenues or
net income, impair IGas’ or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s ability to make planned
expenditures and could materially adversely affect IGas’ or, following Completion, the Enlarged
Group’s business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

Uninsured hazards

IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group may be subject to substantial liability claims due to
the inherently hazardous nature of their business or for acts and omissions of subcontractors,
operators or joint venture partners. Any indemnities IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group
may receive from such parties may be difficult to enforce if such sub-contractors, operators or joint
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venture partners lack adequate resources. There can be no assurance that the proceeds of insurance
applicable to covered risks will be adequate to cover expenses relating to losses or liabilities.
Accordingly, IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group may suffer material losses from
uninsurable or uninsured risks or insufficient insurance coverage.

Counterparties

IGas has entered into or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group will be subject to agreements with
a number of contractual counterparties in relation to the sale and supply of hydrocarbon production
volumes. Therefore, IGas is, or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group will be, subject to the risk of
delayed payment for delivered production volumes or counterparty default. Such delays or defaults
could materially adversely affect IGas’ or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s business, results
of operations and cash flows.

Licence withdrawal and renewal

It is possible that in the future IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group may be unable or
unwilling to comply with the terms or requirements of a licence in circumstances that entitle the
relevant authority to suspend or withdraw the terms of such licence. Moreover, some of the exploration
and production licences which are held by IGas or, following Completion, will be held by the Enlarged
Group expire or may expire before the end of what IGas estimates or, following Completion, the
Enlarged Group may estimate to be the productive life of the licensed fields. There can be no
assurance that extensions will be granted in relation to such licences. Any failure to receive such
extensions or any premature termination, suspension or withdrawal of licences may have a material
adverse effect on IGas’ or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s reserves, business, results of
operations and prospects.

Credit market conditions and credit ratings

Recent events in the credit markets have significantly restricted the supply of credit, as financial
institutions have applied more stringent lending criteria or exited the market entirely. If current market
conditions continue, it may be more costly and more difficult for IGas or, following Completion, the
Enlarged Group to refinance its debt as it falls due in the longer-term.

In addition, following recent events it has become and may become more costly to raise new funds to
take advantage of opportunities.

Macroeconomic risks

One of the principal uncertainties for IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group is the extent to
which the global economic slowdown currently being experienced may impact IGas’ or, following
Completion, the Enlarged Group’s major operations in the form of reduced prices or a reduced demand
for IGas’, or the Enlarged Group’s product, and the timing of that impact. The links between economic
activities in different markets and sectors are complex and depend not only on direct drivers such as
the balance of trade and investment between countries, but also on domestic monetary, fiscal and
other policy responses to address macroeconomic conditions.

Environmental and planning

IGas and, following Completion, the Enlarged Group is exposed to environmental risks given the
nature of its operations and an environmental situation could arise in the future which could affect the
Enlarged Group’s profitability.

Environmental and safety legislation may change in a manner that may require stricter or additional
standards than those now in effect, a heightened degree of responsibility for companies and their
directors and employees and more stringent enforcement of existing laws and regulations.

Whilst certain planning authorities currently appear supportive of the type of projects being pursued by
IGas and, following Completion, the Enlarged Group when considering the grant of planning
permission for such projects there can be no guarantee that as local structure plans are revised that
this policy is not changed, modified or reversed and there can be no assurance that planning might
ever be obtained in those areas where authorities are currently less supportive. The planning
permission process involves local consultation and projects can be opposed, either individually or on a
general basis, at the planning level, by national or local pressure groups, as has been the case in
certain areas of the countryside in respect of projects in the past; opposition to projects could lead to
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IGas, or following Completion, the Enlarged Group being involved in appeals or public enquiries where
costs could be potentially large and the ultimate outcome uncertain including failure to obtain the
permissions necessary to pursue development and/or production or, if granted, to enable development
and/or production to be pursued economically. Safety concerns may also result in delays in obtaining
planning permission or in conditions being imposed and costs being increased potentially to a level
where operations are rendered uneconomic.

The expense of meeting environmental regulations could cause a significantly negative effect on
profitability of IGas, or following Completion, the Enlarged Group as could failure to obtain certain
necessary environmental permits.

The current and anticipated future operations of the IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group,
including further exploration, appraisal, development, production and ultimately decommissioning
activities require permits from various national and local governmental authorities. Such operations are
subject to a substantial body of laws and regulations governing land use, the protection of the
environment, production, taxes, labour standards, occupational health, waste disposal, toxic substances,
mine safety and other matters.

The permits that IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group may require for construction of
development and/or production facilities and conduct of development and/or production operations
must be obtainable on reasonable terms to IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group.
Unfavourable amendments to current laws, regulations and permits governing operations and activities
of development and/or production companies, or more stringent implementation thereof, could have a
materially adverse impact on IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group and cause increases
in capital expenditures which could result in a cessation of operations by IGas or, following Completion,
the Enlarged Group.

Failure to comply with applicable laws, regulations and permitting requirements may result in
enforcement actions thereunder, including orders issued by regulatory or judicial authorities causing
operations to cease or be curtailed, and may include corrective measures requiring capital
expenditures, installation of additional equipment or remedial actions. Parties engaged in hydrocarbon
operations may be required to compensate those suffering loss or damage by reason of their activities
and may have civil or criminal fines or penalties imposed for violation of applicable laws or regulations.

The government extensively regulates IGas’ or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s
operations, which imposes significant costs on IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group, and
future regulations could increase those costs or limit its ability to produce hydrocarbons.

IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group is subject to extensive regulations with respect to
matters such as but not only:

a. employee health and safety;

b. permitting and licensing requirements;

c. air quality standards;

d. water quality standards;

e. plant and wildlife protection;

f. reclamation/restoration of properties after production completed;

g. discharge of materials into the environment, including, inter alia, water disposal and gas flaring;

h. surface subsidence from underground production; and

i. the effects of development and/or production operations on groundwater quality and availability.

Numerous permits and approvals are required for hydrocarbon operations. IGas or, following
Completion, the Enlarged Group is required to prepare and present to national and local authorities
data pertaining to the effect or impact that any proposed exploration and appraisal for or production of
hyrdrocarbons may have upon the environment. The costs, liabilities and requirements associated with
these regulations may be costly and time-consuming and may delay commencement or continuation of
exploration, appraisal or production operations. The possibility exists that new legislation, regulations
and orders may be adopted that may materially adversely affect IGas’ or, following Completion, the
Enlarged Group’s operations and its cost structure. New legislation or administrative regulations (or
judicial interpretations of existing laws and regulations), including proposals related to the protection of
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the environment, that would further regulate and tax the industry may also require IGas or, following
Completion, the Enlarged Group or its customers to change operations significantly or incur increased
costs.

Capital intensive nature of the projects and access to future funding

All of the projects which IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group intends to develop are
highly capital intensive. Whilst IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group will have obtained
funding for its short term development and roll-out programme on Admission, the funding available to it
may not allow it to complete some of the projects or to commence others. There can be no guarantee
that IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group will be able to raise additional funding if
required, which may have an adverse effect on projects under development. In addition, the costs of
any of the projects may overrun those estimated by the Directors or the projects may be delayed. Any
of these events may prevent IGas, or following Completion, the Enlarged Group from progressing
certain projects at all.

Litigation

IGas, or following Completion, the Enlarged Group faces the risk of litigation in connection with the
business. In general, liability for litigation is difficult to assess or quantify; recovery may be sought for
very large and/or indeterminate amounts and the existence and magnitude of liability may remain
unknown for substantial periods of time. Although IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group is
not party to any material litigation at present, substantial legal liability in the future could have a
material adverse effect on its business, results of operations and/or financial condition.

Director Indemnification

The Articles contain provisions indemnifying its officers and directors against all costs, charges and
expenses incurred by them, which could interfere with shareholders successfully suing the Company.

The Articles contain provisions that state, subject to applicable law, the Company shall indemnify every
director or officer of the Company, subject to the limitations of the Companies Act, against all losses or
liabilities that the Company’s directors or officers may sustain or incur in the execution of their duties.
The Articles further state that no director or officer shall be liable for any loss, damage or misfortune
that may happen to, or be incurred by the Company in the execution of their duties if they acted
honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of the Company. Such limitations on liability
may reduce the likelihood of litigation against the Company’s officers and directors and may
discourage or deter its shareholders from suing the Company’s officers and directors based upon
breaches of their duties to the Company, though such an action, if successful, might otherwise benefit
the Company and its shareholders.

2. RISK FACTORS RELATING TO COMPLETION

The Enlarged Group’s success will be dependent upon its ability to integrate Star

Risks commonly associated with acquisitions of companies or businesses include the difficulty of
integrating the operations and personnel of the acquired business, problems with minority shareholders
in acquired companies, the potential disruption of IGas’ or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s
own business, the possibility that indemnification agreements with the sellers may be unenforceable or
insufficient to cover potential liabilities and difficulties arising out of integration. These risks may also
apply specifically to Completion itself.

Following Completion, the Enlarged Group may encounter numerous integration challenges in
connection with Completion, including challenges which are not currently foreseeable. In addition, the
Enlarged Group’s management and resources may be diverted away from its core business activities
due to personnel being required to assist in the integration process. This integration process may take
longer than expected, or difficulties relating to the integration, of which the Board is not yet aware, may
arise. This could adversely affect the implementation of the Enlarged Group’s plans, and the Enlarged
Group may not be successful in addressing risks or problems encountered in connection with the
integration and failure to do so may adversely affect its business or financial condition. In addition,
there is a risk that synergy benefits may fail to materialise, or they may be materially lower than have
been estimated which may have a material adverse affect on the financial condition of the Enlarged
Group.
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Risk factors relating to the terms of the Credit Agreement and the Debenture

The covenants contained in the Credit Agreement and the Debenture include financial and other
covenants including restrictions on the ability of IGas and, following Completion, the Enlarged Group to
incur additional financial indebtedness, grant security, make acquisitions or disposals, enter into
mergers and repurchase shares as well as covenants related to Completion. These could restrict IGas’
or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s activities or flexibility or ability to undertake strategic or
significant transactions and may operate as restrictions on operational activity.

As part of the Acquisition, IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group will be taking on a
significant amount of debt to finance Completion. IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group
will be required to pay back this debt over a number of years, principally from the cash flows from the
Company. Whilst the Company has carefully considered its working capital position for the purposes of
Admission, and has entered into certain hedging arrangements to mitigate against risks associated
with the price it may achieve for its hydrocarbon production, in the longer term (being more than
12 months after Admission) intervening events and/or unforeseen production issues could mean that if
IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group is unable to pay down the debt on the dates
required, the bank may call in their loans, which could materially affect IGas’ or, following Completion,
the Enlarged Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Shareholders may suffer a dilution in their interest upon any conversions by the holders of the

Warrants

The Company has issued Warrants to Macquarie Bank Limited as described in greater detail in
paragraph 7.1.1 of Part 9. Macquarie Bank Limited will be eligible to convert its Warrants into Ordinary
Shares of the Company in accordance with the terms of the Warrant Instrument at an exercise price of
55.8p per Ordinary Share. Any such conversions will have the effect of diluting the interest of the
existing Shareholders.

Hedging risk

Pursuant to the Hedging Agreements, the Company and various of the IGas Subsidiaries have entered
into a series of oil and foreign exchange derivative transactions with Macquarie Bank Limited in order
to hedge the exposure under the Oil Supply Agreements to fluctuations in the price of Brent Crude Oil,
and the exposure to foreign exchange rate fluctuations.

IGas uses or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group will use such hedging instruments to manage
the impact of currency and commodity price fluctuations. To the extent that any of its exposure remains
unhedged, the value of its investments may be affected by adverse movements in currency rates,
commodity prices or, interest rates, which may have a material adverse effect on IGas’ or, following
Completion, the Enlarged Group’s business, success of its activities and operations, and overall
financial position.

In the event of any counterparty to such a hedging instrument failing to satisfy any of its payment or
delivery obligations under such instrument, IGas’ ability or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s
ability to manage commodity price risk may be adversely affected and this could in turn materially
adversely affect its business, financial condition and results of operations.

Gas Offtake Agreement

On 16 September 2011, IGas signed an agreement with Petronas Energy Trading Limited pursuant to
which IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group will be obliged to sell its first 150 Bscf of
commercial gas production to Petronas at a pricing matrix based on the bid price under the National
Balancing Point heading on the European Spot Gas Markets. There is no certainty that gas production
will reach such quantities as CBM exploration is a high risk activity and, consequently, no assurances
can be given in relation to the success of such levels of gas production. If less than 100,000 therms per
day are produced by 31 March 2015 the agreement is entitled to be terminated by Petronas and hence
the future profitability of IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group may be consequently
affected.

3. Risks relating to Admission

The value of an investment in IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group and the income
derived from it, if any, may go down as well as up, and an investor may not get back the amount
invested.
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AIM

Application will be made for the Company’s Issued Share Capital to be re-admitted to trading on AIM.
AIM is a market designed primarily for emerging or smaller companies to which a higher investment
risk tends to be attached than to larger more established companies. In particular, shares in AIM
companies may be less liquid than those traded in Official List companies. AIM securities are not
admitted to the Official List of the FSA. Prospective investors should be aware of these risks and
should make the decision to invest only after careful consideration and, if appropriate, consultation with
an independent financial adviser.

The Company may not be able pay dividends

The Board currently believes it is in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders to reinvest
profits in order to drive growth.

4. Risk factors relating to the Ordinary Shares

IGas’ share price will fluctuate

The market price of the Ordinary Shares could be subject to significant fluctuations due to a change in
sentiment in the market regarding the Ordinary Shares. Such risks may occur in response to various
facts and events, including any variations in the IGas’ or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s
operating results, business developments of IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group and/or
its competitors. Stock markets have, from time to time, experienced significant price and volume
fluctuations that have affected the market prices for securities and which may be unrelated to the IGas’
or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s operating performance or prospects. Furthermore,
IGas’ or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s operating results and prospects from time to time
may be below the expectations of market analysts and investors. Any of these events could result in a
decline in the market price of the Ordinary Shares and investors may, therefore, not recover their
original investment. Furthermore, it is possible that IGas or, following Completion, the Enlarged Group
may decide to offer additional shares in the future. Any additional offering could also have an adverse
effect on the market price of the Ordinary Shares.

12



PART 1

LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN

IGAS ENERGY PLC

(Incorporated in England and Wales with Registered No. 04981279)

Directors: Registered Office:

Francis Gugen (Non-Executive Chairman) 7 Down Street
London

Andrew Austin (Chief Executive Officer) W1J 8AJ
John Blaymires (Chief Operating Officer)
Stephen Bowler (Chief Financial Officer)
John Bryant (Senior Independent Non-Executive Director)
Richard Armstrong (Non-Executive Director)
John Hamilton (Non-Executive Director)

22 November 2011

To the holders of Ordinary Shares and for information only to holders of options

Dear Shareholder,

Proposed acquisition of Star Energy Group Limited and its Subsidiaries

Application for re-Admission to trading on AIM

Notice of General Meeting

1. Introduction

As announced by the Company on 19 September 2011, the Company has conditionally agreed to
acquire Star Energy Group Limited from Petronas International Corporation Limited. The Acquisition
will comprise the UK onshore production assets of the Star Group but exclude certain non-UK assets
and the gas storage business currently conducted by Star. The consideration for the Acquisition is
£110 million, which is to be satisfied by way of new debt facilities with Macquarie Bank, cash generated
by Star prior to closing and IGas’ existing cash resources. In addition the Company has also entered
into a gas offtake agreement with Petronas Energy Trading Limited to supply 150 Bscf of gas at market
derived rates.

Your Board believes that the Acquisition is an exciting and transformational opportunity for the
Company. Not only would the proposed Acquisition add 2P reserves of 11.13 MMboe and increase
contingent resources 2C to 316 MMboe, but IGas will be acquiring an experienced and substantial
management team involved in current production, with capacity to further develop the assets of the
Enlarged Group. Your Board also believes that the Acquisition would make the Company one of the
largest onshore UK oil and gas producers with a balanced portfolio of producing and development
assets. Your Board believes that the potential exists for significant upside to the existing oil production
from the Star assets which, together with the opportunity to grow the production profile as combined oil
and gas resources are developed, has the potential to deliver considerable fiscal synergies for the
Enlarged Group.

Your Board has obtained irrevocable undertakings from shareholders and directors holding, in
aggregate, 89,627,390 shares, representing 55.90% of the Issued Share Capital to vote in favour of
the Resolutions to be proposed at the General Meeting to implement the Acquisition. These
undertakings include undertakings from the Directors who have irrevocably undertaken to vote in
favour of the Resolutions to implement the Acquisition with respect to their holdings totalling
38,483,847 shares or 24.00% of the Issued Share Capital.

IGas is an AIM listed oil and gas exploration and production company that owns exploration and
development licences in gas assets onshore UK, including Coal Bed Methane (“CBM”) and shale gas.
As IGas is developing its existing gas portfolio, it is seizing an opportunity to acquire a mature onshore
UK oil and gas portfolio of producing assets through the transaction with Petronas. Pursuant to the
Acquisition, IGas will acquire the entire issued share capital of Star Energy Group Limited and its
subsidiaries: Star Energy Limited, Star Energy Oil and Gas Limited, Star Energy Oil UK Limited, Star
Energy (East Midlands) Limited and Star Energy Weald Basin Limited and will take ownership of all
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Star’s producing oil and gas assets, with the exception of Humbly Grove and the Herriard fields, which
will be carved out from the current business, together with all the subsidiary entities that concentrate on
gas storage which will also be carved out from the Star Group and will be retained by Petronas.

Due to the size of the Acquisition in relation to the Company, the Acquisition constitutes a reverse
takeover under the AIM Rules for Companies and is therefore subject to the approval of the
Shareholders of the Company. Approval for the Acquisition is being sought at the General Meeting
which has been convened for 10.45 a.m. on 9 December 2011.

If the Resolutions are duly passed at the General Meeting, the Issued Share Capital will be re-admitted
to trading on AIM on 12 December 2011.

The purpose of this document is to provide you with background to and information regarding the
Acquisition, the Star Group, and following Completion, the Enlarged Group, and to seek your approval
of the Acquisition at the General Meeting. Notice of the General Meeting is set out in Part 12 of this
document.

2. Background information on IGas

2.1 Introduction

On 9 March 2011 IGas announced completion of the acquisition of Nexen Exploration UK Limited for a
consideration of 39,714,290 Ordinary Shares. The effect of this transaction was that all 11 UK
Petroleum Exploration and Development Licences (“PEDL”) and the three blocks within a seaward
petroleum production licence became wholly owned and operated by IGas (having previously been
subject to various joint interest relationships with Nexen Petroleum UK Limited).

The result of this acquisition was that IGas’ Contingent Resource 2C (P50) increased by 115 per cent.
to 1,736 Bscf or 260 MMboe (DeGolyer & MacNaughton 31 December 2008 assessment). In March
2011, IGas placed a total of 27,500,000 Ordinary Shares to raise £20,625,000 (before expenses). The
Board considered the consolidation of its licence interests and associated fundraising to be a major
turning point in the history of the Company and the first step in creating a vehicle to further expand and
accelerate its growth as an operational onshore hydrocarbon exploration and production company.

The Board accordingly believes the current Acquisition is a further significant step towards delivering
upon that strategy. The Acquisition will provide IGas with a substantial portfolio of producing acreage,
comprising 25 onshore fields in the Weald Basin in the South of England and in the East Midlands. The
Company is developing a combined optimised work programme for the Enlarged Group based on its
findings from DG-3 and DG-4, maximising synergies using Star’s execution capabilities and its tax
profile to obtain maximum results from capital expenditure opportunities in the Star producing
companies.

2.2 Operational Update

IGas considers that significant progress has been made in recent months. We announced on
19 September 2011 that the Company planned to drill between four and six wells by Q2 2012 and to
date three wells have been completed or are underway; DG-3 drilled 1500 ft of coal at Doe Green. Also
at Doe Green, DG-4 spudded on 10 October 2011 and Ince Marshes spudded on 4 November 2011.

IGas also planned to be operational at 5 sites by Q2 of 2012. The Company is currently operational at
4 sites, being Doe Green (DG-3 and DG-4); Ince Marshes; Ellesmere Port, where site construction is
now complete; and Barton (now renamed Irlam), where site construction is underway.

Also in accordance with the plans announced by the Company on 19 September 2011, at Ince
Marshes, which spudded on 4 November 2011, the Company is drilling with a Schramm R1 TXD rig.
The well will be logged and cored, to be suspended as a potential producer. At Ellesmere Port the
Company has completed site construction. Pre-drill approvals are in place and a drilling programme
has been prepared. The Company will await an analysis of the Ince Marshes results prior to
commencing drilling at Ellesmere Port.

At Doe Green DG-3 the Company has completed multilaterals in the London Delph seam (1500ft) and
at DG-4 is drilling multilaterals in the Plodder seam (with a target of 3,000 ft). An upgrade of facilities is
also underway at Doe Green of power generation and pumping equipment.

The Company’s current planned work program will fulfil all of its remaining 13th Licencing Round
Obligations, specifically the planned drilling at Irlam and Ellesmere Port will discharge the final
obligations. We have also increased headcount by 8 in accordance with our announced plans.

14



2.3 Summary of IGas’ Resources

The IGas Coal Bed Methane (“CBM”) and shale gas assets are in ten onshore and one offshore
licence located in Cheshire, Flintshire and Staffordshire. Total area under license is 1,455 km2. IGas
has a 100% working interest in all licences.

The assets were reviewed for CBM potential by DeGolyer and MacNaughton in December 2008, who
established at the time, and based on the data then available, statistically aggregated Contingent
Resources of 1.7 Trillion Cubic Feet (2C). The CBM assets were also reviewed, from the perspective
of their GIIP, by Equipoise Solutions Ltd, who also assembled and reviewed the available shale gas
data.

Existing reports are based mostly on the voluminous coal core data available from the mining industry
alongside modern petroleum core and log data from several wells in the period from 2008 to 2010.
There is a range of available information on the licences, but in general the coals’ measures are
adequately to well defined.

Senergy (in their report dated 15 November 2011) has analysed the data provided by IGas to estimate
resources on a field level basis. The information was reviewed using experiences from successful CBM
development projects in North America and Australia. Senergy did not carry out independent
interpretation of each seam thickness.

Senergy used existing GIIP estimates combined with development and recovery efficiencies to
estimate Contingent Resources on a field level basis. Senergy’s estimate for total Contingent
Resources net to IGas is depicted in the table below.

Contingent Resources Net to IGAS

Stochastic Aggregate of all UK Fields 1C 2C 3C

Total Gas (Bscf) 1,400 1,811 2,389
Total Hydrocarbons (MMboe) 241 312 412

Source: Competent Persons Report, Senergy, 15 November 2011

IGas’ CBM developments should benefit from the modern petroleum core and log data, and the
production data available, as well as from knowledge gained from drilling and operating the Doe Green
wells over the last few years. The optimal development zones and drilling and completion techniques
for IGas’ CBM assets will still take time to fully develop. Enhanced project definition and production
projections based on the Doe Green results could give sufficient confidence for a limited
reclassification of certain resources as Possible or Probable Reserves.

2.3.1 Map of IGas’ Licence Acreage

Please refer to Figure 1.3 “IGas UK Gas Assets – Location Map” of the CPR set out in Part IV of this
document.

3. Background information on Star

3.1 Introduction

Star was founded in 1999 to pursue underground gas storage projects. Star was the subject of an
initial public offering on AIM in May 2004, before being the subject of a takeover offer from Petronas in
early 2008.

Star currently carries on business producing oil and gas from 25 onshore fields in the Weald Basin and
East Midlands areas.

IGas has agreed with Petronas that it will acquire Star and those of the Star Subsidiaries which carry
on exploration, development and production activity. The gas storage businesses will be retained by
Petronas, together with the Humbley Grove and Herriard Fields.

3.2 Summary of Star’s assets

Operations Overview

Star has interests in 25 UK onshore licences in the East Midlands and the Weald Basin and is the
appointed operator in 23 of the 25 licence areas. In total, Star occupies or owns 105 sites with an
inventory of 247 wells (of which 85 are currently still in operation). The operating companies in East
Midlands and the Weald Basin are responsible for the day-to-day operations of the fields and are
supported by central services and development teams.
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East Midlands

The East Midlands has two primary production area centres: Welton and Gainsborough / Beckingham.
The Welton area production wells are beam pump type. The Welton area fields comprise:

• Welton A/B/C;

• Nettleham;

• Scampton (N&S);

• Stainton; and

• Cold Hanworth.

The Welton Gathering Centre (“WGC”) is the hub reception and process facility. The produced oil, gas
and water are separated at the WGC. Welton A/B/C and Nettleham flow to WGC via pipelines. All other
fields have oil/water storage and tanker pick-up.

At WGC produced oil is exported to Conoco Immingham via road tanker, gas is used for power
generation and produced water is pumped for reinjection at Welton A. WGC is manned 24 hours per
day. All other Welton area sites are normally unmanned, but roving operators visit all sites daily during
daytime hours.

The WGC has been designed for much higher throughputs than current use (6,000 bopd versus
current 950 bopd) and previously included many more process unit operations including gas
sweetening and amine units, fuel gas compression and GT power generation. The WGC site has a
large plot area. There are many site process unit operations that are now not in service or isolated,
though not disinvested, including a former rail export siding.

The Gainsborough / Beckingham facility manages its own production as well as the production from
seven other oilfields:

• Corringham;

• Glentworth;

• East Glentworth;

• Rempstone;

• Long Clawson;

• South Leverton; and

• Bothamsall.

Gainsborough / Beckingham wells flow to the Gainsborough-5 gathering and processing hub via
pipelines. All other fields have oil and water storage and tanker pick-up. The Gainsborough-5
processing facility separates oil, gas and water. Oil is exported to Conoco Immingham via road tanker,
gas is piped to Gainsborough-1 for power generation and produced water is pumped for reinjection. All
Gainsborough / Beckingham area oil production wells are beam pump type.

Gainsborough-5 is manned 24 hours per day, Gainsborough-1 is manned during daytime hours and
has 24 hour security and Long Clawson A is manned during daytime. All other Gainsborough area
sites are normally unmanned, but roving operators visit all sites daily during daytime hours.

Weald Basin

The Weald Basin sites cover the following areas: Stockbridge, Palmers Wood, Bletchingly, Storrington
and Horndean, which are manned sites with daytime operators. The two sites at Palmers Wood are
covered by one man as are the three sites at Horndean. The main Stockbridge site, Larkwhistle Farm
is manned during the day and operators from this site also service the Hill Farm, Folly Farm,
Goodworth and Avington sites. The Holybourne terminal is continually manned.

The Albury gas field is presently suspended following drilling of a new well for potential gas storage
use. Star Energy Weald Basin Limited currently plans to reinstall equipment for gas production and
power generation for export at the Albury gas field.

The Humbly Grove and Herriard sites have not been assessed as these licence areas are not being
acquired as part of the Acquisition.
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Oil is exported by tanker from all sites except the Palmers Wood Coney Hill site which exports to the
Palmers Wood Rooks Nest site by pipeline. There are plans to abandon this pipeline. There is also a
pipeline into the Holybourne terminal from Humbly Grove. Produced water is either reinjected on site or
trucked to another site for reinjection. Power is imported or generated by an on-site diesel generator.

Oil can be either exported by road tanker to the BP operated Hamble terminal on the Solent or by road
tanker to the Star operated Holybourne storage facility for onward transport by rail (5,000 stb loads) to
the Esso Fawley refinery, which is generally once per week. Generally oil from Stockbridge is exported
to Hamble and oil from the other fields is exported to Holyboure / Fawley. However, there is flexibility of
operation and any production can be exported via either route.

The production department has two work over rigs, four hot water flush rigs, one hot oil flush rig, and
one flushby unit for pulling beam pump well rods. Demand for the rigs is high.

3.2.1 Map of Star’s Licence Acreage

Please refer to Figure 1.1 “Star Assets – Location Map East Midlands” of the CPR, and Figure 1.2
“Star Assets – Location Map Weald Basin” of the CPR.

3.2.2 Summary of Star’s Reserves and Resources

A summary of the Star Asset Reserves and Contingent Resources is provided in the two tables below.
A breakdown of Reserves and Contingent Resources by field is provided in Table 1.3 on page vi of the
CPR.

Reserves and Resources Net to IGAS1

Asset Proved (1P)
Proved plus

Probable (2P)

Proved plus
Probable plus
Possible (3P)

2C2

Contingent Resources

Volume Oil

(MMstb)

Star Assets 5.68 9.63 14.85 4.46
Total Oil (MMstb) 5.68 9.63 14.85 4.46

Volume Gas

(Bscf)

Gainsborough/
Beckingham 4.20 6.50 7.70 N/A

Albury 0.70 2.20 2.70 N/A
Total Gas (Bscf) 4.90 8.70 10.40 N/A

Total

Hydrocarbons

(MMboe) 6.52 11.13 16.65 4.46

1 The proportion of gross reserves, resources or value for the attributable interests of IGas. These
volumes exclude Humbly Grove and Herriard.

2 2C: in a resource size distribution this is the Base case or (50% probability) or Mean volume. This
is defined for each asset in the CPR.

Source: Competent Persons Report, Senergy, 15 November 2011

The produced gas is currently mostly used to generate power for internal consumption, with the option
to sell into the UK grid. Due to power generation capacity limitations only a limited amount of gas has
been produced in the recent past. Whilst this has affected the production profiles for the remaining
resources, Senergy has not discounted these resources and classified them as Reserves, because
Senergy believes that these resources can easily find a way into the UK market.

4. Principal terms of the Acquisition

Pursuant to the terms of the Acquisition Agreement, the Company will acquire the entire issued share
capital of Star and outstanding intercompany debt owed by Star to its parent company for a total cash
consideration of £110 million. Pursuant to the Acquisition, the Company will acquire the entire issued
share capital of Star Energy Group Limited and its subsidiaries: Star Energy Limited, Star Energy Oil
and Gas Limited, Star Energy Oil UK Limited, Star Energy (East Midlands) Limited and Star
Energy Weald Basin Limited and will take ownership of all Star’s producing oil and gas assets, with the
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exception of Humbly Grove and Herriard fields, which will be carved out from the current business,
together with all the subsidiary entities that concentrate on gas storage which will also be carved out
from the Star Group.

The Company will also receive the benefit of a tax deed entered into by Petronas, giving the Company
protection against any undisclosed or changes in the provisional tax liabilities of the Star entities being
acquired.

Petronas and the Company will also enter into a gas offtake agreement. Pursuant to this agreement
the Company will be obligated to sell its first 150 Bscf of gas production to Petronas at a pricing matrix
based on the bid price under the National Balancing Point heading on the European Spot Gas Markets.

Further details of the Acquisition Agreement, the Tax Deed and the Gas Offtake Agreement are set out
in paragraphs 7.1.7, 7.1.8 and 7.1.12 of Part 9 of this document. The Acquisition is conditional upon
completion of the corporate reorganisation described above to remove the gas storage business from
Star Energy Group Limited, which involves the obtaining of certain regulatory consents. The
Acquisition is also conditional upon Admission. It is expected that the Acquisition will complete prior to
16 December 2011 and the Company will make a further announcement once the completion date has
been confirmed. The Company is to pay an origination fee to Hydrocarbon Strategic Services SA as
set out in further detail in paragraph 7.1.13 of Part 9 of this document, in relation to the Acquisition.

The Acquisition will be financed by way of debt facilities from Macquarie Bank together with cash
balances held at Star and IGas’ own cash resources. The Company will borrow a total of up to
$135 million (approximately £85 million) to enable it to complete the Acquisition. The Credit Agreement
comprises three separate facilities, a 5 year senior secured term loan of $90 million at a rate of 5.5% over
LIBOR and a 2% commitment fee; and a 5 year senior secured term loan of $45 million at 12% over
LIBOR and a 3.5% commitment fee. The Credit Agreement also provides for an uncommitted working
capital facility of $15 million and is available at the future discretion of Macquarie. The debt facilities will
be secured over the assets and undertakings of the Enlarged Group. At Completion the Company will
issue Macquarie with 21,286,646 Warrants to acquire Ordinary Shares at a price of 55.8p per Ordinary
Share as further described in paragraph 7.1.1 of Part 9. IGas’ held cash balances of £22.5 m as at
31 October 2011. The Acquisition is designed to have an economic effect as at 31 March 2011 and
accordingly cash balances generated within Star after this date accrue for the benefit of IGas, together
with certain other cash adjustments relating to tax and capital expenditure. The $135 million element of
the facility with Macquarie will be used to finance the majority of the Acquisition price, with the $15 million
working capital facility potentially being available to allow the funding of capital expenditure on both the
IGas and Star asset portfolios.

The Company has also entered into a series of oil swap transactions with Macquarie Bank with respect
to approximately 2.4mmbbl over six years. These oil swap transactions will be novated and assigned to
the Star producing companies on completion of the Acquisition. These oil swap transactions are
designed to protect an element of the Enlarged Group’s cash flow for debt service.

Under two oil supply agreements between (i) Star Weald Basin Limited (the shares of which are to be
acquired by the Company under the Acquisition Agreement) and Esso Petroleum Company Limited
(“Esso”) and (ii) Star Oil & Gas Limited (the shares of which are to be acquired by the Company under
the Acquisition Agreement) and Conoco Phillips Limited (“Conoco”), these Star Subsidiaries will supply
quantities of crude oil as nominated by IGas to Esso and Conoco, respectively, in return for payment of
a floating price for their production. Following Completion, the Company intends to novate its rights and
obligations under the derivative transactions to the relevant Star Subsidiaries in order to hedge their
exposure to fluctuations in the price of Brent Crude Oil, and their exposure to foreign exchange rate
fluctuations.

To date the Company has been entirely equity financed which is consistent with market sentiment and
expectation for companies primarily engaged in exploration and appraisal activities. However, following
completion of the Acquisition, it is expected that the Enlarged Group will have significant production
volumes generating cash flows which make debt financing appropriate.

5. Summary of financial information for the Company

Please see the information set out in Part 5 of this Admission document.
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6. Summary financial information for Star Energy Group Limited

Please see the information contained at Part 6 of this Admission document.

7. Current trading and prospects of the Enlarged Group

The Enlarged Group will have interests in 35 UK onshore licences and one offshore licence, comprised
of 109 sites with inventory of 250 wells, 86 of which are currently producing.

The CPR estimates that the Enlarged Group will have production of approximately 2,140 boe/d in the
year ending 31 December 2012. With an aggregate of 11.1 MMboe 2P reserves comprised of
9.6mmstb of oil and 8.7 Bscf of gas. The CPR further estimates combined assets of the Enlarged
Group of 316.5 MMboe of 2C resources.

There will be 3 main collection/treatment centres located at the Welton Gathering Centre,
Gainsborough 5 Processing Hub and the Holybourne Oil Terminal from where production will be
delivered to off-takers by road trucks and rail.

The Company currently operates in a highly realisable gas price environment; 2012-2013 forward gas
prices are approximately $9.00 mcf (approximately 60p/therm).

On the basis of the information currently available to the Board with respect to the Star producing assets
and with access to cash in the form of the cash currently held by IGas, cash-flows from the Star
production assets and potentially the US$15 million working capital facility (currently uncommitted) IGas
intends to continue the development of its CBM assets in conjunction with the development of the Star
assets. In this context the Board was pleased to be able to employ debt from a leading lender in the
sector to finance substantially the entire Acquisition price when market conditions are generally difficult
and unpredictable.

At Keele, the technical work undertaken suggests that a work over will be required to optimise potential
production. IGas has now extended the planning permission at the site to 22 December 2012 and such
work will be considered as part of the combined optimised work programmes being developed.

At Point of Ayr we will seek a further extension to the licence term as we continue attempt to secure
surface access to the potential reservoir.

As part of portfolio rationalisation IGas has relinquished PEDL 92, which was not considered material,
and which is reflected in the CPR prepared by Senergy as set out in Part 4 of this Admission
document.

The Company is developing a combined optimised work programme for the Enlarged Group based on
its findings from DG-3 and DG-4, maximising synergies using Star’s execution and its tax profile to
obtain maximum results from capital expenditure opportunities in the Enlarged Group.

8. Reasons for the Acquisition

Your Board believes that by bringing together the existing assets of the Company with the exploration
assets of the Star Group there is an opportunity to create an Enlarged Group with significant
economies of scale, a balanced portfolio of booked reserves and material resources and an
experienced execution team.

The Star Group being acquired employs 143 persons inclusive of a senior technical team with a proven
track record for delivering resources and experienced site operators. IGas has for some time been
recruiting appropriate experienced and qualified personnel for its own operations and the Acquisition
will deliver not only hydrocarbon assets but a team of experienced professionals capable of managing
those assets and also of assisting in the management of the Company’s existing assets.

In addition, there are tax losses within the IGas Group and the Star Group which can be utilised by the
Enlarged Group. Star also holds a number freehold land titles in valuable locations, which will be of
value to the Enlarged Group. The Star Group also brings with it owned and accessible production
equipment.

The Board believes that the Enlarged Group will be one of the largest onshore producers of
hydrocarbons, and one of the largest exploration and production companies dedicated to UK onshore
hydrocarbon production. The Board further believes that the creation of the Enlarged Group will
facilitate the Company’s ability to raise future finance to further develop the assets of the Enlarged
Group on the basis of being a creditable operator in terms of size in the UK onshore market. The
acquisition of the Star Group presents a number of operational and logistical synergies including
access to equipment and supply chain synergies.
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9. Dividend Policy

The Board currently believes it is in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders to reinvest
profits in order to drive growth.

10. Taxation

General information relating to UK taxation is summarised in Part 7 of this document. A Shareholder

or potential Shareholder who is in any doubt as to his or her tax position, or is subject to tax in

a jurisdiction other than the UK, should consult his or her professional advisers immediately.

11. Admission to AIM and dealings

The Acquisition constitutes a reverse takeover under the AIM Rules for Companies and is therefore
dependent upon the approval of Shareholders being given at the General Meeting, notice of which is
set out at the end of this document. A Resolution will be proposed at the General Meeting, inter alia, to
approve the Acquisition. If the Resolutions are duly passed at the General Meeting, an application will
be made for the Issued Share Capital to be re-admitted to trading on AIM.

The Ordinary Shares were suspended on 19 September 2011. Following posting of this Admission
document dealings in the Ordinary Shares are expected to recommence on 23 November 2011.

Admission is expected to take place on AIM at 8.00 a.m. on 12 December 2011.

The Ordinary Shares have been admitted to CREST and accordingly enable for settlement in CREST
on the date of Admission. Accordingly, settlement of transactions in Ordinary Shares following
Admission may (subject to overseas laws) take place within the CREST system if any shareholder so
wishes. CREST is a voluntary system, and holders of Ordinary Shares who wish to receive and retain
share certificates will be able to do so.

12. General Meeting

Set out at the end of this document is a Notice of General Meeting of the Company to be held at the
offices of Morrison & Foerster (UK) LLP, CityPoint, One Ropemaker Street, London EC2Y 9AW at
10.45 a.m. on 9 December 2011.

At the General Meeting, the following Resolutions will be considered by the holders of the Ordinary
Shares of which Resolutions 1 and 2 will be proposed as ordinary Resolutions and Resolution 3 will be
considered as a special resolution.

(a) the first Resolution is to approve the Acquisition in accordance with the terms of the Acquisition
Agreement;

(b) the second Resolution is to increase the borrowing limit in the Articles to allow the Company to
drawdown pursuant to the Credit Agreement, the current limit being insufficient authority for the
purpose of the borrowings and the Articles allowing for the limit to be changed by ordinary
resolution. The Resolution will also specifically approve the entry by the Company into the Credit
Agreement; and

(c) the third Resolution is to disapply statutory pre-emption rights with respect to the issue of shares for
cash consideration up to a maximum of 15% of the current issued share capital of the Company and
in respect of the Company’s long-term incentive plans up to a maximum of 5,344,124 Ordinary
Shares. The Board is proposing these new authorities given that the issue of the Warrants to
Macquarie utilises substantially all of the Company’s existing non-pre-emptive authority. Whilst the
Directors have no current intention to use the proposed authority, the Directors believe that in current
market conditions it is important to maintain maximum funding flexibility. The proposed increase in the
authority to allot on a non pre-emptive basis in connection with the Company’s long-term incentive
plan is to give the Company maximum flexibility to incentivise management within the Enlarged
Group, where it is anticipated that equity based awards will be employed rather than historic cash-
based bonus structures.

The ordinary resolutions will require a simple majority of those Shareholders voting in person or on a
poll by proxy in favour of the Resolutions whilst the special resolution requires a 75% majority on the
same basis. Resolution 1 is conditional upon the passing of Resolution 2. Resolution 3 is not
conditional on Resolutions 1 and 2 and so stands alone.
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13. Irrevocable undertakings

The Board has obtained irrevocable undertakings from shareholders and directors holding, in
aggregate, 89,627,390 shares, representing 55.90% of the Issued Share Capital to vote in favour of
the Resolutions to be proposed at the General Meeting to implement the Acquisition. The Directors
have irrevocably undertaken to vote in favour of the Resolutions to implement the Acquisition with
respect to their holdings totalling 38,483,847 shares or 24.00% of the Issued Share Capital.
Accordingly, the Company is in receipt of aggregate undertakings to vote in favour of the Resolutions
to implement the Acquisition.

14. Further Information

Your attention is drawn to Parts 2 to 9 (inclusive) of this document which provide additional information
on the Enlarged Group and on IGas and Star. In addition the Company has changed its accounting
reference date to 31 March 2011 and intends to change the accounting reference date for all
subsidiaries in the Enlarged Group in due course.

15. Action to be taken

You will find enclosed with this document a Form of Proxy for use at the General Meeting or at

any adjournment thereof. You are requested to complete, sign and return the Form of Proxy in

accordance with the instructions printed on it whether or not you propose to attend the General

Meeting in person in accordance with the instructions printed on it and return it as soon as

possible, but in any event so as to be received no later than 10.45 a.m. on 7 December 2011, by

the Registrars, Computershare Investor Services PLC, The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristol

BS99 6ZY.

Alternatively you may deliver a Form of Proxy by e-mail to IGas@mofo.com. CREST members may
instead utilise the CREST electronic proxy appointment service. Procedures for these forms of
electronic communications are set out in the notes to the Notice of General Meeting at the end of this
document. The lodging of the Form of Proxy will not preclude you from attending and voting at the
meeting in person if you so wish.

16. Recommendation

The Directors, who have received financial advice from RBS Hoare Govett Limited, consider the terms
of the Acquisition to be fair and reasonable so far as Shareholders as a whole are concerned. In giving
its advice, RBS Hoare Govett Limited has relied upon the Directors’ commercial assessments of the
Acquisition. Accordingly, the Directors unanimously recommend that Shareholders vote in favour of the
Resolutions to be proposed at the General Meeting as they have irrevocably undertaken to do in
respect of their own beneficial shareholdings amounting to, in aggregate, 38,483,847 Ordinary Shares
(representing approximately 24.00% per cent. of the existing Issued Share Capital).

Yours faithfully,

Francis Gugen

Chairman
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PART 2

GENERAL INFORMATION ON IGAS ENERGY PLC

1. History and development of the IGas Group

IGas was set up in 2003 to produce and market domestically sourced gas from unconventional sources
such as coal bed methane (CBM) and shale. It is currently focussed on developing the CBM potential
of its acreage.

IGas has licences to extract hydrocarbons across the north of Wales and the north of England,
covering an area of approximately 1,455km². Additionally, IGas has ownership of ten Petroleum
Exploration and Development Licences (“PEDL”) in the UK, one methane drainage licence and three
offshore blocks under one Seaward Petroleum Production Licence. Its areas of operation are Cheshire,
Flintshire and Staffordshire. IGas is the operator and sole owner of each of its licences.

IGas’ assets are located close to its potential customer base, and to the national gas network. IGas is
therefore in a strong position to secure high gas prices for its production and to contribute to the UK’s
security of supply.

2. Directors and senior managers

Brief biographies of the Directors are set out in Part 8 of this document together with further details of
their current and past directorships, and certain other important information regarding the Directors.

3. Employees

The Company currently employs 15 personnel, of whom 7 are technical and 8 are administrative.

4. Corporate Strategy

IGas is incorporated in England and Wales and listed on AIM. It is a leading developer of CBM in the
UK, producing North Sea-quality gas from virgin coal seams. The business focuses on the
development of a series of CBM assets in England and Wales, with the objective of becoming a
significant onshore producer of hydrocarbons.

The CBM industry in the UK is likely to become an increasingly attractive alternative potential source of
gas given the continuing decline in natural gas production from the North Sea. In the US and Australia,
CBM already accounts for around 7 per cent. of their energy use. IGas believes that CBM could
provide a similar proportion of the UK’s energy in a relatively short time.

Independent analysis by leading reservoir engineers, Senergy, has confirmed that IGas has an
estimated net Contingent Recoverable Resource of 1,811Bscf of gas (2C). The Contingent
Recoverable Resource is derived from a statistical aggregation of Contingent Recoverable Resource
ranges calculated on an individual coal seam basis.

IGas may also have the potential to explore shale. Shale involves extracting gas from rock which
contains quantities of natural gas. Although IGas intends to conduct further work to better understand
the potential of its shale holding, it has no immediate plans to develop this resource.

5. Current Trading Prospects

Please see Section 7 of Part 1 of this Admission document.

6. Acquisitions and disposals

Island Gas Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of IGas, historically had varying ownership interests in
eleven PEDLs and three offshore blocks held under a seaward petroleum production licence (“SPPL”)
in the UK. Island Gas Limited’s former joint venture partner, Nexen Exploration UK Limited, held the
balance of the ownership interests in these PEDLs until IGas acquired the entire issued share capital
of Nexen Exploration UK Limited in early March 2011.

The relationship between Nexen Exploration UK Limited and IGas began in December 2005 when,
following a period of due diligence by Nexen Exploration UK Limited over the original seven Licences,
geological data and IGas’ management team, the two parties agreed a farm-in allowing Nexen
Exploration UK Limited an initial 80 per cent. equity interest in and the rights to operate the seven
PEDLs then held by IGas, namely, PEDLs 40-1, 56-1, 78-1, 115-1, 115-2, 116 and 145. Nexen
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Exploration UK Limited and IGas subsequently successfully applied together on a 50-50 basis for
acreage in the 24th Seaward Round in 2007 and acquired the adjacent on-shore block PEDL 107.

The joint venture arrangements were subsequently extended to cover new Licence acquisitions in May
2008 through the 13th onshore licensing round.

In August 2009, IGas increased its equity ownership in PEDLs 40-1, 56-1, 78-1, 115-1 and 115-2 from
20 per cent. to 35 per cent. in a farm-up transaction with Nexen Exploration.

In a further farm-up transaction with Nexen Exploration UK Limited in November 2009, IGas increased
its equity ownership in PEDL 107 and SPPL 1481 from 50 per cent. to 75 per cent., and its equity
ownership in PEDLs 116, 145, 184, 190 and 193 from 20 per cent. to 35 per cent. As part of these
arrangements IGas assumed operatorship of PEDL 107 and SPPL 1481, subject to approval by
DECC, which was granted on 9 February 2011.

Under these farm-up arrangements IGas was liable to carry Nexen Exploration UK Limited’s share of
up to £7 million of gross expenditure, which obligation ceased to have any economic effect when IGas
acquired Nexen Exploration as the financial arrangements now consolidate within IGas.

The Board considered that the acquisition of Nexen Exploration UK Limited marked a major turning
point in the history of IGas. As a result of the acquisition of Nexen Exploration UK Limited, IGas more
than doubled its Contingent Resources, with a consequent effect on future production and giving IGas
recoverable gas potentially sufficient to supply electricity to an estimated fifteen per cent. of UK
households for 15 years. Additionally, IGas became operator of all the Licences, in addition to the
operatorship which it already held of the Point of Ayr Licences.

As a result of the acquisition of Nexen Exploration UK Limited, 39,714,290 Ordinary Shares were
issued to Nexen Petroleum UK Limited (renamed IGas Exploration UK Limited), representing
approximately 24.77% of the issued share capital of IGas, after the capital raising in March. The capital
raising by the Company secured gross proceeds of £20.625 million for 27,500,000 new Ordinary 50p
Shares when this acquisition became unconditional on 9 March 2011.

7. Current IGas Licences3

Licence IGas Interest
%

Operatorship

PEDL 40-1 100 IGas
PEDL 56-1 100 IGas
PEDL 78-1 100 IGas
PEDL 78-2 100 IGas
PEDL 107 100 IGas
PEDL 115-1 100 IGas
PEDL 115-2 100 IGas
PEDL 116 100 IGas
PEDL 145 100 IGas
PEDL 184 100 IGas
PEDL 190 100 IGas
PEDL 193 100 IGas
SPPL 1481 100 IGas
MDL036 100 IGas

8. Dividend Policy

It is the Board’s policy to invest retained earnings to fund further development and growth of the oil and
gas production and development business and in particular its CBM activities. The Board will review its
policy periodically in the context of the Company’s financial position.

3 The Company currently also holds 100% interest in PEDL 92-1 SE/62 and SE/72 but has
informed the DECC of its intention to relinquish this licence and intends to file the requisite
Relinquishment Report by 6th December 2011 in order to complete this process.

The Company had another methane drainage licence MDL038 which expired on 7 June 2011.
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9. Organisational Structure

The following chart shows the initial internal organisational structure of the Company following the
Acquisition:
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PART 3

INFORMATION ON STAR ENERGY GROUP LIMITED

1. OVERVIEW OF COMPANY

Founded in 1999, Star Group is an onshore oil producer and one of the main developers of
underground gas storage using depleted oil and gas reservoirs. Star Group employs over 150 people4

and has a turnover in excess of £50 million.

Star has interests in 25 UK onshore licences in the East Midlands and the Weald Basin and is the
appointed operator in 23 of the 25 licence areas. In total, Star occupies or owns 105 sites with an
inventory of 247 wells (of which 85 are currently still in operation). The operating companies in East
Midlands and the Weald Basin are responsible for the day-to-day operations of the fields and are
supported by central services and development teams.

Star Energy Group Limited is headquartered in London and incorporated in England and Wales with
registered number 05054503 and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Petronas International Corporation
Limited.

2. Company History

November 1999

Star Energy is founded. Equity financing provided by European Acquisition Capital enables Star
Energy to acquire its initial Weald Basin assets from Soco International.

June 2000

Star Energy continues to expand by acquiring assets in the East Midlands from Roc Oil Company.

May 2004

Star Energy Group Limited was incorporated as a private limited company on 24 February 2004 with
company number 05054503. On 4 May 2004, Star Energy Group Limited changed its status to become
a public limited company and its shares were admitted to trading on AIM on 12 May 2004.

August 2005

Star Energy Group PLC acquired Pentex Management Limited (“Pentex”), a UK based energy
company whose primary assets were 15 onshore licences and appraisal and exploration assets in the
East Midlands Basin and Weald Basin, in August 2005.

November 2005

Star Energy Group PLC announced that its first gas storage facility, the 10 Bscf Humbly Grove Gas
Storage Project, commenced injection operations. The entire capacity of the facility was contracted to
Vitol SA, a major oil and gas trading company.

February 2006

The Humbly Grove gas storage facility in Hampshire is handed over to the customer, Vitol SA, for full
customer nominations.

March 2008

On 19 December 2007 Petronas made a recommended increased and unconditional cash offer for all
of the issued and to be issued share capital of Star Energy Group PLC which was not already owned
by Petronas. Trading of Star Energy Group PLC shares on AIM was cancelled on 7 March 2008, on
which date Star Energy Group PLC became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Petronas.

September 2009

The re-registration of Star as a private company, instead of a plc, took place on 29 September 2009.

4 Of which 143 employees form part of the Acquisition.
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3. Group Structure

As part of the Acquisition, the Company will acquire the entire issued share capital of Star Energy
Group Limited and its subsidiaries: Star Energy Limited, Star Energy Oil and Gas Limited, Star Energy
Oil UK Limited, Star Energy (East Midlands) Limited and Star Energy Weald Basin Limited and will
take ownership of all Star’s producing oil and gas assets, with the exception of Humbly Grove and the
Herriard fields, which will be carved out from the current business, together with all the subsidiary
entities that concentrate on gas storage which will also be carved out from the Star Group.

The Star Subsidiaries that are being acquired as part of the Acquisition include:

Star Energy Group Limited

Headquartered at Grand Buildings, 1st Floor, 1-3 Strand, London WC2N 5EJ. The London office is the
base for the executive directors together with the planning and financial functions.

Star Energy Limited

Also headquartered at Grand Buildings, Strand, London and is the group’s operating consolidation
company.

Star Energy Weald Basin Limited

Comprises the Weald Basin assets centred around the Humbly Grove gathering centre in Hampshire.
In this area, the company owns and operates six producing oilfields, two gas fields and a number of
power generation installations. The oil and gas fields are Humbly Grove, Herriard, Storrington,
Horndean, Palmers Wood, Bletchingley and Albury.

Star Energy (East Midlands) Limited

Comprises the East Midlands assets centred around the Welton gathering centre in Lincolnshire. The
oil and gas fields are Welton, Stainton, Nettleham, Cold Hanworth, Scampton, and Scampton North.

Star Energy Oil UK Limited

Operates the oilfields centred around Stockbridge in Hampshire including Avington, and Goodworth.

Star Energy Oil and Gas Limited

Operates oil fields in Nottinghamshire, Lincolnshire and Leicestershire. These fields comprise
Gainsborough/Beckingham, Egmanton, Corringham, Glentworth, East Glentworth, Rempstone, Long
Clawson, Bothamsall and South Leverton. In addition, the company operates a number of power
generation installations and supplies natural gas to a number of industrial consumers in Gainsborough.

4. Licences

As part of the Acquisition, the Company will acquire the following Star Licences:

Licence Equity Holder Operator

PL220 Star Energy Oil & Gas Limited (100%) Star Energy Oil & Gas Limited

PL178 Star Energy Oil & Gas Limited (100%) Star Energy Oil & Gas Limited

PL179 Star Energy Oil & Gas Limited (100%) Star Energy Oil & Gas Limited

ML3 Star Energy Oil & Gas Limited (100%) Star Energy Oil & Gas Limited

ML7 Star Energy Oil & Gas Limited (100%) Star Energy Oil & Gas Limited

PEDL6 Star Energy Oil & Gas Limited (100%) Star Energy Oil & Gas Limited

ML4 Star Energy Oil & Gas Limited (100%) Star Energy Oil & Gas Limited

ML6 Star Energy Oil & Gas Limited (100%) Star Energy Oil & Gas Limited

AL9 Star Energy Oil & Gas Limited (100%) Star Energy Oil & Gas Limited

PL199 Star Energy Oil & Gas Limited (100%) Star Energy Oil & Gas Limited

PL233 Star Energy Weald Basin Limited (100%) Star Energy Weald Basin Limited

DL2 Star Energy Weald Basin Limited (100%) Star Energy Weald Basin Limited
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Licence Equity Holder Operator

PEDL21 Star Energy Weald Basin Limited (100%) Star Energy Weald Basin Limited

PEDL235 Star Energy Weald Basin Limited (100%) Star Energy Weald Basin Limited

PL249 Star Energy Weald Basin Limited (100%) Star Energy Weald Basin Limited

DL4 Star Energy Weald Basin Limited (100%) Star Energy Weald Basin Limited

PL205 Star Energy Weald Basin Limited (100%) Star Energy Weald Basin Limited

ML21 Star Energy Weald Basin Limited (100%) Star Energy Weald Basin Limited

ML18 Star Energy Weald Basin Limited (100%) Star Energy Weald Basin Limited

PL182 Star Energy Weald Basin Limited (100%) Star Energy Weald Basin Limited

PEDL70 Star Energy Weald Basin Limited (50%) Star Energy Weald Basin Limited

PL211 Star Energy Weald Basin Limited (89.13%) Star Energy Weald Basin Limited

5. Operations

Star has interests in 25 UK onshore licences in the East Midlands and the Weald Basin and is the
appointed operator in 23 of the 25 licence areas. In total, Star occupies or owns 105 sites with an
inventory of 247 wells (of which 85 are currently still in operation). The operating companies in East
Midlands and the Weald Basin are responsible for the day-to-day operations of the fields and are
supported by central services and development teams.

The East Midlands

The East Midlands has two primary production area centres: Welton and Gainsborough / Beckingham.
The Welton area production wells are beam pump type. The Welton area fields comprise:

• Welton A/B/C;

• Nettleham;

• Scampton (N&S);

• Stainton; and

• Cold Hanworth.

The Welton Gathering Centre (“WGC”) is the hub reception and process facility. The produced oil, gas
and water are separated at the WGC. Welton A/B/C and Nettleham flow to WGC via pipelines. All other
fields have oil and water storage and tanker pick-up. At WGC product oil is exported to Conoco
Immingham via road tanker, gas is used for power generation and produced water is pumped for
reinjection at Welton A. WGC is manned 24 hours per day. All other Welton area sites are normally
unmanned, but roving operators visit all sites daily during daytime hours.

The WGC has been designed for much higher throughputs than current use (6,000 bopd versus
current 950 bopd) and previously included many more process unit operations including gas
sweetening and amine units, fuel gas compression and GT power generation. The WGC site has a
large plot area. There are many site process unit operations that are now not in service or isolated,
though not disinvested, including a former rail export siding.

The Gainsborough / Beckingham facility manages its own production as well as the production from
seven other oilfields:

• Corringham,

• Glentworth,

• East Glentworth,

• Rempstone,

• Long Clawson,

• South Leverton

• Bothamsall
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Gainsborough / Beckingham wells flow to the Gainsborough-5 gathering and processing hub via
pipelines. All other fields have oil and water storage and tanker pick-up. The Gainsborough-5
processing facility separates oil, gas and water. Oil is exported to Conoco Immingham via road tanker,
gas is piped to Gainsborough-1 for power generation and produced water is pumped for reinjection. All
Gainsborough / Beckingham area oil production wells are beam pump type.

Gainsborough-5 is manned 24 hours per day, Gainsborough-1 is manned during daytime hours and
has 24 hour security and Long Clawson A is manned during daytime. All other Gainsborough area
sites are normally unmanned, but roving operators visit all sites daily during daytime hours.

Weald Basin

The Weald Basin sites cover the following areas: Stockbridge, Palmers Wood, Bletchingly, Storrington
and Horndean, which are manned sites with daytime operators. The two sites at Palmers Wood are
covered by one man as are the three sites at Horndean. The main Stockbridge site, Larkwhistle Farm
is manned during the day and operators from this site also service the Hill Farm, Folly Farm,
Goodworth and Avington sites. The Holybourne terminal is manned. The Albury gas field is presently
suspended following drilling of a new well for potential gas storage use. It is planned to reinstall
equipment for gas production and power generation for export.

Oil is exported by tanker from all sites except the Palmers Wood Coney Hill site which exports to the
Palmers Wood Rooks Nest site by pipeline. There are plans to abandon this pipeline. There is also a
pipeline into the Holybourne terminal from Humbly Grove. Produced water is either reinjected on site or
trucked to another site for reinjection. Power is imported or generated by an on-site diesel generator.
Oil is either exported by road tanker to the BP operated Hamble terminal on the Solent or by road
tanker to the Star operated Holybourne storage facility for onward transport by rail (5,000 stb loads) to
the Esso Fawley refinery, which is generally once per week. Generally oil from Stockbridge is exported
to Hamble and oil from the other fields is exported to Holyboure / Fawley. However, there is flexibility of
operation and any production can be exported via either route.

The production department has two work over rigs, four hot water flush rigs, one hot oil flush rig, and
one flushby unit for pulling beam pump well rods. Demand for the rigs is high.

6. Employees

The Star Group currently employs a total of 143 employees who will form part of the Acquisition.

A total of 28 employees which are not included in the figure shown in the paragraph above, are
excluded from the Acquisition and will remain with Petronas as part of its remaining gas storage
division.

7. Material Contracts

7.1 Shareholders Multicurrency Loan Agreement

On 30 June 2008 Petronas International Corporation Limited and Star Group Plc entered into an intra
group loan agreement under which Petronas lent to Star Group plc the following:

(i) US$113,258,250 to fully repay its existing third party loan facility;

(ii) US$38 million to settle hedging expenses relating to existing oil prices; and

(iii) GBP£15 million to finance existing businesses operational and capital expenses.

Prior written consent from Petronas is required in the event that there is a change of control in the
borrower. The agreement is governed by Malaysian law, and will be partially released and partially
assigned on Completion.
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PART 5

HISTORIAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON IGAS

The annual report and accounts of IGas Energy plc for the year ended 31 December 2010 together
with the independent auditor’s reports to the members of IGas Energy plc thereon is indicated below:

211



Independent auditor’s report to the members of IGas Energy plc

We have audited the group financial statements of IGas Energy plc for the year ended 31 December
2010 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the related notes 1 to 20. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Statement of Responsibilities set out on page 22, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the group financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the group financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s (APB’s) Ethical
Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s circumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the
directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial
and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited
financial statements. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies
we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the group financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s affairs as at 31 December 2010 and of its loss
for the year then ended;

• have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the group financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires
us to report to you if, in our opinion:

• certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Other matter

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of IGas Energy plc for the
year ended 31 December 2010.

Gary Donald (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

20 May 2011
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Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2010

Notes
2010
£000

2009
£000

Revenue 2 656 828
Cost of sales (589) (671)

Gross profit 67 157
Administrative expenses (1,780) (672)

Operating loss (1,713) (515)
Finance income 6 170 11

Loss on ordinary activities before tax (1,543) (504)
Tax on loss on ordinary activities 7 — —

Loss from continuing operations attributable to equity shareholders of the
Group (1,543) (504)

Basic and diluted (loss) per share (£/share) 8 (0.0169) (0.0076)
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2010

2010
£000

2009
£000

Loss for the year (1,543) (504)
Other comprehensive income for the year — —

Total comprehensive loss for the year (1,543) (504)
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Consolidated balance sheet

As at 31 December 2010

Notes
2010
£000

2009
£000

Non-current assets

Intangible exploration and evaluation assets 9 4,644 1,334
Property, plant and equipment 10 205 —

4,849 1,334

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 11 589 258
Cash and cash equivalents 12 12,087 17,501

12,676 17,759

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 13 (797) (931)

Net current assets 11,879 16,828

Total assets less current liabilities 16,728 18,162

Net assets 16,728 18,162

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 16 19,665 18,617
Share premium account 18 2,500 2,203
Share plan/warrant reserve 17 63 131
Treasury shares 18 (1,299) —
Retained earnings/(accumulated deficit) (4,201) (2,789)

Shareholders’ funds 16,728 18,162

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 20 May 2011 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Francis Gugen Andrew Austin
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2010

Called up
share capital

(Note 16)
£000

Share
premium
account

£000

Share
plan/warrant

reserve
£000

Treasury
shares
£000

Retained
earnings/

(accumulated
deficit)
£000

Total
£000

Balance at 1 January 2009 4,275 420 167 — (2,285) 2,577

Changes in equity for 2009

Total comprehensive loss for the year — — — — (504) (504)
Transfer to Share premium account — 36 (36) — — —
Issue of shares during year 14,342 2,868 — — — 17,210
Share issue costs — (1,121) — — — (1,121)

Balance at 31 December 2009 18,617 2,203 131 — (2,789) 18,162

Changes in equity for 2010

Total comprehensive loss for the year — — — — (1,543) (1,543)
Lapse of warrants — — (131) — 131 —
Employee share plans – cost under IFRS2

(note 17) — — 63 — — 63
Issue of shares during year 1,048 297 — (1,299) — 46

Balance at 31 December 2010 19,665 2,500 63 (1,299) (4,201) 16,728
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Consolidated cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 December 2010

Notes
2010
£000

2009
£000

Operating activities:

Loss for the year (1,543) (504)
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation 3 9 —
Share based payment charge 37 —
Finance income 6 (170) (11)
Increase in trade and other receivables (331) (408)
Increase in trade and other payables, net of accruals related to investing

activities 196 338

Net cash used in operating activities (1,802) (445)

Investing activities

Acquisition of exploration and evaluation assets (3,608) (432)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (220) —
Interest received 6 170 11

Net cash used in investing activities (3,658) (421)

Financing activities

Cash proceeds from issue of Ordinary Share Capital 16 46 17,210
Share issue costs 18 — (1,121)

Net cash from financing activities 46 16,089

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year (5,414) 15,223
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 17,501 2,278

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 12 12,087 17,501
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Consolidated financial statements – notes

As at 31 December 2010

1 Accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of IGas Energy plc (the “Company”) and subsidiaries (the
“Group”) have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards, adopted for use by the European Union (“IFRSs”) as they apply to the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2010, and with the Companies Act 2006. The accounts were
approved by the board and authorised for issue on 20 May 2011. IGas Energy plc is a public limited
company incorporated and registered in England and Wales.

The Group financial statements are presented in UK pound sterling and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (£000) except when otherwise indicated.

During the year, the Group adopted the following new and amended IFRS which were applicable to the
Group’s activities as of 1 January 2010.

International Accounting Standards (IFRS/IAS):

IFRS 2 Amendment to IFRS 2 – Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment
Transactions – This amendment clarifies that there shall now be
included transactions where the transfer of cash or other assets is
based on the price (or value) of the equity instruments of another group
entity. The Group has considered the effect of this interpretation and
has concluded that it is not expected to have any impact on the
financial statements.

1 January 2010

Certain new standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards have been published
and are mandatory only for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011 or
later periods but which the Group has not adopted early. Those that may be applicable to the Group in
future are as follows:

Effective date

International Accounting Standards (IFRS/IAS)

IAS 24 Amendment to IAS 24 – Related Party Disclosures – This amendment
clarifies the definition of a related party to simplify the identification of
such relationships and to eliminate inconsistencies in its application.
The revised standard introduces a partial exemption of disclosure
requirements for government-related entities. The Group has
considered the effect of this interpretation and has concluded that there
is no impact on the financial statements.

1 January 2011

IFRS 9 IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement –
IFRS 9 as issued reflects the first phase of the IASB’s work on the
replacement of IAS 39 and applies to classification and measurement
of financial assets as defined in IAS 39. The standard is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 2013. In subsequent
phases, the IASB will address classification and measurement of
financial liabilities, hedge accounting and derecognition. The adoption
of the first phase of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial assets. The Group will quantify
the effect in conjunction with the other phases, when issued, to present
a comprehensive picture.

1 January 2013

The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations will either
individually or collectively have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements in the period of
initial application. The Group does not anticipate adopting these standards and interpretations ahead of
their effective date.
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Improvements to IFRS

In May 2010 the IASB issued an omnibus of amendments to its standards. The amendments have not
been adopted as they become effective for annual periods starting on or after either 1 July 2010 or
1 January 2011:

• IFRS 3 Business Combinations

• IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

• IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

• IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

The Group, however, expects no impact from the adoption of the amendments on its financial position
or performance.

(b) Going concern

After reviewing the Group’s budgets and cash flow projections for 2011 and 2012, and taking into
consideration the acquisition of Nexen Exploration UK Ltd and the placing in March 2011, the current
operating environment, the risks and the Group’s liquidity risk management outlined in Note 15, the
Directors are satisfied that the Group has adequate resources to continue as a going concern. It is
therefore appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the 2010 Annual Report and
Financial Statements.

(c) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements present the results of IGas Energy plc and its subsidiaries as if
they formed a single entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries used in the preparation of
consolidated financial statements are based on consistent accounting policies to the parent. All
intercompany transactions and balances between Group companies, including unrealised profits
arising from them, are eliminated in full. Where shares are issued to an Employee Benefit Trust, and
the Company is the sponsoring entity it is treated as an extension of the entity.

At 31 December 2010 the Group comprised the Company and its subsidiaries Island Gas Limited and
Island Gas Operations Limited (formerly KP Renewables (Operations) Ltd).

(d) Joint ventures

The Group’s licence interests are all held jointly with others under arrangements whereby
unincorporated and jointly controlled ventures are used to explore, evaluate and ultimately develop and
produce from its gas interests. Accordingly, the Group accounts for its share of assets, liabilities,
income and expenditure of these jointly controlled assets, classified in the appropriate balance sheet
and income statement headings, except where its share of such amounts remain the responsibility of
another party in accordance with the terms of the carried interests as described at (h) below. Where
the Group enters into a farm-up agreement involving a licence in the exploration and evaluation phase,
the Group records all costs that it incurs under the terms of the joint operating agreement as amended
by the farm-up agreement as they are incurred.

(e) Significant accounting judgements and estimates

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

The Group invests in the exploration, evaluation, development and production of gas in the UK. Costs
are capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy as described at (h). Initial capitalisation of
costs is based on management’s judgement that capitalisation of such costs is in accordance to
applicable standards and that over time there will be an economic benefit associated with such cost.

Estimates and assumptions:

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

• Carrying value of intangible exploration and evaluation assets:

The Group has capitalised intangible exploration and evaluation assets in accordance with
IFRS 6, which are evaluated for impairment as described at (h) below. Any impairment reviews,
where required, involves estimates and assumptions related to matters (when appropriate), such
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as recoverable reserves; production profiles; review of forward gas and electricity prices;
development, operating and off-take costs; nature of land access agreements and planning
permissions; application of taxes; and other matters. Where the final outcome or revised
estimates related to such matters differ from the estimates used in any earlier impairment
reviews, the results of such differences, to the extent that they actually affect any impairment
provisions, are accounted for when such revisions are made. Details of the Groups Intangible
exploration and evaluation assets are disclosed in note 9.

(f) Exceptional items

Exceptional items are material items of income or expenditure which, in the opinion of the Directors,
due to their nature and infrequency require separate identification on the face of the income statement
to allow a better understanding of the financial performance in the year. A full explanation of such items
is given, where applicable, in the notes to the financial statements.

(g) Revenue

Revenue comprises the invoiced value of goods and services supplied by the Group, net of value
added tax and trade discounts. Revenue is recognised in the case of gas and electricity sales when
goods are delivered and title has passed and in the case of services rendered only once a legally
binding contract is in place. Amounts billed for services where the contract provides for their delivery
over a period of time are recognised evenly over the relevant period; amounts due for all other services
are recognised as the services are provided.

(h) Non-current assets (intangible exploration and evaluation assets and property plant and

equipment)

Intangible exploration and evaluation assets

The Group accounts for exploration and evaluation costs in accordance with the requirements of
IFRS 6 “Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources” as follows:

• Exploration and evaluation assets are carried at cost less any impairment and are not
depreciated or amortised.

• Expenditures recognised as exploration and evaluation assets comprise those related to
acquisition of rights to explore; topographical, geological, geochemical and geophysical studies;
exploratory drilling (including coring and sampling); activities in relation to evaluating the technical
feasibility and commercial viability of extracting gas (including appraisal drilling and production
tests); any land rights acquired for the sole purpose of effecting these activities. These costs
include employee remuneration, materials and consumables, equipment costs and payments
made to contractors.

• Any costs incurred prior to obtaining the legal rights to explore an area are expensed immediately
to the Income Statement. Expenditures related to development and production activities are not
recognised as exploration and evaluation assets.

• Tangible assets acquired for use in exploration and evaluation activities are classified as
property, plant and equipment. However, to the extent that such tangible assets are consumed in
developing an intangible exploration and evaluation asset, the amount reflecting that
consumption is recorded as part of the exploration and evaluation asset.

• Expenditures recognised as exploration and evaluation assets are initially accumulated and
capitalised by reference to appropriate geographic areas (cash generation units or CGU), which
may not be larger than a business segment, currently the entirety of the Group’s UK gas
business.

• Expenditure recognised as exploration and evaluation assets are transferred to property plant
and equipment, interests in oil and gas properties when technical feasibility and commercial
viability of extracting gas is demonstrable. Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for
impairment (on the basis described below), and any impairment loss recognised, before
reclassification.

• Expenditures recognised as exploration and evaluation assets are tested for impairment
whenever facts and circumstances suggest that they may be impaired, which includes when a
licence is approaching the end of its term and is not expected to be renewed; there are no
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substantive plans for continued exploration or evaluation of an area; the Group decides to
abandon an area; whilst development is likely to proceed in an area there are indications that the
exploration and evaluation asset costs are unlikely to be recovered in full either by development
or through sale.

• Net proceeds from any disposal of exploration and evaluation assets are initially credited against
previously capitalised costs, with any surplus proceeds being credited to the consolidated Income
Statement.

Property plant and equipment, interests in oil and gas properties

Property plant and equipment, interests in oil and gas properties are accounted for as follows:

• Expenditure relating to evaluated properties is depleted on a unit-of-production basis,
commencing at the start of commercial production. The depletion charge is calculated according
to the proportion that production bears to the recoverable reserves for each property.

• The Group’s property plant and equipment, interests in oil and gas properties are assessed for
indications of impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value of an asset may not be recoverable, when impairment is computed on the basis as set out
below. Any impairment in value is charged to the Income Statement as additional depreciation.

• Net proceeds from any disposal of development/producing assets are compared to the previously
capitalised costs for the relevant asset or group of assets. A gain or loss on disposal of a
development/producing asset is recognised in the Income Statement to the extent that the net
proceeds exceed or are less than the appropriate portion of the net capitalised costs of the asset
or group of assets.

Impairment

Impairment reviews, when required as described above, are carried out on the following basis:

• By comparing the sum of any amounts carried as exploration and evaluation assets and as
property plant and equipment as compared to the recoverable amount.

• The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use. The Group generally relies on fair value less cost to sell assessed either by reference to
comparable market transactions between a willing buyer and a willing seller or on the same basis
as used by willing buyers and sellers in the oil and gas industry. When assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset or CGU.

• Where there has been a charge for impairment in an earlier period, that charge will be reversed
in a later period where there has been a change in circumstances to the extent that the
recoverable amount is higher than the net book value at the time. In reversing impairment losses,
the carrying amount of the asset will be increased to the lower of its original carrying value and
the carrying value that would have been determined (net of depletion) had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior periods.

Decommissioning

Where a liability for the removal of production facilities or site restoration exists, a provision for
decommissioning is recognised. The amount recognised is discounted to its present value and is
reflected in the Group’s non-current liabilities. A corresponding asset is included in the appropriate
category of the Group’s Non-current assets (intangible exploration and evaluation assets and property
plant and equipment), depending on the accounting treatment adopted for the underlying operations/
asset leading to the decommissioning provision. The asset is assessed for impairment and or depleted
in accordance with the Group’s policies as set out above.

Carried interests

Where the Group has entered into carried interest agreements and the Group’s interest is being carried
by a third party, no amounts are recorded in the financial statements where expenditure incurred under
such agreements is not refundable. Where expenditure is refundable, out of what would but for the
carry agreements have been the Group’s share of production, the Group records amounts as
non-current assets, with a corresponding offset in current liabilities or non-current liabilities, as
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appropriate, but only once it is apparent that it is more likely than not that future production will be
adequate to result in a refund under the terms of any carry agreement; the Group records refunds only
to the extent that they are expected to be repayable.

Non oil and gas related property plant and equipment

Other property plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is
provided at rates calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual values,
over their estimated useful lives at the following rates, with any impairment being accounted for as
additional depreciation:

Computer equipment – over three years on a straight line basis
Motor Vehicles – over four years on a straight line basis
Furniture and fixtures – over five years on a straight line basis
Equipment used for exploration and

evaluation – between six and twelve years on a straight line basis
Leasehold property improvements – over the period of the lease

The Group does not capitalise amounts considered to be immaterial.

(i) Financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash held on current account or on short-term
deposits at variable interest rates with original maturity periods of up to three months. Any interest
earned is accrued monthly and classified as interest income within finance income.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value when related amounts are invoiced, then carried
at this amount less any allowances for doubtful debts or provision made for impairment of these
receivables.

Trade and other payables

These financial liabilities are all non interest bearing and are initially recognised at the fair value of the
consideration payable.

Impairment of financial assets

In relation to trade receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective evidence
(such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor) that the Group will
not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the original terms of the invoice. The carrying
amount of receivables is reduced through use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are
derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible.

(j) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date including whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Operating leases

Rentals are charged to the Income Statement on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

(k) Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered or paid to the tax authorities. Taxable (loss)/profit differs from the (loss)/profit
before taxation as reported in the Income Statement because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all temporary differences that have originated but not reversed
at the balance sheet date. Temporary differences arise from differences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are not discounted. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is regarded as more likely than not that they will be recovered.

(l) Share based payments

Where share options or warrants are awarded to employees (including Directors), the fair value of the
options or warrants at the date of the grant is recorded in equity over the vesting period. Non-market
vesting conditions, but only those related to service and performance, are taken into account by
adjusting the number of equity instruments expected to vest at each balance sheet date so that,
ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period is based on the number of
options that eventually vest. All other vesting conditions, including Market vesting conditions, are
factored in to the fair value of the options or warrants granted. As long as all other vesting conditions
are satisfied, the amount recorded is computed irrespective of whether the Market vesting conditions
are satisfied. The cumulative amount recognised is not adjusted for the failure to achieve a Market
vesting condition; although equity no longer required for options or warrants may be transferred to
another equity reserve.

Where the terms and conditions of options or warrants are modified before they vest, the increase in
the fair value of the options, measured immediately before and after the modification, is also recorded
in equity over the remaining vesting period.

Where equity instruments are granted to persons other than employees, the amount recognised in
equity is the fair value of goods and services received.

Charges corresponding to the amounts recognised in equity are accounted for as a cost against profit
and loss unless the services rendered (and discharged by share based payments) relate to an
issuance of equity or qualify for capitalisation as a non-current asset. In the case of an issuance of
equity, the charge is to the same equity reserve as cash costs related to such an issuance would be
charged. Costs may be capitalised within non-current assets in the event of services being rendered in
connection with an acquisition or intangible exploration and evaluation assets or property plant and
equipment.

Where shares are issued to an Employee Benefit Trust, and the Company is the sponsoring entity, the
value of such shares at issue will be recorded in share capital and share premium account in the
ordinary way, but will not affect shareholders’ funds since this same value will be shown as a deduction
from shareholders’ funds by way of a separate component of equity (Treasury shares).

(m) Equity

Equity instruments issued by the Company are usually recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs, and allocated between called up share capital and share premium accounts as
appropriate.

(n) Foreign currency

Transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency UK pound sterling are
translated at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date. All differences that arise are recorded in the income statement.

2 Revenue and segment information

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components
of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which
financial information is available. In the case of the Group the CODM are the Chief Executive Officer
and the Board of Directors and all information reported to the CODM is based on the consolidated
results of the Group as a single operating segment as the Group’s activities all relate to unconventional
gas, including CBM in the UK. Therefore the Group has only one operating and reportable segment as
reflected in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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All revenue which represents turnover arises within the United Kingdom and relates to external parties.
The revenue for 2010 and 2009 related to the supply of CBM services and expertise under
management service contracts (£536 thousand), to the supply of electricity generation services and to
sales of electricity associated with CBM production (£120 thousand). £592 thousand of the Group’s
revenue was derived from a single customer (2009: £816 thousand).

All the Group’s non-current assets are in the United Kingdom.

3 Operating loss

2010
£000

2009
£000

Operating loss is stated after charging:
Staff Costs (see notes 4 and 5) 1,123 807
Depreciation 9 —
Auditor’s remuneration:
Audit of the financial statements 57 35
Other fees paid to Ernst & Young LLP – Audits of subsidiaries 10 43

£39 thousand of the Group’s remuneration costs has been capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy.

4 Employee information

2010
£000

2009
£000

Staff costs comprised:
Wages and salaries 923 718
Social Security Costs 137 89
Employee share based cost under IFRS 2 63 —

1,123 807

No. No.

Average number of employees in the period:
Operations, including services 4 3
Administrative 2 2

6 5

£39 thousand of the Group’s remuneration costs has been capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy.

5 Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of the Directors for the year was as follows:

Executive Directors
Salary/Fees

£000
Bonus
£000

Taxable
Benefits

£000
Pensions

£000

2010
Total
£000

2009
Total
£000

F Gugen – Executive Chairman (to 19 October) 83 — — — 83 150
A Austin – Chief Executive Officer 235 117 1 — 353 300
B Cheshire – Executive Technical Director 100 25 — — 125 150
J Blaymires – COO (Appointed 19 October 2010) 29 9 1 — 39 —

Total – Executive Directors 447 151 2 — 600 600

Non-Executive Directors

F Gugen – Non-Executive Chairman (from
19 October) 17 — — — 17 —

J Bryant – Senior Independent 35 — — — 35 20
R Armstrong 35 — — — 35 20
J Hamilton – (Appointed 10 December 2009) 35 — — — 35 1
P Redmond (Resigned 10 December 2009) — — — — — 29

Total – Non-Executive Directors 122 — — — 122 70
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Directors’ share schemes/warrants

At 31 December 2010 the Executive Directors held the following awards under the Long Term
Incentive Plan and the Share Option scheme as follows;

Long Term Incentive Plan

2010
Number

Exercise price
(p/share)

2009
Number

Exercise price
(p/share)

A Austin 700,000 — — —
J Blaymires 375,000 — — —

Share Option Plan

2010
Number

Exercise price
(p/share)

2009
Number

Exercise price
(p/share)

J Blaymires 910,930 70 — —

Warrants
At 31 December 2010 the Directors held the following warrants over the Ordinary Shares of 50p each
of the Company as follows;

2009
Number

Exercise price
(p/share)

Lapsed in
year

2010
Number

R J Armstrong 82,500 55 (82,500) —

27,500 75 (27,500) —

J Bryant 82,500 55 (82,500) —

27,500 75 (27,500) —

6 Finance income

2010
£000

2009
£000

Interest receivable comprised:
Interest on short-term deposits 170 11

7 Tax on loss on ordinary activities

2010
£000

2009
£000

UK corporation tax:
Current tax on income for the year — —

Total UK taxation — —

Tax on loss on ordinary activities — —

Factors affecting the tax charge

The tax assessed for the year does not reflect a credit equivalent to the loss on ordinary activities
multiplied by the small profits rate of corporation tax in the United Kingdom of 21% (2009: 21%). A
reconciliation of the UK small companies statutory corporation tax rate applicable to the Group’s loss
before tax to the Group’s total tax charge is as follows:

2010
£000

2009
£000

(Loss) on ordinary activities before tax (1,543) (504)

(Loss) on ordinary activities multiplied by the small profit rate of corporation tax in the
UK for small companies of 21% (2009: 21%) (324) (106)

Tax effect of expenses not allowable for tax purposes 6 1
Net increase in unrecognised losses carried forward 318 105

Tax on loss on ordinary activities — —
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Tax losses

The Group’s tax losses amount to:

2010
£000

2009
£000

Not considered sufficiently certain of utilisation to set up deferred tax assets*:

Company:

Excess management expenses 4,830 3,488
Related to Share based payment transactions 13 —

IGL:

Petroliferous – Trading loss 156 17

Island Gas Operations Limited (“IGO”):

Trading loss 1,200 1,200

Not affecting deferred taxes, as they relate to undepreciated capitalised costs**:

IGL:

Petroliferous – Minerals extraction allowances 4,644 1,386

* Deferred tax losses have not been recognised in respect of temporary differences of Group
companies whose future profits are not considered sufficiently certain to offset these temporary
differences.

** As at 31 December 2010 no temporary difference arises as a result of Minerals Extraction
Allowances as they have not been claimed and depreciation of the related capitalised costs has
not commenced (2009: nil).

In 2009 IGL was awarded a Field Development Plan and so commenced a Petroliferous Trade (as
defined for tax purposes), which will enable it to offset its losses against any future Petroliferous Trade
profits. IGO’s losses may only be offset against future profits of IGO, if any. The tax losses have no
expiry date.

8 Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent by the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss attributable to the ordinary equity holders of
the parent by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted
average number of Ordinary Shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential
Ordinary Shares into Ordinary Shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share
computations:

2010 2009

Basic EPS – Ordinary Shares of 50p each (£) (0.0169) (0.0076)
Diluted EPS – Ordinary Shares of 50p each (£) (0.0169) (0.0076)
(Loss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent – £000 (1,543) (504)
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in the year – basic EPS 91,070,160 66,412,564
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares in the year – diluted EPS 91,070,160 66,412,564

There are 2,447,304 potentially dilutive warrants and options over the Ordinary Shares at
31 December 2010 (2009: 440,450), which are not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per
share because they were anti-dilutive for the year as their conversion to Ordinary Shares would
decrease the loss per share.
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9 Intangible exploration and evaluation assets

2010
£000

2009
£000

Cost

At 1 January 1,334 476
Additions 3,310 858

At 31 December 4,644 1,334

Amortisation

At 1 January — —
Charge for the year, including impairment — —

At 31 December — —

Net book amount

At 31 December 4,644 1,334

At 1 January 1,334 476

Under certain agreements which the Group had in place with Nexen Exploration U.K. Limited (“Nexen”
and the “Nexen Carry Agreements”) as at 31 December 2010, Nexen provides 100% of the funding
required for work programmes up to a gross spend of £26.5 million. The repayment to Nexen of any
amounts carried under these arrangements was dependent, on a licence by licence basis, on
successful operations yielding sufficient production to support repayment in accordance with terms of
the Nexen Carry Agreements. At 31 December 2010 £5.6 million had been carried (2009: £5.1 million),
which has not been recorded as either non-current assets or liabilities, since to 31 December 2010
expenditure has been mainly related to appraisal work and repayment was not then sufficiently certain.

On 5 August 2009 and 11 December 2009 the Group entered into farm-up agreements with Nexen (the
“Farm-up Agreements”), under which the Group had agreed to meet 100% of certain costs incurred in
relation to certain licences, thereby discharging what, but for these agreements, would have been
Nexen’s share of such licence costs. The Group’s commitment was for up to £2 million of gross costs
in the case of the agreement of 5 August 2009 and for £5 million of gross costs in the case of the
agreement of 11 December 2009. In return the Group’s interest in the Swallowcroft licences in
Staffordshire (excluding PEDL 78-2) rose from 20% to 35%, in the Point of Ayr licences from 50% to
75% and in Northwest licences from 20% to 35%.

10 Property, plant and equipment

Used for
Exploration

and
Evaluation

£000

Fixtures,
fittings and
equipment

£000

Motor
vehicles

£000
Total
£000

Cost

At 1 January 2009 and 1 January 2010 — — — —
Additions 179 21 20 220
Disposals — — — —

At 31 December 2010 179 21 20 220

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2009 and 1 January 2010 — — — —
Charge for the year 6 4 5 15
Disposals — — — —

At 31 December 2010 6 4 5 15

Carrying amount 173 17 15 205

At 31 December 2010

At 31 December 2009 — — — —
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11 Trade and other receivables

2010
£000

2009
£000

VAT recoverable 375 99
Trade debtors 61 114
Accrued income 73 —
Other debtors — 3
Prepayments 80 42

589 258

The carrying value of each of the Group’s financial assets being trade debtors is considered to be a
reasonable approximation of its fair value.

All of the Group’s financial assets are from debtors of good credit standing and have been reviewed for
indicators of impairment and no impairment provision was found to be required (2009: £nil).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of assets
listed in the table above.

The trade debtor balance reported above is from one customer which represents a concentration of
credit risk.

Of the Group’s financial assets as stated above £61 thousand (2009: £114 thousand) were past due
but not impaired at the reporting date, of which the ageing was:

2010
£000

2009
£000

Not more than three months 61 50
More than three months but not more than six months — 64
More than six months but not more than one year — —

61 114

12 Cash and cash equivalents

2010
£000

2009
£000

Cash at bank and in hand 12,087 17,501

12,087 17,501

The carrying value of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents as stated above is considered to be a
reasonable approximation of their fair value.

The Group only deposits cash surpluses with major banks that have acceptable credit ratings of “AA”
or better, except that the Group will make deposits with banks where the UK government is the major
shareholder.

13 Current liabilities

2010
£000

2009
£000

Trade and other payables:
Trade creditors 240 109
Employment related taxation 42 102
Deferred revenue — 89
Accruals and other creditors 515 631

797 931

The carrying value of each of the Group’s financial liabilities being trade creditors is considered to be a
reasonable approximation of its fair value. All creditors are payable within one month and no creditors
have been outstanding for longer than three months (2009: all within one month).
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14 Commitments

The Group’s capital and lease commitments comprised:

2010
£000

2009
£000

Capital Commitments:
Obligation under 13th licensing round 1,000 1,000
Decommissioning 26 26
Less: Amounts covered by Nexen Carry Agreements (141) (637)

885 389
Obligation under the 11 December 2009 farm-up agreement with Nexen 2,036 5,000

Total capital commitments 2,921 5,389

The Nexen Carry Agreements and the farm-up agreements are as further described in
note 9, including the up to £2 million provided for by the first farm-up agreement, which
is not a firm binding commitment.

Operating lease commitments:

Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised in income for the year 63 35

At the balance sheet date the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum
lease payments under non cancellable operating leases, all falling due in under one
year 45 64

15 Financial instruments

The Group’s financial instruments principally comprise cash at bank, and various items such as trade
debtors and creditors that arise directly from operations. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to provide finance for the Group’s operations.

Financial assets and liabilities

The Group’s policy is to ensure that adequate cash is available and the Group does not trade in
financial instruments and has not entered into any derivative transactions.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the Group’s management of working capital and is the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Cash forecasts and plans are updated
frequently and reviewed regularly by management and the Board. The Groups liquidity requirements
have been met principally through the Nexen Carry Agreements and internal cash resources. The
Group has no long-term borrowings, and based on current projections the Group has sufficient funds to
meet current obligations as they fall due. Details of the maturity dates of the Group’s financial liabilities
are provided in note 13.

Interest rate risk profile of financial assets

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates related to the published rate of the bank.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk from changes in interest rates impacting future cash flows
arising from its financial instruments, principally cash balances held at the balance sheet date. A
sensitivity analysis has been performed to demonstrate the sensitivity of financial assets and financial
liabilities to a reasonably possible change in interest rates applied to a full year from the balance sheet
date, assuming the amount of the assets at balance sheet date are available for the whole year. An
increase/ decrease in interest rates of 50 basis points, with all other variables held constant, results in
an decrease/ increase in the Group’s loss before tax of £60 thousand /£(60) thousand respectively
(2009: decrease/ increase of £88 thousand /£(88) thousand). There is no effect on the Group’s equity
other than the equivalent effect to that on loss before tax. This is wholly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate cash and cash equivalents.

Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the balances as disclosed for trade debtors in note 11
and for cash in note 12.
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Cash and Treasury

Cash and treasury credit risks are mitigated through the exclusive use of institutions that carry
published grade “AA” or better credit ratings so as to minimise counterparty risk, except that the Group
will make deposits with banks where the United Kingdom government is the major shareholder.
£11.7 million (2009: £16 million) of cash and cash equivalents is deposited with a single institution.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables credit risks are mitigated by only dealing with institutions that have investment grade
credit ratings. £61 thousand (2009: £111 thousand) of trade receivables are due from a single
counterparty.

Capital management

The Group considers its capital to comprise its Ordinary Share capital and share premium. In
managing its capital, the Group’s primary objective is to ensure its continued ability to provide a return
to equity shareholders, principally through capital growth. The Group currently has no borrowings. The
Group’s principal cash source has been the issuance of share capital.

16 Share capital

On 31 December 2007 the Company completed a reverse takeover whereby IGL became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company but with IGL’s shareholders acquiring 94% of the Ordinary Share
capital of the combined entity (the “Reverse”).

In accordance with the required accounting for a reverse, the nominal value of the Company’s share
capital is not reflected in the Group’s consolidated equity. For the purposes of the consolidated
accounts share capital was recorded at the date of the Reverse at a value equal to the deemed cost of
the Reverse, being the adjusted market value of the Company as last quoted immediately prior to the
announcement of the Reverse, plus the equity of IGL; the effective acquiring company.

Accordingly, share capital and the share capital account comprised:

Ordinary Shares Deferred shares

No.
£000

Nominal value No.
£000

Nominal value

Authorised

1 January 2009, Ordinary Shares of 50p each 89,114,796 44,557

1 January 2009, Deferred Shares of 95p each 46,589,662 443

10 December 2009 new Ordinary Shares created 22,916,667 11,459

31 December 2009 112,031,463 56,016 46,589,662 443

31 December 2010 112,031,463 56,016 46,589,662 443

Ordinary Shares Deferred shares

No.
£000

Nominal value No.
£000

Nominal value

Issued and fully paid

1 January 2009, Ordinary Shares of 50p each 62,329,642 31,165

14 July 2009 shares issued 5,766,666 2,883
10 December 2009 shares issued 22,916,667 11,459

31 December 2009, Ordinary Shares of 50p each 91,012,975 45,507 — —

23 April 2010 shares issued 82,500 41
26 October 2010 shares issued 2,013,956 1,007

31 December 2010, Ordinary Shares of 50p each 93,109,431 46,555 — —

£000

Share capital account

At 1 January 2009 4,275

Shares issued during the year 14,342

At 31 December 2009 18,617

Shares issued during the year 1,048

At 31 December 2010 19,665
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The following share transactions took place since 1 January 2009:

• 14 July 2009 – The Company issued 5,766,666 Ordinary 50p Shares at a price of 60p
each;

• 10 December 2009 – The Company issued 22,916,667 Ordinary 50p Shares at a price of 60p
each;

• 23 April 2010 – The Company issued 82,500 Ordinary 50p Shares at a price of 55p each;
and

• 26 October 2010 – The Company issued 2,013,956 Ordinary 50p shares at a price of 64.5p
each

Deferred shares have no voting rights and shall not be entitled to any dividends or any other right or
participation in the profits of the Group.

17 Share plan/warrant reserve

The Company has made equity settled share based payments, valued as follows:

2010
£000

2009
£000

Directors:
Balance 1 January 131 167
Transfer to retained earnings/(accumulated deficit) account re warrants (131) (36)
Employee share plans – cost under IFRS 2 63 —

Balance 31 December 63 131

Warrants

All warrants vested on grant and accordingly the key assumptions made in arriving at the Black–
Scholes valuations were: share price on date of grant, adjusted for subsequent consolidations where
appropriate and the length of time for which the warrants were expected to remain exercisable. A long-
term risk free interest rate of 5% and an implied volatility of 20% were used in valuing the warrants at
the time of granting. It was also assumed that no dividends would be paid during the life of the
warrants.

Movement in the Share warrant reserve during the year was as follows:

2010
No

2010
Weighted
average
exercise

price
(pence)

2009
No

2009
Weighted
average
exercise

price
(pence)

At 1 January 440,000 60 523,830 58
Exercised in Period (82,500) 55 — —
Lapsed in Period (357,500) 60 (83,830) 50
Outstanding at 31 December — 440,000 60

Exercisable at 31 December — 440,000 60

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the warrants outstanding as at 31 December 2010
is nil (2009: 12 months) with no maximum remaining term of options granted, (2009: 12 months).

Employee share plans – Equity settled

Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”)
In October 2010 the Company adopted a Long Term Incentive Plan scheme for certain key employees
of the Group. Under the LTIP, participants can each be granted nil cost options over up to 1.5% of the
issued share capital of the Company (subject to an overall plan limit of 7.5% of the issued share capital
of the Company for all participants). The LTIP has a three year performance period and awards vest
subject to the achievement of stretching share price targets. On a change of control prior to the third
anniversary of the grant date, a revised share price target reflecting the reduction in the performance
period shall instead be used to determine the extent to which LTIP options vest. Other than on a
change of control, 50% of vested awards can be exercised and sold on vesting, with the remaining
50% becoming exercisable on the first anniversary of vesting.
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Details of the LTIPs outstanding during the year are as follows:

Number of
LTIPs

2010
Weighted
average
exercise

price
(in £) LTIPs

2009
Weighted
average
exercise

price
(in £)

Outstanding at beginning of year — — — —
Granted during the year 1,125,000 nil — —
Forfeited during the year — — — —
Exercised during the year — — — —

Outstanding at the end of the year 1,125,000 nil — —

Exercisable at the end of the year — — — —

There were no LTIPs exercised during the year. The LTIPs outstanding at 31 December 2010 had both
a weighted average remaining contractual life and maximum term remaining of 9.75 years.

The total charge for the year was £6 thousand. Of this amount, £2 thousand was capitalised and
£4 thousand was charged to the income statement in relation to the fair value of the awards granted
under the LTIP scheme measured at grant date using a Monte Carlo Simulation Model.

The inputs into the Monte Carlo model were as follows:

2010

Weighted average share price 64.5p
Weighted average exercise price Nil
Expected volatility 35%
Expected life 6.5 years
Risk-free rate 1.09%
Expected dividends 0%

The expected life is the period from date of grant to the assumed exercise date. Expected volatility was
determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Company’s share price. The weighted average
fair value of the awards granted in 2010 was 6p (2009: nil).

Share Option plan
In October 2010 the Company adopted a Share option plan for certain key employees of the Group.
Both executives and employees may participate in the Share Option Plan. Typically each individual
participant can be granted options under the Share Option Plan with a market value at grant of up to
100% of his base salary, although this limit can be exceeded in exceptional circumstances. Share
options vest in three equal tranches over a three year period from the date of grant and vested options
are exercisable subject to the attainment of a Company share price target.

2010 grants under the Share Option Plan are subject to an exercise price of 70p per share.

Details of the Share options outstanding during the year are as follows:

Number of
share

options

2010
Weighted
average
exercise

price
(in £)

Number of
share

options

2009
Weighted
average
exercise

price
(in £)

Outstanding at beginning of year — — — —
Granted during the year 1,322,204 0.70 — —
Forfeited during the year — — — —
Exercised during the year — — — —

Outstanding at the end of the year 1,322,204 0.70 — —

Exercisable at the end of the year — — — —

There were no Options exercised during the year. The unvested Options outstanding at 31 December
2010 had both a weighted average remaining contractual life and maximum remaining term of 9.75
years.

232



The total charge for the year was £57 thousand. Of this amount, £24 thousand was capitalised and
£33 thousand was charged to the income statement in relation to the fair value of the awards granted
under the Share Option scheme measured at grant date using a Monte Carlo Simulation Model.

The inputs into the Monte Carlo model are as follows:

2010

Weighted average share price 64.5p
Weighted average exercise price Nil
Expected volatility 35%
Expected life 5 – 6.5 years
Risk-free rate 1.09%
Expected dividends 0%

The expected life is the period from date of grant to the assumed exercise date. Expected volatility was
determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Company’s share price. The weighted average
fair value of the awards granted in 2010 was 12p (2009: nil).

18 Other reserves

• Share premium account – The share premium account of the Group arises from the capital that
the Company raises upon issuing shares for consideration in excess of the nominal value of the
shares net of the costs of issuing the new shares. During the year the Company issued 82,500
and 2,013,956 Ordinary 50p Shares at a price of 55p and 64.5p each (2009: 28,683,333 Ordinary
50p Shares at a price of 60p each). The cost of the issue was nil (2009: £1,121 thousand).
Together these events resulted in a net movement in the Share Premium reserve of
£297 thousand (2009: £1,783 thousand).

• Treasury shares – The Treasury shares of the Group has arisen in connection with the shares
issued to the IGas Employee Benefit Trust, of which the Company is the sponsoring entity. The
value of such shares is recorded in share capital and share premium account in the ordinary way
and is also shown as a deduction from equity in this separate other reserve account; and so there
is not net effect on shareholders” funds. During the period 2,013,956 shares were issued to the
Employee Benefit Trust.

• Retained earnings/(accumulated deficit) – This represents the historic accumulated losses less
profits made by the Group accounted for under reverse accounting as explained in Note 1(m) and
from transfers from the Share plan/warrant reserve, when warrants lapse.

19 Related party transactions

Key management personnel

There are no key management personnel other than Directors of the Company.

2010
£000

2009
£000

Short-term employee benefits 854 746
Share plan 22 —

876 746

Short-term employee benefits
These amounts comprise fees paid to the Directors in respect of salary and benefits earned during the
relevant financial year, plus bonuses awarded for the year.

Share plan
This is the cost to the Group of Directors’ participation in LTIPs and Share Option plans, as measured
by the fair value of LTIPs and options granted, accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2.

Further details regarding transactions with the Directors of the Group are disclosed in Note 5.

There are no other related party transactions.
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20 Subsequent events

On 9 March 2011, the Company acquired the entire issued share capital of Nexen Exploration UK
Limited (renamed IGas Exploration Limited) for a consideration of £25.6 million (the “Acquisition”).
39,714,290 new ordinary shares of 50p were allotted to Nexen Petroleum U.K. Limited credited as fully
paid in consideration for the Acquisition. The acquisition is aligned with the Group’s strategy by
securing 100% ownership of assets and operatorship through the purchase of Nexen Exploration UK
Limited.

The Company raised gross proceeds of £20.625 million for 27,500,000 new ordinary 50p shares when
the Acquisition became unconditional on 9 March 2011.

Following completion of the Placing and the Acquisition, the Company’s current issued share capital is
160,323,721 ordinary shares.

On 22 March 2011, A Austin disposed of 770,000 shares.
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PART 6

PART A

UNAUDITED FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON STAR GROUP

Historical Unaudited Combined Financial Information relating to the Target Group for the three

years ended 31 March 2011

Historical Unaudited Combined Income Statement

For the years ended 31 March
2009
£’000

2010
£’000

2011
£’000

Revenue 47,075 43,510 53,285

Cost of Sales:
Depletion, depreciation and amortisation (5,366) (6,594) (6,229)
Other costs of sales (45,255) (17,248) (17,859)

Total cost of sales (50,621) (23,842) (24,088)

Gross profit / (loss) (3,546) 19,668 29,197

Administration expenses (6,688) (7,167) (4,898)
Impairment of unsuccessful exploration and evaluation assets (19,114) 2,755 (3,209)
Other income 1,007 934 356
Profit on sale of fixed assets (10) 101 2

Operating profit / (loss) (28,351) 16,291 21,448

Finance income 313 2,815 3,925
Finance costs (26,881) (2,730) (2,827)
Share of net gain in associate 207 415 —

Profit / (loss) before taxation (54,712) 16,791 22,547

Income tax 8,523 (12,895) (15,642)

Retained profit / (loss) for the financial year (46,189) 3,896 6,905
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Historical Unaudited Combined Balance Sheet

For the years ended 31 March
2009
£’000

2010
£’000

2011
£’000

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 8,513 9,566 12,400
Property, plant & equipment 86,574 95,108 96,699
Investment in associate 207 622 1,488
Other investments 530 — —

Total non-current assets 95,824 105,296 110,587

Current assets

Inventories 665 243 206
Trade and other receivables 10,965 12,479 9,564
Related party debtors 105,313 104,746 51,759
Cash at bank and in hand 1,171 15,582 32,626

Total current assets 118,114 133,050 94,155

TOTAL ASSETS 213,938 238,346 204,742

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables (12,708) (7,303) (12,815)
Borrowings (84) (77) (82)

Total current liabilities (12,792) (7,380) (12,897)

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings (210) (133) (51)
Loans from related parties (104,401) (113,751) (59,208)
Deferred tax liabilities (6,805) (19,677) (26,757)
Provisions (4,916) (8,763) (10,241)

Total non-current liabilities (116,332) (142,324) (96,257)

Net assets 84,814 88,642 95,588

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 9,523 9,523 9,526
Share premium account 155,455 155,455 155,454
Merger reserve (45,093) (45,093) (45,093)
Capital reserve 475 475 475
Retained (deficit) (35,546) (31,718) (24,774)

Total Equity 84,814 88,642 95,588

236



Introductory notes to the Historical Unaudited Combined Financial Information

1. Introduction

The Star Group1 has historically comprised entities in the businesses of oil and gas exploration and
production and gas storage. As part of the Transaction, IGas Energy plc will purchase all Star Group
companies that are involved in the oil and gas exploration and production business of Star (the subject
of the transaction being the “Target Group”). The principal activities of the legal entities that form the
Target Group are as follows:

Company Principal activity Equity interest

Star Energy Group Ltd Parent / Service company 100%

Star Energy Ltd Service company 100%

Star Energy (East Midlands)
Ltd

Previously, oil and gas exploration, development and
production, and electricity generation, but all assets,
liabilities and related trade were transferred to Star
Energy Oil & Gas Ltd as of 31 March 2011 as part of
a group wide restructuring

100%

Star Energy Oil & Gas Ltd
(East Midlands)

Oil and gas exploration, development and production,
and electricity generation

100%

Star Energy Oil UK Ltd Previously, oil and gas development and production,
but all assets, liabilities and related trade were
transferred to Star Energy Weald Basin Ltd as of
31 March 2011 as part of a group wide restructuring

100%

Star Energy Weald Basin Ltd* Oil and gas exploration, development and production,
and electricity generation

100%

Larchford Limited (classified as
an ‘associate’)

Oil rig contractor 33%

* Star Energy Weald Basin Ltd includes the Humbly Grove and Herriard production and gas
storage assets which will be excluded from the Transaction

The financial information in this document does not purport to indicate the results of operations or the
financial position that would have resulted had the Target Group existed as a standalone group at the
beginning of the period presented, nor is it intended to be indicative of expected results or operations in
future periods or the future financial position of the Target Group.

2. Basis of preparation

The Target Group has not in the past constituted a separate legal group. Star Energy Group Ltd
(“Star”), the immediate parent company of the Star Group, has historically consolidated all its
subsidiaries, including those that are not part of the Target Group. As such, in the past separate
consolidated financial statements have not been prepared solely in respect of the entities comprising
the Target Group.

The combined financial information presented in this document, which has been prepared specifically
for the purpose of the admission document and has not been audited, is prepared on a basis that
combines the results and assets and liabilities of the Target Group by applying the principles
underlying the consolidation procedures of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements for
each of the three years to 31 March 2009, 2010 and 2011 and as at those dates (“Historical Unaudited
Combined Financial Information”).

The Historical Unaudited Combined Financial Information has been prepared in accordance with this
basis of preparation. The basis of preparation describes how the financial information has been
prepared in accordance with the accounting policies of IGas Energy plc under International Financial

1 Star Group comprises: Star Energy (East Midlands) Ltd; Star Energy Oil & Gas Ltd; Star Energy Oil
UK Ltd; Star Energy Weald Basin Ltd; Star Energy Ltd; Star Energy HG Gas Storage Ltd; Star
Energy Gas Storage Services Ltd; Overseas Gas Storage Ltd; Gas Storage Ltd; Dansk Gaslager
ApS; and Star Energy Group Ltd as parent / holding company.
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Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union except as described below.
References to “IFRS” hereafter should be construed as references to IFRS as adopted by the EU.

IFRS does not provide for the preparation of combined financial information, and accordingly in
preparing the Historical Unaudited Combined Financial Information certain accounting conventions
commonly used for the preparation of historical financial information for inclusion in investment
circulars as described in the Annexure to Standards for Investment Reporting issued by the UK
Auditing Practices Board have been applied. The application of these conventions results in the
following material departures from IGas Energy plc’s accounting policies under IFRS. In all other
material respects these accounting policies have been applied.

• As explained above, the Historical Unaudited Combined Financial Information is prepared on a
combined basis and therefore does not comply with the requirements of IAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements for the preparation of consolidated financial statements. The
financial information has therefore been prepared on a combined basis by applying the principles
underlying the consolidation procedures of IAS 27.

• The Historical Unaudited Combined Financial Information presents only the Unaudited Combined
Income Statement and Unaudited Combined Balance Sheet for each period presented. As such,
the Historical Unaudited Combined Financial Information does not comply with all of the
presentation and disclosure requirements of IFRS.

• The Historical Unaudited Combined Financial Information does not constitute a set of general
purpose financial statements under paragraph 3 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
and consequently the Group does not make an explicit and unreserved statement of compliance
with IFRS as contemplated by paragraph 14 of IAS 1.

The Historical Unaudited Combined Financial Information has been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for derivative financial instruments which have been measured at fair value.

The following summarises the accounting and other principles applied in preparing the Historical
Unaudited Combined Financial Information:

• Transactions and balances between Target Group entities included within the Historical
Unaudited Combined Financial Information have been eliminated.

• Transactions and balances between the Target Group and Petronas and its subsidiaries
(excluding any member of the Target Group) (the “Petronas Group”) have been presented in the
appropriate caption of the Historical Unaudited Combined Financial Information to which such
transactions and balances relate.

• Subsidiaries and associates historically held by entities that are part of the Target Group but
which do not form part of the Target Group have been carved out.

• Tax charges in the Historical Unaudited Combined Financial Information have been determined
based on the tax charges recorded by the Target Group companies in their respective statutory
financial statements as well as certain adjustments made for Star Group consolidation purposes,
which may not reflect the adjustments had the Target Group entities been independent of the
Petronas Group. The tax charges recorded in the Unaudited Combined Income Statements have
been affected by the taxation arrangements within Star Group and are not therefore necessarily
representative of the tax charges that would have been reported had the Target Group operated
as standalone group.

• Certain assets and liabilities that are currently part of the legal entities that are included in the
Target Group but which will not form part of the Transaction have been carved out from the
Historical Unaudited Combined Financial Information.

• The Petronas Group has historically operated a central cash account whereby certain cash costs
were settled centrally by the Petronas Group on behalf of the Target Group. Balances in respect
of the central cash account have been presented as interest bearing loans and borrowings or
loans and interest due from related parties.

• Interest income and expense recorded in the Unaudited Combined Income Statement have been
affected by the historic financing arrangements within the Petronas Group, in particular those
relating to central cash management. They are not necessarily representative of the interest
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income and expenses that would have been reported had the Target Group been an independent
group. They are not necessarily representative of the interest income and expense that may arise
in the future.

• Star Energy Group Ltd and Star Energy Ltd have historically recharged most central corporate
costs comprising director and staff and other SG&A costs to its subsidiaries, associates and other
Petronas Group companies for which it provides services. In addition, the companies have
recharged operating staff costs, which they have initially borne, to the individual operating
subsidiaries. The remainder of the central corporate costs have not been recharged to the
operating companies as part of the combined financial information exercise. The central
corporate costs are not necessarily representative of those that would have been reported had
the Target Group been an independent group. They are not necessarily representative of the
central corporate costs that may arise in the future.

The reconciliations of the Unaudited Combined Balance Sheets and Income Statements to the
UK GAAP statutory financial statements of the companies in the Target Group reflected in tables below
reconcile the Historical Unaudited Combined Financial Information to the aggregation of the income
statements and balance sheets extracted from the historical UK GAAP statutory financial statements in
respect of each relevant entity for each of the three years to 31 March 2009, 2010 and 2011 and as at
those dates.
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Notes to the Carve Out Adjustments

Within Star Energy Weald Basin Ltd the Humbly Grove and Herriard oil producing properties are also
used for gas storage. These assets will be transferred out of Target Group and into one of the Star
companies that is not part of the transaction. The carve out adjustments are set out below.

A. In the income statements the eliminations that relate to the Humbly Grove and Herriard assets
are as follows:

i. Revenues of £3.0 million, £4.0 million and £4.0 million for FY11, FY10 and FY09
respectively.

ii. Depreciation and depletion of £1.4 million, £1.8 million and £1.4 million for FY11, FY10 and
FY09 respectively.

iii. Cost of sales of £2.7 million, £2.5 million and £3.1 million for FY11, FY10 and FY09
respectively.

iv. Other income within Star Energy Weald Basin Ltd which relates to turbine and well rental of
£1.2 million, £1.4 million and £1.1 million for FY11, FY10 and FY09 respectively.

There have been no eliminations for administration expenses as these have not been deemed to be
material.

B. In the balance sheets the eliminations that relate to these assets are:

i. Transfer of the Humbly Grove and Herriard assets and the related oil production licence
from tangible fixed assets (property, plant and equipment) from the Star Energy Weald
Basin Ltd balance sheet. This amounts to £25.8 million, £25.0 million and £26.5 million for
FY11, FY10 and FY09 respectively.

ii. Working capital of £40,000 of inventory, trade receivables of £0.6 million and trade
payables of £0.3 million in FY11 only.

iii. Transfer of the related decommissioning provisions of £1.8 million, £0.8 million and
£0.8 million for FY11, FY10 and FY09 respectively.

iv. The carve out of these assets, their related cumulative profits, combined with the
adjustments in C and D below, result in net carve out adjustments of £77.4 million,
£30.1 million and £32.5 million for FY11, FY10 and FY09 respectively that have been made
through the non-current related party loan account.

C. Star Energy Ltd currently has a wholesale deposit of £15.0 million with a London branch of an
Icelandic financial institution as part of Star Group’s normal treasury operations. This amount has
been written down to £7.5 million. As part of the transaction this deposit of £7.5 million will be
carved out of the Target Group through loans from related parties. See B.iv above.

D. Star Energy Group Ltd is currently the owner of five subsidiary companies that operate in the gas
storage market, and the ownership of which will remain with Petronas Group. These investments,
with book value of £47.3 million in FY11, will be carved out of Star Energy Group Ltd in return for
a reduction in its parent company loan. Similar entries for FY10 and FY09 have been made,
although the related book value of the investments were only £0.1 million owing to a
capitalisation of intercompany debt that took place in FY11. These eliminations have been netted
off against loans from related parties. See B.iv above.

Notes to the IFRS and Other Adjustments

1. Star Energy Group Ltd records the investments in its subsidiaries at cost in accordance with its
accounting policy, which is consistent with that of IGas. However on consolidation the individual
financial statements of the entities included in the Target Group are combined with those of their
parent, with the cost of investments in these entities being eliminated, and intercompany
transactions, balances between Target Group entities and share capital and reserves of these
entities being eliminated. A number of adjustments have been made as part of the combination of
the Target Group which are as follows:

a. Certain oil inventory balances held within Star Energy Weald Basin Ltd at 31 March 2011
that have been purchased from other Star entities include an intercompany mark-up of £0.1
million. Therefore this adjustment between inventory and cost of sales is required to
eliminate this intercompany mark-up upon combination of the Target Group.
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b. The adjustment for FY11 of £209.7 million relates to the elimination of the cost of
investments in entities included in the Target Group of £105.4 million and to the elimination
of £104.3 million of intercompany loans receivable included in investments. The adjustment
for FY10 and FY09 of £108.8 million relates to the elimination of the cost of investments on
the combination of the Target Group.

c. These items relate mainly to the elimination of inter-Target Group debtors and creditors for
FY11, FY10 and FY09, which results in the outstanding balances with related party debtors
and creditors, being the Star Group companies that do not form part of the Target Group
and their ultimate parent, and are as follows:

i. For FY11, the adjustments to related party debtors (debit of £49.4 million), related
party creditors (debit of £2.3 million) and loans from related parties (debit of
£52.6 million net of a debit of £104.3 million set out in 1.d.i below) relate to all
intercompany receivable and payable balances between the individual legal entities of
the Target Group that are eliminated on combination. The resulting related party
debtor of £51.8 million reflects the amounts due from all the non Target Group entities
that form part of the Star Group. In addition there is a non-current liability balance of
£59.2 million (inclusive of carve out adjustments of £77.4 million) which represents a
loan from Petronas Group.

ii. For FY10, the adjustments to related party debtors (credit of £157.4 million, net of a
debit of £7.2 million set out in 1.d.ii below), related party creditors (debit of £134.6
million) and loans from related parties (debit of £30.0 million) relate to all
intercompany receivable and payable balances between the individual legal entities of
the Target Group that are eliminated on combination. The resulting related party
debtors of £104.7 million reflect the amounts due from all the non Target Group
entities that form part of the Star Group. In addition there is a non-current liability
balance of £113.8 million (inclusive of carve out adjustments of £30.1 million) which
represents a loan from Petronas Group.

iii. For FY09, the adjustments to related party debtors (credit of £268.6 million net of a
debit of £7.2 million set out in 1.d.ii below), related party creditors (debit of £245.8
million) and loans from related parties (debit of £30.0 million) relate to all
intercompany receivable and payable balances between the individual legal entities of
the Target Group that are eliminated on combination. The resulting current related
party debtors of £105.3 million reflect the amounts due from all the non Target Group
entities that form part of the Star Group. In addition there is a non-current liability
balance of £104.4 million (inclusive of carve out adjustments of £32.5 million) which
represents a loan from Petronas Group.

d. In addition to the elimination of inter-Target Group debtors and creditors for FY11, FY10
and FY09, there were other adjustments that had an impact on the elimination adjustments
in 1.c above. These were:

i. For FY11, an elimination of £104.3 million of intercompany loans receivable that
was capitalised as an investment.

ii. For FY10 and FY09, an adjustment of £7.2 million for an investment in gas
storage business’ interests in the Waalwijk production licence.

e. This adjustment of £24.6 million, £14.2 million and £14.2 million for FY11, FY10 and FY09
respectively eliminates the share capital of the entities that form part of the Target Group
upon combination. The remaining balance on share capital relates to the share capital of
Star Energy Group Ltd.

f. This adjustment of £9.9 million, £10.6 million and £10.6 million for FY11, FY10 and FY09
respectively eliminates the share premium account of the subsidiary Star Energy Ltd upon
combination. The residual balance on the share premium account of £155.5 million
represents the amounts received in excess of the nominal value of the ordinary shares
issued by Star Energy Group Ltd.

g. The adjustment of £45.1 million relates to the creation of a merger reserve upon the
combination of the Target Group. The balance of the merger reserve represents the excess
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of the fair value of the consideration paid over the nominal value of the ordinary shares
issued in an acquisition made by the issue of shares and dates back to the incorporation of
Star Energy Group Ltd in May 2004 when it acquired all the issued share capital of Star
Energy Ltd by way of a share-for-share exchange which was accounted for through merger
accounting.

h. Some of the Target Group individual legal entities created capital reserves in relation to
share based payments in the group company. The adjustment of £1.1 million, £1.2 million
and £1.2 million for FY11, FY10 and FY09 respectively eliminates these reserves upon
combination.

i. The adjustments to retained profits and losses and the cumulative effects of IFRS and other
adjustments of £1.8 million, £5.5 million and £2.9 million for FY11, FY10 and FY09
respectively relate to the elimination of pre-acquisition retained reserves upon combination.

2. These adjustments to fixed assets relate to the acquisition of the former Pentex group of
companies in August 2005. The investments carried by Star Energy Group Ltd are carried at
historical cost in Star Energy Group Ltd’s stand alone financial statements, but upon combination
the assets are accounted for at fair value at the time of acquisition, net of cumulative
depreciation, which gives rise to an adjustment to uplift the value of property, plant & equipment
(tangible oil and gas assets) from the values as stated in the individual financial statements. The
adjustments are as follows:

a. An increase in the net book value of property, plant & equipment of £23.9 million,
£24.7 million and £25.6 million for FY11, FY10 and FY09 respectively.

b. In addition there is a further current year depletion charge of £0.8 million, £0.9 million and
£0.8 million for FY11, FY10 and FY09 respectively to the uplift in relation to these assets
accounted for upon combination.

3. The adjustments to depletion, depreciation and amortisation of £0.7 million and £0.6 million for
FY10 and FY09 respectively relate to the net impact of three separate adjustments, which are as
follows:

a. An additional depletion charge of £0.9 million and £0.8 million for FY10 and FY09
respectively as explained in 2.b above.

b. In FY10, a reclassification to depletion, depreciation and amortisation of an oil and gas
property asset write-off of £0.1 million from administration expenses.

c. In FY09 a depletion adjustment of £0.2 million for Star Energy Weald Basin Ltd which was
reflected in the Group consolidation in the prior year (FY08), but not through the financial
statements of the individual legal entity and thus is adjusted upon combination. There is
also a related £0.1 million deferred tax adjustment in relation to this item.

4. In the years prior to FY09, Star Group entered into a number of derivative contracts (for crude oil
and for foreign exchange). In FY08 the last of these contracts were left to expire and thus were
not rolled over. The effects these were to some extent carried forward to FY09 in accordance
with IFRS39. This item gives rise to four separate adjustments, with a net impact of £4.4 million
on retained profit for the year, which are as follows:

a. A reclassification of charges associated with settled forward derivatives from revenue of
£39.1 million.

b. An associated adjustment of £31.9 million to cost of sales, giving a net impact to gross
profit of £7.2 million

c. Reclassification between finance income of £47.2 million and finance costs of £47.3 million
with a debit impact to finance costs of £0.1 million

d. A deferred tax charge of £2.8 million related to c above; and

e. An adjustment to the deferred tax provision in the balance sheet of £2.3 million.

5. As a result of realigning the accounting policy for intangible exploration and evaluation assets to
that used by IGas, an adjustment is required to write back an impairment taken as at 31 March
2011. This related to a partial impairment of £1.15 million of a single well within one of the Target
Group legal entities. Under the IGas accounting policy such a partial impairment would not have
been made and therefore this impairment has been reversed.
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6. The charge to administration expenses of £0.2 million in FY10 relates to the combined impact of
two separate adjustments, which are as follows:

a. The cost of holiday accruals for the year of £0.1 million. See 18 below.

b. The reclassification to depletion, depreciation and amortisation of an oil and gas property
asset write off of £0.1 million as explained in 3.b above.

7. As part of a Star Group restructuring, Star Energy Oil & Gas Ltd acquired 100% of the issued
share capital of Star Energy (East Midlands) Ltd from its parent, Star Energy Group Ltd, on
31 March 2011 by issuing 364,705 £1 shares in consideration. Immediately following this, certain
assets, liabilities and their related trade of Star Energy (East Midlands) Ltd were transferred to
Star Energy Oil & Gas Ltd. The net assets transferred had a value of £11.75 million, with the
discount on the acquisition being recognised as a dividend from Star Energy (East Midlands) Ltd
in the financial statements of Star Energy Oil & Gas Ltd. The adjustment of £11.4 million to
income from subsidiary undertakings in FY11 relates to the elimination of this dividend on the
combination of the Target Group.

8. As part of an exercise to liquidate a number of dormant companies, Star Energy Group Ltd was
required write down the cost of investments in the relevant companies. The adjustment of
£4.1 million to income from subsidiary undertakings in FY09 relates to the elimination of this write
down on the combination of the Target Group.

9. Adjustments to finance income and finance costs of £0.5 million and £0.6 million in FY11 and
FY10 respectively relate to the elimination of intercompany interest received and interest charged
on a loan that was in place between Star Energy (East Midlands) Ltd and Star Energy Ltd.

10. The Target Group has an investment in an associate, Larchford Ltd, which is recorded at cost in
the individual financial statements of Star Energy Ltd in accordance with group’s accounting
policy. However upon combination the assets and liabilities of the associate are incorporated in
the Star Group accounts using the equity method of accounting. Interests in associates are
carried in the balance sheet at cost as adjusted by post-acquisition changes in the Target
Group’s share of the net assets of the associate. Therefore there are two combination
adjustments in relation to this item, as follows:

a. An adjustment to the income statement in relation to the recognition of profits for the year
from the investment in an associate of £0.4 million and £0.2 million in FY10 and FY09
respectively.

b. An adjustment in the balance sheet to increase the carrying value of the investment from its
cost by £0.5 million in FY11 and FY10 respectively and £0.1 million in FY09 and is in
relation to the share of gains in the value assets and liabilities of the associate, from the
time of the initial investment to the respective year end.

11. The adjustment of £14.2 million to finance income in FY09 relates to the net impact of three
separate adjustments, which are as follows:

a. The reclassification of £7.5 million of derivative contract termination fees from finance
income to finance costs.

b. The reclassification of £6.7 million on the loss on revaluation of the Petronas parent
company loan from finance income to finance costs.

12. The adjustment of £14.2 million to finance costs in FY09 relates to the net impact of three
separate adjustments, which are as follows:

a. The reclassification of £7.5 million of derivative contract termination fees to finance costs
from finance income.

b. The reclassification of £6.7 million on the loss on revaluation of the Petronas parent
company loan to finance costs from finance income.

13. The adjustment to FY10 tax expense of £2.0 million relates to the combined impact of two
separate adjustments, which are as follows:

a. An adjustment of £1.8 million correcting a tax provision for an IFRS hedging adjustment
made on consolidation in a prior financial period.
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b. An adjustment of £0.2 million relating to the correction tax consolidation adjustments for
prior periods.

14. The other adjustment of £0.1 million to income tax expenses in FY09 relates to the net impact of
two separate adjustments, which are as follows:

a. An amount of £0.3 million relates to the reversal of a prior year difference arising on
deferred tax within Star Energy Group Ltd on the sale of a Group subsidiary.

b. An adjustment of £0.1 million relating to the deferred tax on the depletion adjustment in Star
Energy Weald Basin Ltd as mentioned in 3.c above.

15. The adjustment of £1.3 million to intangible assets in FY11 relates to the net impact two separate
adjustments, which are as follows:

a. As part of a Star Group restructuring, Star Energy Weald Basin Limited acquired 100% of
the issued share capital of Star Energy Oil UK Ltd from its parent, Star Energy Group Ltd,
on 31 March 2011 by issuing 150,222,205 10p shares in consideration. Immediately
following this, certain assets, liabilities and the related trade of Star Energy Oil UK Ltd were
transferred to Star Energy Weald Basin Ltd. The consideration was settled via the inter-
company account. The difference between the book value of the assets and liabilities
acquired from Star Energy Oil UK Ltd and the company’s investment in Star Energy Group
Ltd of £2.4 million was recognised as goodwill. Therefore this adjustment represents the
elimination on combination of goodwill created from this transaction.

b. An adjustment to reverse a partial impairment of £1.15 million, as noted in 5 above.

16. IGas capitalises consumables on drilling sites upon purchase. The drilling material balances of
£0.2 million in FY11 and of £0.3 million in both of FY10 and FY09 that are held under inventory
have been reclassified to property, plant & equipment.

17. The adjustment of £2.3 million to trade and other receivables in both FY10 and FY09 relates to a
reclassification of a current tax debtor from trade and other payables. See 19.a below.

18. The adjustment of £0.1 million to trade and other payables in FY11 is for holiday accruals for
leave earned but not taken as per IAS19, which were not reflected under UK GAAP in the
individual company statutory accounts. Similar amounts of £0.1 million were also accrued for in
FY10 and FY09 (see 19.b and 20.c below)

19. The adjustment of £2.4 million to trade and other payables in FY10 relates to the net impact of
two separate adjustments, which are as follows:

a. A reclassification of a current tax debtor balance of £2.3 million to trade and other
receivables. See 17 above.

b. Holiday accruals of £0.1 million. See 18 above.

20. The other adjustment of £2.6 million to trade and other payables in FY09 relates to the net impact
of four separate adjustments, which are as follows:

a. A reclassification of a current tax debtor balance of £2.3 million to trade and other
receivables.

b. An adjustment of £0.3 million to trade and other creditors that relates to an adjustment to
the current tax liability upon combination of the Target Group entities.

c. Holiday accruals of £0.1 million. See 18 above.
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PART B

AUDITED FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON STAR AND STAR SUBSIDIARIES

Audited annual accounts for each of the Companies in the Star Group, for each of the three years
ended 31 March 2011, 2010 and 2009 are accessible on IGas Energy plc’s website (see:
http://www.igasplc.com/) (the “Website”).

The individual links to the Website for each of the audited annual accounts for each of the Companies
in the Star Group are set out in the table below:

Company Year End Link to Website

Star Energy Group Limited 2008 http://www.igasplc.com/uploads/SEG0809
2009 http://www.igasplc.com/uploads/SEG0910
2010 http://www.igasplc.com/uploads/SEG1011

Star Energy Limited 2008 http://www.igasplc.com/uploads/SEL0809
2009 http://www.igasplc.com/uploads/SEL0910
2010 http://www.igasplc.com/uploads/SEL1011

Star Energy Weald Basin Limited 2008 http://www.igasplc.com/uploads/SEW0809
2009 http://www.igasplc.com/uploads/SEW0910
2010 http://www.igasplc.com/uploads/SEW1011

Star Energy Oil UK Limited 2008 http://www.igasplc.com/uploads/OUK0809
2009 http://www.igasplc.com/uploads/OUK0910
2010 http://www.igasplc.com/uploads/OUK1011

Star Energy (East Midlands) Limited 2008 http://www.igasplc.com/uploads/EML0809
2009 http://www.igasplc.com/uploads/EML0910
2010 http://www.igasplc.com/uploads/EML1011

Star Energy Oil and Gas Limited 2008 http://www.igasplc.com/uploads/OGL0809
2009 http://www.igasplc.com/uploads/OGL0910
2010 http://www.igasplc.com/uploads/OGL1011

Larchford Limited 2008 http://www.igasplc.com/uploads/LL2008
2009 http://www.igasplc.com/uploads/LL2009
2010 http://www.igasplc.com/uploads/LL2010
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PART 7

TAXATION

1. UK taxation

The following statements are intended as a general guide only to the position under current UK
taxation legislation and HMRC practice as at the date of this document. They apply only to qualifying
shareholders who are resident, or in the case of individuals, ordinarily resident for UK tax purposes in
(and only in) the UK (except insofar as express reference is made to the treatment of non-UK
residents), who hold their Ordinary Shares as an investment and who are the absolute beneficial
owners of them. They do not apply to certain types of Shareholders, such as insurance companies,
collective investment schemes, dealers in securities and Shareholders who have (or are deemed to
have) acquired their Ordinary Shares by reason of or in connection with an office or employment. They
relate only to certain limited aspects of the taxation treatment of Shareholders.

Special tax provisions may apply to Shareholders who have acquired or who acquire their Ordinary
Shares under the Share Schemes.

Any person who is any doubt about his/her own tax position, or who is resident in or subject to tax in a
jurisdiction other than the UK, should consult an appropriate independent professional adviser without
delay.

1.1 Taxation of income

(a) UK Resident Shareholders

Individuals

UK resident individual Shareholders who receive a dividend from the Company will
generally be entitled to a tax credit, which can be set off against the individual’s income tax
liability on the dividend payment. The rate of tax credit on dividends paid by the company
will be 10 per cent. of the total of the dividend payment and the tax credit (the “gross
dividend”), or one-ninth of the dividend payment.

UK resident individual Shareholders will generally be taxable on the gross dividend, which
will be regarded as the top slice of the Shareholder’s income. UK resident individual
Shareholders who are not liable to income tax in respect of the gross dividend will generally
not be entitled to reclaim any part of the tax credit.

In the case of a UK resident individual Shareholder who is not liable to income tax at the
higher rates (taking account of the gross dividend he or she receives), the tax credit will
satisfy in full such Shareholder’s liability to income tax. To the extent that a UK resident
individual Shareholder’s income (including the gross dividend) is subject to 40 per cent.
income tax, such Shareholders will be subject to income tax on the gross dividend at the
dividend income upper rate of 32.5 per cent. but will be able to set the tax credit against this
liability. This results in an effective tax rate of 25 per cent. On the net dividend, UK
shareholders receiving dividends within the 50 per cent. band will be subject to an income
tax rate of 42.5 per cent. An individual Shareholder who is liable to income tax at the
additional rate (currently 50%) will be taxed on the gross dividend at 42.5 per cent. but will
be able to set the tax credit against this liability. This results in an effective tax rate of
36.1 per cent. of the net dividend.

Companies

A corporate Shareholder resident in the UK (for tax purposes) should generally not be
subject to corporation tax or income tax on dividend payments received from the Company.
Corporate Shareholders will not, however, be able to claim repayment of tax credits
attaching to the dividend payment.

Trustees

Accumulated or discretionary income arising to the trustees of a settlement (other than
under a trust established for charitable purposes only) is taxed at either the trust rate or
dividend trust rate. The trust rate is 50 per cent.; and the dividend trust rate is 42.5 per cent.
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(b) Non-residents

Non-UK resident shareholders holding their shares directly should not be liable to UK
income tax on dividends received from the Company. In general, the right of non-UK
resident Shareholders to reclaim tax credits attaching to dividend payments by the
Company will depend upon the existence and the terms of an applicable double tax treaty
between their jurisdiction of residence and the UK. In most cases, the amount of tax credit
that can be claimed by non-UK resident Shareholders from HMRC will be nil. They may
also be liable to tax on the dividend income under the tax law of their jurisdiction of
residence. Non-UK resident Shareholders should consult their own tax advisers in respect
of their liabilities on dividend payments, whether they are entitled to claim any part of the
tax credit and, if so, the procedure for doing so.

1.2 Taxation of capital gains

(a) UK resident Shareholders

A disposal of Ordinary Shares by a Shareholder may, depending on the Shareholder’s
circumstances, and subject to any available exemption or relief, give rise to a chargeable
gain or an allowable loss for the purposes of UK taxation of chargeable gains.

Gains on disposals of Ordinary Shares by individual Shareholders resident in the UK are
taxed at 18 per cent. or 28 per cent. depending on the individual’s total taxable income and
gains subject to certain reliefs and exemptions. For trustees of UK settlements, gains are
taxed at 28 per cent. In cases where individual Shareholders resident in the UK and
trustees qualify for entrepreneurs’ relief the rate is 10 per cent. For UK corporates any gain
would be chargeable at 26 per cent. Indexation may apply to reduce any such gain
(although indexation is no longer available to individuals and trustees).

The chargeable gain on the disposal of Ordinary Shares will be calculated by reference to
the sale proceeds (less allowable costs of sale) and the cost of the acquisition of the
Ordinary Shares (this is usually the price paid, plus allowable expenses of the purchase,
but may differ for Ordinary Shares acquired by reason of employment or under a share
incentive scheme). Where Ordinary Shares have been acquired on different dates, specific
rules will apply to determine which Ordinary Shares are treated as being sold for capital
gains tax purposes.

The main reliefs from capital gains tax available to an individual (although there may be
others) which are likely to assist in reducing a potential liability to capital gains tax are:

(i) Annual exempt amount: Capital gains tax will only be payable if an individual who has
capital gains from all sources in the tax year concerned exceeding the annual exempt
amount (£10,600 for 2011/2012). The annual exempt amount is available for each tax
year, but unused amounts cannot be carried forward to reduce gains made in
subsequent tax years.

(ii) Capital losses: Any gain made on a disposal may be offset by capital losses made on
other disposals in the same tax year or brought forward from earlier years in which
they have not been so offset.

A Shareholder which is a UK resident company owning at least 10 per cent. of the Ordinary
Shares may, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions, qualify under the substantial
shareholding exemption for complete exemption from corporation tax in respect of any gain
arising on the disposal of such Ordinary Shares.

(b) Non-UK resident Shareholders

A Shareholder who is neither resident, nor in the case of an individual, ordinarily resident, in
the UK, will not be liable for UK tax on chargeable gains realised on the disposal of his/her/
its Ordinary Shares unless such Shareholder carries on:

(i) (in the case of Shareholders other than companies (including persons deemed to be
companies)) a trade, profession or vocation in the UK through a branch or agency and
has used, held or acquired the Ordinary Shares for the purposes of such trade,
profession or vocation or such branch or agency; or
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(ii) (in the case of Shareholders which are companies (including persons deemed to be
companies), body corporates or unincorporated associations) a trade or vocation in
the UK through a permanent establishment and has used, held or acquired the
Ordinary Shares in or for the purposes of the trade or vocation or has used, held or
acquired the Ordinary Shares for the purposes of such permanent establishment.

An individual Shareholder that has ceased to be resident or ordinarily resident in the UK for
tax purposes for a period of less than five complete years of assessment and who disposes
of all or part of their Ordinary Shares during that period of temporary non-residence, may be
liable on his return to the UK, to UK tax on chargeable gains arising during the period of
absence, subject to any available exemption or relief.

Shareholders who are neither resident nor, in the case of an individual, ordinarily resident in
the UK may be subject to foreign taxation on any gain under local law.

1.3 UK Stamp Duty and Stamp Duty Reserve Tax (“SDRT”)

Dealings in Ordinary Shares will normally be subject to stamp duty or SDRT. The transfer on sale of
Ordinary Shares will usually be liable to ad valorem stamp duty, at the rate of 0.5 per cent. (rounded
up, if necessary, to the next multiple of 0.5) of the amount or value of the consideration paid. Stamp
duty will normally be paid by the purchaser or transferee of the Ordinary Shares. An unconditional
agreement to transfer Ordinary Shares will normally give rise to a charge to SDRT, at the rate of
0.5 per cent. of the amount or value of the consideration payable for such shares, but such liability will
be cancelled, or any SDRT paid refunded, if the agreement is completed by a duly stamped instrument
of transfer within six years of the date of the agreement or, if the agreement was conditional, the date
on which the agreement became unconditional. SDRT will normally be the liability of the purchaser or
transferee of the Ordinary Shares.

Under the CREST system for paperless share transfers, no stamp duty or SDRT will arise on a transfer
of shares into the system, unless the transfer into CREST is itself for consideration in money or
money’s worth, in which case a liability to SDRT will arise, usually at the rate of 0.5 per cent. of the
amount or value of consideration given. Transfers of shares within CREST are generally liable to
SDRT at the rate of 0.5 per cent. of the amount or value of the consideration payable rather than
stamp duty, and SDRT on relevant transactions settled within the system or reported through it for
regulatory purposes will be collected and accounted for to HMRC by Euroclear.

The above statements are intended to be a general guide to the current stamp duty and SDRT
position. Certain categories of person are not liable to stamp duty or SDRT and others may be liable at
a higher rate as mentioned above or may, although not primarily liable for the tax, be required to notify
and account for it. Special rules apply to agreements made by market intermediaries and to certain
sale and repurchase and stock borrowing arrangements. Agreements to transfer shares to charities will
not give rise to stamp duty or SDRT.
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PART 8

DIRECTORS, CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND EMPLOYEES

1. The Board

The Company has a single Board of Directors headed by a non-executive Chairman with management
led by a Chief Executive Officer. The Board comprises 4 Non-executive Directors (including the
Chairman) and 3 Executive Directors. Details of the Directors, including their dates of appointment,
their memberships of board committees and the year in which each is next due for re-election are as
follows:

Director Function
Date of

appointment
Year of next
re-election

Francis Gugen Non-executive Chairman(3) 27 December 2007 2012
Andrew Austin Chief Executive Officer 27 December 2007 2014
John Blaymires Chief Operating Officer 19 October 2010 2013
Stephen Bowler Chief Financial Officer 1 November 2011 2012
John Bryant Senior Independent Non-

executive Director(1)(2)(3) 5 May 2004 2014
Richard Armstrong Non-executive Director(1)(2)(3) 10 April 2007 2013
John Hamilton Non-executive Director(1)(2) 10 December 2009 2012

(1) Member of Audit Committee
(2) Member of Remuneration Committee
(3) Member of Nomination Committee

The usual business address of each of the Directors is the registered office of the Company, which is
at 7 Down Street, London W1J 8AJ.

2. The Directors

2.1 Details of the Directors

Francis Gugen

Non-Executive Chairman

Francis, 62, is a founder and Non Executive Chairman and has over thirty years’ oil and gas industry
experience. Between 1982 and 2000 he helped grow Amerada Hess in North West Europe, ultimately
becoming CEO of North West Europe. Currently he is also Non-Executive Chairman of Petroleum
Geophysical Services ASA, Chrysaor Holdings Limited and of CEOC Limited; and a board member of
SBM Offshore NV all involved in conventional oil & gas. Until 2006 he served as non-executive
Chairman of North Sea gas fields and pipelines operator CH4 Energy Limited before it was acquired in
2006 by Venture Production Plc. He was a member of the CBI’s Economic Affairs Committee, past
president of the UK Offshore Operators Association, past chair of the industries representation on the
UK Government Oil & Gas Task Force (Pilot) and past chair of the CBI’s Environmental Affairs
Committee. Francis is a chartered accountant having worked for Arthur Andersen for eight years until
1982, principally as an oil and gas specialist.

Andrew Austin

Chief Executive Officer

Andrew, 46, is one of the founders and the Chief Executive Officer and previously he specialised in
energy projects in the gas, electricity and renewables sector. Andrew has been an Executive Director
since 2004 and for the last four years has been CEO with full time responsibility for day to day
operations and business development. Prior to joining IGas, Andrew was involved in ventures as
principal and has also raised substantial funds from private and public equity for clients during the
course of his career to date. Andrew spent 17 years working in investment banking in the City of
London with Merrill Lynch, Nomura, Citibank and Barclays Capital. Latterly he was General Manager of
Creditanstalt Investment Bank in London. He also has six years of management and consultancy
experience with clean tech companies including Generics Group and Whitfield Solar.

John Blaymires

Chief Operating Officer

John, 54, has 28 years of international experience in the oil and gas industry gained with the Hess
Corporation and Shell International. Before joining IGas he was Director of Technology Development
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for Hess based in Houston, where he helped develop a global engineering and geoscience technology
group responsible for providing support across the E&P business, from deepwater to unconventional
resources. Prior to that, John was Technical Director for Hess’ operations in West Africa, and
subsequently South East Asia with responsibility for several major oil and gas developments. John has
a BSc and PhD in Mining Engineering from Leeds University.

Stephen Bowler

Chief Financial Officer

Steve, 38, started his career at Touche Ross, now Deloitte, where he qualified as a chartered
accountant, having spent time in both their audit and corporate finance divisions. In 1999, Steve joined
ABN Amro Hoare Govett, now RBS Hoare Govett, where he has acted as adviser and broker to a wide
range of companies with a particular focus on Exploration and Production.

John Bryant

Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

John, 65, is the Non-Executive Chairman of AIM listed Weatherly International plc. He was until
recently a board member of the Attiki Gas Company, which supplies natural gas to Athens and the
surrounding districts. John previously served as president of Cinergy Global Resources Corp,
responsible for all international business and global renewable power operations of this US based
electricity and gas utility provider. Before joining Cinergy, John was executive director with Midlands
Electricity plc. He has been involved in developing a number of large gas fired power stations both in
the UK and overseas, together with both electricity and gas distribution in Europe and Africa,
renewable power in Europe and North America and gas and electricity trading. His prior experience
was at British Sugar plc, Drexel Limited, the British Oxygen Company and Unilever plc. Drexel, where
he was president, was a global oil and gas equipment manufacturing and servicing company. John is a
Fellow of the Institute of Directors and a Fellow of the Royal Society of Arts.

Richard Armstrong

Non-Executive Director

Richard, 63, is an associate with Fiske plc, the AIM quoted stockbrokers. He is a former equity analyst
with extensive experience in reconstructing and raising capital for turnaround situations especially in
the quoted microcap sector, such as Weatherly International plc and Artilium plc. In most cases, he has
joined the Board of these companies and has played a major role in helping them to acquire or
establish operating businesses. He is currently a Director of a number of unquoted companies.

John Hamilton

Non-Executive Director

John, 45, is the Managing Director of Levine Capital Management Advisors Limited, a UK incorporated
company and Interim Chairman of President Petroleum Corporation Plc. John was previously the
Group Finance Director of Imperial Energy Corporation Plc. Prior to joining Imperial Energy, John held
senior positions at ABN AMRO.

2.2 Current and previous appointments

The following table sets out the names of all companies and partnerships outside the Group of which
any Director is or has been a member of the administrative, management or supervisory body or a
partner at any time in the previous five years (excluding subsidiaries of any company of which any
Director is or was also a member of the administrative, management or supervisory body).

Director Current Directorships Past Directorships

Francis Gugen Gugen Consulting Limited
Echo Petroleum Limited

Fraudscreen Limited
Raft Trustees Limited
Chrysaor Holdings Ltd

Petroleum Geo Services ASA
SBM Offshore N.V.

CEOC Limited

Britannia Building Society
Raft Enterprises Limited

John Blaymires None None

Stephen Bowler None None

256



Director Current Directorships Past Directorships

Andrew Austin Austin and Austin Limited Recombinogen Limited
Whitfield Solar Limited

Richard Armstrong Alphaworx Plc
Blenheim Energy Limited
Blenheim Wind and Biomass Limited
Citypoint Investments Plc
(in liquidation)
Blenheim Wind (UK) Plc
Devonshire Wind Projects Limited

Artilium Plc
B W A Group Plc
Petrocapital Resources Plc
Wind Ventures Limited
Ecovista Plc
Crescent Technology Ventures Plc
Belisarius Limited
Camvaxx Limited
Safevaxx Limited
Voipnetwork Limited
Fortfield Investments Plc
Crescent Hydropolis Resorts Plc

John Bryant Axeman Overseas Limited
Weatherly International Plc
Blenheim Energy Limited
China Africa Resources Plc
Blenheim Wind & Biomass Ltd
Devonshire Wind Projects Ltd

Gas Turbine Efficiency Plc
Wind Ventures Limited
Cinergy Global Hellas AS
Attiki Gas Supply Company
Attiki Denmark ApS

John Hamilton Levine Capital Management Advisors
Limited
President Petroleum plc

Imperial Energy Corporation PLC
Levine Capital Management UK LLP
Imperial Energy Limited
Imperial Energy Kostanai Limited
Rus Imperial Corporation PLC
Rus Imperial Limited

Richard Armstrong is a director of Citypoint Investments Plc, which was put into Members Voluntary
Liquidation on 25 March 2011 on a solvent basis as part of a planned corporate reorganisation.
Richard Armstrong was a director of Fortfield Investments plc (an Irish company) which was placed
into members voluntary winding up on 12 January 2009, on a solvent basis, for the purposes of
distributing its assets to the shareholders of Fortfield Investments plc by way of an in specie liquidation
distribution.

John Bryant was a director of KP Renewables plc (now IGas Energy plc) on 10 April 2007 when that
company entered into a company voluntary arrangement with its creditors. The arrangement was
approved by members and creditors and was completed in accordance with its terms on 21 February
2008.

2.3 Interests of the Directors in the share capital of the Company

As at 21 November 2011 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document),
the interests in the Issued Share Capital of the Company of each of the Directors and persons
connected with them (as defined in section 252 of the Act) such interests being those which could with
reasonable diligence be ascertained by each Director, whether or not held through another party, and
being in addition to the interests held under option as described in paragraph 3 below, and the
interests they are expected to have immediately following Admission are or will be as follows:

Director

Present
Number of IGas

Shares %

Following Admission
Number of IGas

Shares % Share awards

Francis Gugen 27,615,764 17.23 27,615,764 17.23 —
Andrew Austin 10,659,253 6.65 10,659,253 6.65 1,029,702
Richard Armstrong 65,960 0.041 65,960 0.041 —
John Bryant 57,870 0.036 57,870 0.036 —
John Hamilton 85,000 0.05 85,000 0.05 —
John Blaymires — — — — 681,743
Stephen Bowler — — — — 396,040
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2.4 Executive Directors service contracts and emoluments

(A) The details of the service contracts of the Executive Directors none of which have been entered
into or amended in the six months immediately preceding the publication of this document, save
with respect to Stephen Bowler, who entered into his service agreement with the Company on his
appointment to the Board on 1 November 2011:

Name of Executive Director Contract date Notice period
Contractual

termination payments

Andrew Austin 9 December 2005
(as amended from

time to time) 12 months Notice period only
John Blaymires 3 February 2010 12 months Notice period only
Stephen Bowler 1 November 2011 12 months Notice period only

Each of the Executive Directors devotes such time as is required to discharge his duties, which in
the case of A Austin, J Blaymires and S Bowler is full time.

(B) The remuneration paid and benefits in kind granted to each of the executive Directors (excluding
B. Cheshire who resigned on 20 June 2011) under their engagement terms with the Company
during the financial year ended on 31 December 2010 was as follows:

Executive Directors
Salary
£000

Bonus
£000

Taxable
Benefits

£000
Pensions

£000

2010
Total
£000

F Gugen – Executive Chairman (to 19 October 2010) 83 — — — 83
A Austin – Chief Executive Officer 235 117 1 — 353
B Cheshire – Executive Technical Director 100 25 — — 125
J Blaymires – COO (Appointed 19 October 2010) 29 9 1 — 39

Total 447 151 2 — 600

Since 31 December 2010 the following changes to directorships and directors compensation
have taken place:

(i) Mr Austin base salary has been increased to £260,000;

(ii) Mr Blaymires base salary has been increased to £200,000;

(iii) Stephen Bowler joined the Board on 1 November 2011 on a base salary of £200,000 and

(iv) Brent Cheshire resigned as Executive Technical Director on 20 June 2011.

2.5 Non-executive directors’ letters of appointment and emoluments

(A) The following are the details of the Non-executive Directors’ letters of appointment none of which
have been entered into or amended in the six months immediately preceding the publication of
this document:

Name of Non-executive Director Contract date Notice period
Contractual

termination payments

Francis Gugen 6 April 2011 3 months Notice period only
John Bryant 27 November 2007 3 months Notice period only
Richard Armstrong 27 November 2007 3 months Notice period only
John Hamilton 24 November 2009 3 months 6 months salary

(B) The following are the details of the benefits and emoluments made available to the
Non-executive Directors under their engagement terms with the Company for the year ended
31 December 2010:

Name of Non-executive Director
Emoluments

£000

F Gugen – Non-Executive Chairman (from 19 October 2010)* 17
J Bryant – Senior Independent 35
R Armstrong 35
J Hamilton 35

Total – Non-Executive Directors 122
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* this compensation relates to a period during which Mr Gugen held the role of executive chairman.

Since 31 December 2010 Mr Gugen assumed the role of non-executive chairman for a fee of £80,000
and Mr Bryant assumed the role of senior non-executive director on a revised annual fee of £45,000.

The Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to participate in any bonus scheme of the Company and
are not entitled to any pension or other benefits. They do not participate in the Share Schemes.

3. Share options granted to Executive Directors

3.1 As at 21 November 2011 (the latest practicable date prior to the date of this document) the
following Executive Directors have been granted options under the Share Scheme (a summary of
which is set out in paragraph 6 of Part 8):

Under the LTIP:

Date of Grant Granted Exercised Lapsed Earliest vesting date

A Austin 21 November 2011 1,029,702 — — 21 November 2014
J Blaymires 21 November 2011 681,743 — — 21 November 2014
S Bowler 21 November 2011 396,040 — — 21 November 2014

3.2 On 21 November 2011 Andrew Austin and John Blaymires waived all rights and entitlements
under the 2010 IGas Energy plc Super Long Term Incentive Plan and the 2010 IGas Energy plc
Share Option Plan.

3.3 Save as set out in paragraph above, and a total of 461,374 options that remain outstanding in
respect of employees other than Directors under the LTIP and Share Option Plan the Company
has not granted any options over its share capital or loan capital which remain outstanding nor
has it agreed, conditionally or unconditionally, to grant such options.

4. Confirmations and other information

4.1 There is no family relationship between any of the Directors.

4.2 Apart from the current directorships set out in paragraph 2 of this Part 8 above and the other
business interests disclosed above none of the Directors has any business interests or performs
any activities outside the Group which are significant in respect to the Group.

4.3 There are no potential conflicts of interest affecting any of the Directors between their duties to
the Company or to the IGas Group and their private interests.

4.4 Save as set out below, none of the Directors:

(A) is or has been a member of the administrative management or supervisory body of any company
or a partner in any partnership outside the IGas Group at any time in the previous five years save
as disclosed in paragraph 2 above; or

(B) has any convictions relating to indictable or fraudulent offences;

(C) has been declared bankrupt or made the subject of an individual voluntary arrangement;

(D) has been a director or senior manager of any company at the time of or within the twelve months
preceding any receivership, compulsory liquidation, creditors’ voluntary liquidation,
administration, company voluntary arrangement or any composition or arrangement with creditors
generally or any class of creditors of such company;

(E) has been a partner in any partnership at the time of or within twelve months preceding any
compulsory liquidation, administration, receivership or partnership voluntary arrangement of such
partnership;

(F) has had any of his assets subject to any receivership; and

(G) has been the subject of any public criticism or had sanctions imposed upon him by any statutory
or regulatory authorities or been disqualified from acting in the management or conduct of the
affairs of a company.
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4.5 No Director has, or has had, any interest in any transactions which are or were unusual in their
nature and conditions or significant to the business of the IGas Group and which were effected by
the Company during the period from 1 January 2011 to the date of this document or during the
financial year ended on 31 December 2010 or during any earlier financial year which remain
outstanding or unperformed.

4.6 There are no outstanding loans or guarantees provided by the Company or the IGas Group to or
for the benefit of any of the Directors.

4.7 There are no arrangements with major shareholders, customers, suppliers or others pursuant to
which any of the Directors was selected as a Director, save that John Hamilton’s services are
provided pursuant to a consultancy agreement between the Company and Levine Capital
Management Limited pursuant to which Levine Capital Management Limited retains the right to
substitute an alternative suitable individual to discharge the duties of Mr Hamilton from time to
time.

4.8 The total amount set aside or accrued by the IGas Group to provide pension, retirement or similar
benefits is zero.

4.9 There are no arrangements under which any Director has waived or agreed to waive future
emoluments nor has there been any waiver of emoluments during the financial year ended
31 December 2010.

4.10 Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor any member of their immediate families or
any person connected with any of them holds or is beneficially or non-beneficially interested,
directly or indirectly, in any shares or options to subscribe for, or securities convertible into,
shares of the Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings or any financial product referenced
to the Ordinary Shares.

5. Corporate Governance

5.1 Combined Code

The Board supports high standards of corporate governance and the guidance set out in the Combined
Code on Corporate Governance (the “Combined Code”). As a Company that is quoted on AIM, it is not
required to comply with the Combined Code but all the Directors intend to comply with its main
provisions as far as is practicable having regard to the size and composition of the IGas Group.

5.2 The Board

The Board consists of three Executive Directors and four Non-Executive Directors; with Mr Armstrong
and Mr Bryant being considered to be independent. The Senior Independent Non-Executive Director is
John Bryant and biographies of all the Directors are included on pages 255 to 256.

The Board retains full and effective control over the IGas Group. The Board meets regularly, at least
eight times a year to consider reports on the operational and financial performance of the IGas Group
and to decide on matters reserved unto itself, which include formulating, reviewing and approving the
IGas Group’s strategy, budgets, major items of capital expenditure and senior personnel appointments.

The Directors have established separate committees each chaired by a Non-Executive Director as
follows:

5.3 Audit committee

The committee comprises only Non-Executive Directors; being chaired by Richard Armstrong and
having as other members: John Bryant and John Hamilton. The Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer may attend only at the invitation of the committee.

The committee receives and reviews reports from management and the IGas Group’s auditors relating
to the IGas Group’s annual report and accounts and from management relating to interim results
announcements. The committee focuses particularly on compliance with legal requirements,
accounting standards and the AIM Rules for Companies and on ensuring that effective systems of
internal financial and nonfinancial controls (including for the management of risk and whistle-blowing)
are maintained. However, the ultimate responsibility for reviewing and approving the annual report and
accounts remains with the Board. The committee is also responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment of the external auditors and their remuneration. The committee keeps
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under review the external auditors’ independence and considers the nature, scope, and results of the
auditors’ work and develops policy on and reviews (reserving the right to approve) any non-audit
services that are provided by the external auditors.

The committee normally meets at least three times a year and meets the external auditors at least
annually without the presence of the Executive Directors.

5.4 Remuneration committee

The committee comprises only Non-Executive Directors; being chaired by John Bryant and having as
other members Richard Armstrong and John Hamilton. The committee, which normally meets at least
twice a year, has responsibility for making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy on
the remuneration of the Chairman, Executive Directors and other senior executives (as are delegated
to the committee to consider) and for determining, within agreed terms of reference, specific
remuneration packages for each of them, including pension rights, any compensation payments and
the implementation of executive incentive schemes. In accordance with the committee’s terms of
reference, no Director may participate in discussions relating to their own terms and conditions of
service or remuneration.

5.5 Nomination committee

The Nomination committee is chaired by the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director, John Bryant,
and its other members are the Non-Executive Director, Richard Armstrong, and the Chairman, Francis
Gugen. The committee, which meets at least twice a year, has responsibility for considering the size,
structure and composition of the Board, retirements and appointments of additional and replacement
Directors and making appropriate recommendations to the Board. The committee is also tasked with
ensuring that plans are in place for orderly succession to the Board and senior management positions,
so as to maintain an appropriate balance of skills and experience within the IGas Group and the Board.
The Chief Executive Officer of the Company is invited to attend meetings of the committee when the
committee is discussing matters related to executive management and such other matters as the
committee chairman deems appropriate.

5.6 Rotation of the Board

At each Annual General Meeting at least one-third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation.
The Directors to retire by rotation shall include, firstly, any Director who wishes to retire at the meeting
and not offer himself for re-election and, secondly, those Directors who have been longest in office
since their last appointment or reappointment, provided always that each Director shall be required to
retire and offer himself for re-election at least every three years. Directors appointed by the Board hold
office only until the dissolution of the Annual General Meeting of the Company next following such
appointment.

5.7 Internal control

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for establishing and maintaining the IGas Group’s
system of internal controls and reviewing its effectiveness. The procedures that include, inter alia,
financial, operational and compliance matters and risk management are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
The internal control system can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Board has considered the need for a separate internal audit function but,
bearing in mind the present size and composition of the IGas Group, does not consider it necessary at
the current time.

5.8 UK Bribery Act

The Company is aware of the legislation relating to the UK Bribery Act and is ensuring that it has in
place appropriate policies, procedures and will be reporting in full in the next published Annual Report
and Accounts.

5.9 Relations with shareholders

Communications with shareholders are considered important by the Directors. The primary contact
with shareholders, investors and analysts is the Chief Executive Officer. The other Executive Directors,
however, regularly speak to investors and analysts during the year. Company circulars and press
releases have also been issued throughout the year in relation to various proposals and for keeping
investors informed about the IGas Group’s progress.
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The Company also maintains a website on the internet (www.igasplc.com) that is regularly updated
and contains a wide range of information about the IGas Group.

5.10 AIM Compliance

In order to comply with the AIM Rules for Companies, the Board where necessary considers AIM
compliance matters at relevant Board meetings and reports back formally to its nominated adviser
confirming that it has made it aware of all relevant compliance matters.

6. Share Schemes for Directors and employees

The IGas Energy plc Super Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”)

In October 2010 the Company adopted a Long Term Incentive Plan scheme for certain key employees
of the IGas Group. Under the LTIP, participants can each be granted nil cost options over up to 1.5%
of the issued share capital of the Company (subject to an overall plan limit of 7.5% of the issued share
capital of the Company for all participants). The LTIP has a three year performance period and awards
vest subject to the achievement of stretching share price targets. On a change of control prior to the
third anniversary of the grant date, a revised share price target reflecting the reduction in the
performance period shall instead be used to determine the extent to which LTIP options vest. Other
than on a change of control, 50% of vested awards can be exercised and sold on vesting, with the
remaining 50% becoming exercisable on the first anniversary of vesting.

The IGas Energy plc Share Option Plan (“Share Option Plan”)

In October 2010 the Company adopted a Share Option Plan for certain key employees of the IGas
Group. Both qualifying executives, directors and employees may participate in the Share Option Plan.
Typically each individual participant can be granted options under the Share Option Plan with a market
value at grant of up to 100% of his base salary, although this limit can be exceeded in exceptional
circumstances. Share options vest in three equal tranches over a three year period from the date of
grant and vested options are exercisable subject to the attainment of a Company share price target.

The IGas Energy plc Long Term Incentive Plan (“2011 LTIP”)

On 21 November 2011 the Company adopted a Long Term Incentive Plan scheme for certain key
employees (directors or senior executives) of the IGas Group. Under the LTIP, participants can each
be granted options providing the aggregate number of plan shares issued or committed to be issued,
or granted in the preceding ten year period under any other employee share plan (whether or not
discretionary), operated by the IGas Group, does not exceed ten per cent of the Company’s issued
ordinary share capital at that time. The LTIP has a three year performance period and awards vest
subject to the achievement of performance targets. The general provision is that an option can be
vested in whole or in part during the exercise period. On a change of control prior to the third
anniversary of the grant date options shall vest on the date of change of control. The proportions of
options vesting will be determined by the Board taking into account the length of time the option has
been held by the participant and performance to date.

7. Employees

Details of the Group’s employees as at the date of this document are as follows:

Average numbers
for the three years

ended on 31 December 2010
Approximate

Current Numbers Year ended

Total 15 31/12/2010 31/12/2009 31/12/2008
Full-time 15 6 5 3
Part-time 0 0 0 0

An approximate breakdown of employees by category is as follows:

Executive Directors 3
Technical 5
Administrative 7

All employees are located in the United Kingdom.
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PART 9

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

1. Responsibility

The Directors, whose names appear on page 4 of this document, and the Company accept
responsibility for the information contained in this document including collective and individual
responsibility for the compliance with the AIM Rules for Companies. To the best of the knowledge and
belief of the Directors and the Company (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the
case), the information contained in this document is in accordance with the facts and contains no
omission likely to affect its import.

2. The Company and its subsidiaries

The Company is registered and domiciled in England and Wales, having been incorporated on
1 December 2003 under the Act as a public company limited by shares with registered number
4981279.

2.1 The principal legislation under which the Company operates is the Act and regulations made
thereunder.

2.2 The Company’s registered office is at 7 Down Street, London W1J 8AJ. The telephone
number of the Company’s registered office is 020 7993 9899.

2.3 The business of the Company and its principal activity is to act as a holding company.
Following Completion, the Enlarged Group’s main activity will be appraising, developing and
extracting hydrocarbons in the UK and providing technical and other related services to
operators in the industry, this activity and operation will be carried on by the Company’s
subsidiary undertakings.

2.4 As at the date of this document, the Company has 3 subsidiaries:

Name
Date of

incorporation
Country of

incorporation Interest

Island Gas Limited 12 November 2003 England 100%
Island Gas Operations Limited 22 May 2000 England 100%
IGas Exploration UK Limited 16 November 2001 England 100%

2.5 Immediately following Completion, the Company will be the holding company of the following
subsidiary companies:

Name
Date of

incorporation
Country of

incorporation Interest

Island Gas Limited 12 November 2003 England 100%
Island Gas Operations Limited 22 May 2000 England 100%
IGas Exploration UK Limited 16 November 2001 England 100%
Star Energy Group Limited 24 February 2004 England 100%
Star Energy Limited 14 July 1999 England 100%
Star Energy Weald Basin Limited 26 June 2007 Scotland 100%
Star Energy Oil & Gas Limited 7 July 1988 England 100%
Star Energy Oil UK Limited 25 February 1981 Scotland 100%
Star Energy (East Midlands) Limited 6 April 2000 England 100%
Larchford Limited 5 January 2006 Scotland 33.3%

2.6 The Company and its subsidiaries currently have 15 employees, following completion of the
Acquisition the Group will have 158 employees.

3. Share capital of the Company

3.1 As at 31 December 2007 the issued share capital of the Company was £29,553,591 divided
into 59,107,182 Ordinary Shares.

On 25 June 2008 the Company issued 3,222,460 Ordinary Shares at a price of 65p each, to
raise approximately £2,094,599 (before expenses) which represented £1,611,230 of called up
share capital and £483,369 of share premium.
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On 14 July 2009 the Company issued 5,766,666 Ordinary Shares at a price of 60p each.

On 10 December 2009 the Company issued 22,916,667 Ordinary Shares at a price of 60p
each.

On 16 April 2010 the Company issued 82,500 Ordinary Shares at a price of 55p each in
relation to the 82,500 warrants issued on 27 December 2007.

On 21 October 2010 the Company issued 2,013,956 Ordinary Shares at a price of 64.5p each.

On 9 March 2011 the Company acquired the entire issued share capital of Nexen Exploration
UK Limited (renamed IGas Exploration UK Limited) for a consideration of £29.2 million.
39,714,290 new Ordinary Shares were allotted to Nexen Petroleum UK Limited credited as
fully paid in consideration for this acquisition. The Company raised gross proceeds of
£20.625 million for 27,500,000 new Ordinary Shares when this acquisition became
unconditional on 9 March 2011.

3.2 The existing authorised and issued fully paid up share capital of the Company as at the date of
this document is set out below:

Authorised
Number of

issued and fully
paid up shares £

Ordinary Shares of 50p each 160,323,721 80,161,860.50

3.3 Save as otherwise disclosed in paragraph 3.1 above there has been no change in the amount
of the issued share or loan capital of the Company and no material change in the amount of
the issued share or loan capital of any other member of the IGas Group (other than intra-
group issues by wholly-owned subsidiaries) in the three years preceding the date of this
document/since the incorporation of the Company. No shares in the Company are held by the
Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings.

3.4 Save as disclosed in this document, there are no acquisition rights or obligations over
authorised but unissued share capital of the Company and there is no undertaking to increase
the share capital.

3.5 The provisions of section 561 of the Act, which confers on shareholders rights of pre-emption
in respect of the allotment of equity securities which are, or are to be, paid up fully in cash,
other than by way of allotment to employees under an employee share scheme (as defined in
section 1166 of the Act) will apply to the balance of the authorised but unissued Ordinary
Share capital of the Company, to the extent that such rights are not disapplied by special
resolution by the shareholders pursuant to section 570 of the Act.

3.6 Save as disclosed in this document, no commission, discounts, brokerages or other specific
terms have been granted by the Company in connection with the issue or sale of any of its
share or loan capital.

3.7 The International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) for the Ordinary Shares is
GB00B29PWM59.

3.8 Following Admission, the Ordinary Shares may be held in registered form and in either
certificated or uncertificated form.

4. Share Options and Warrants

4.1 Save as set out in parts 5, 8 and 9 of this document, there are no outstanding share options or
warrants.

4.2 Save as disclosed in this document, no share capital of the Company will, at Admission, be
under option or be agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be put under option.

5. Articles of Association

The Articles contain, inter alia, provisions to the following effect:

5.1.1 Rights attaching to Ordinary Shares

(a) Voting rights of members

Subject to disenfranchisement in the event of (a) non-payment of any call or other
sum due and payable in respect of any share or (b) any non-compliance with any
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statutory notice requiring disclosure of the beneficial ownership of any shares and
subject to any special rights or restrictions as to voting for the time being attached to
any shares (as to which there will be none following Admission), on a show of hands
every member who, being an individual, is present in person or by proxy or being a
corporation, is present by a duly authorised representative who is not himself a
member entitled to vote shall have one vote and on a poll shall have one vote for
every share of which he is a holder. In the case of joint holders, the vote of the person
whose name stands first in the register of members is accepted to the exclusion of
any votes tendered by any other joint holders.

(b) Dividends

Subject to the rights attached to any shares issued on any special terms and
conditions (as to which there will be none at Admission), dividends shall be declared
and paid according to the amounts paid up on the shares on which the dividend is
paid, but no amount paid up on a share in advance of a call shall be regarded as paid
up on the share. Dividends are not payable on any fixed dates.

(c) Restrictions on shareholders

Subject to the AIM Rules for Companies, if a member or any other person appearing
to be interested in shares, has been given notice under section 793 of the Companies
Act 2006 and has failed to give information of their interest in any shares (the “Default
Shares”) within a prescribed time, the member shall not be entitled in respect of the
Default Shares to attend or vote either personally or by proxy at a general meeting of
the Company or a meeting of the holders of any class of shares or to exercise any
other right in relation to general meetings of the Company or meeting of the holders of
any class of its shares.

Where the Default Shares represent 0.25 per cent. or more (in nominal value or
number) of the issued shares of a class, then the Company shall be entitled to
withhold any dividend (or part thereof), any right to receive shares instead of a
dividend or other money which would otherwise be payable in respect of the Default
Shares. Where the Default Shares represent 0.25 per cent. or more (in nominal value
or number) of the issued shares of a class, then no transfer of the Default Shares
shall be registered.

5.1.2 Redeemable shares

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts any shares may, with the sanction of a
special resolution, be issued on terms that they are, or at the option of the Company or the
Member are liable, to be redeemed on such terms and in such manner as may be provided for
by these Articles or by a resolution of the Board.

5.1.3 Deferred Shares

There are certain special rights, privileges, restrictions and limitations attaching to deferred
shares as follows:

(a) Deferred shares shall not be entitled to any dividends or to any other right or
participation in the profits of the Company,

(b) On a return of assets on liquidation, deferred shares shall confer on the holders
thereof an entitlement to receive out of the assets of the Company available for
distribution amongst the members (subject to the rights of any new class of shares
with preferred rights) the amount paid up or credit as paid up on the deferred shares
held by them respectively after (but only after) payment shall have been made to the
holders of the ordinary shares of the amounts paid up or credited as paid up on such
shares and the sum of £10,000,000 in respect of each ordinary share held by them
respectively. The holders of deferred shares shall have no further right to participate
in the assets of the Company,

(c) The holders of deferred shares shall not be entitled to vote upon any resolution and
shall not be entitled to receive notice of, attend any general meeting, or be part of the
quorum thereof as the holders of the deferred shares,
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(d) Any reduction of capital involving the cancellation of deferred shares for no
consideration shall not be deemed to be a variation of the rights attaching to them nor
a modification or abrogation of the rights or privileges attaching to the deferred
shares,

(e) The special rights conferred upon the holders of deferred shares shall be deemed not
to be modified, varied or abrogated by the creation or issue of further shares ranking
pari passu with or in priority to the deferred shares,

(f) Deferred shares shall not be entitled to be reissued with a share certificate,

(g) No transfer of any deferred shares shall be permitted save that the Company shall
have irrecoverable authority at any time to appoint any person to execute on behalf of
the holders of the deferred shares a transfer thereof and/or an agreement to transfer
the same, without making any payment to the holders thereof or g, to such person as
the Company may determine as custodian thereof and/or to cancel the same without
making any payment to the holders thereof and/or acquire the same (in accordance
with the provisions of the Acts) without making any payment to or obtaining the
sanction of the holders thereof.

5.1.4 Rights of pre-emption

To the extent that such rights are not disapplied by special resolution by the shareholders
pursuant to section 570 of the Companies Act 2006, shares in the Company are subject to the
rights of pre-emption conferred by Chapter 3 of the Companies Act 2006 and in particular
section 561 of the Companies Act 2006 which provides that issues by the Company of equity
securities for cash must be carried out on a pre-emptive basis, with the shares being offered
to holders of relevant shares in proportion to their existing holdings.

5.1.5 Transfer of shares

A member may transfer all or any of his uncertificated shares and the Company shall register
the transfer of any uncertificated shares in accordance with any applicable statutory provision.
The Directors may refuse to register the transfer of an uncertificated share or any
renounceable right of allotment of a share which is a participating security held in
uncertificated form in accordance with the CREST Regulations to the extent that the Company
is permitted to do so by the CREST Regulations, provided that where the uncertificated shares
are admitted to AIM, such a refusal would not prevent dealings in the shares of that class
taking place on an open and proper basis. If the Board refuses to register a transfer of an
uncertificated share it shall, within two months of the date on which the operator instruction
relating to such a transfer was received by the Company, send to the transferee notice of the
refusal.

A member may transfer all or any of his certificated shares by an instrument in writing in any
usual form, or in any other form which the Directors may approve. The instrument of transfer
shall be executed by or on behalf of the transferee. The Directors may, in their absolute
discretion and without giving any reason, refuse to register the transfer of a certificated share
which is not fully paid up but shall not be bound to specify the grounds upon which such
registration is refused provided that, where any such shares are admitted to AIM, such a
refusal would not prevent dealings in the shares of that class taking place on an open and
proper basis. The Directors may also refuse to register a transfer of a certificated share or a
renunciation of a renounceable letter of allotment, whether or not fully paid, unless the
instrument of transfer is lodged, duly stamped or adjudged or certified as not chargeable to
stamp duty, at the transfer office, or such other place as the Directors may appoint and is
accompanied by the certificate(s) for the share(s) to which it relates and such other evidence
as the Directors may reasonably require to show the right of the transferor to make the
transfer or the person renouncing to effect the renunciation. If the Directors refuse to register a
transfer of a share they shall, within two months after the date on which the transfer was
lodged with the Company, send to the transferee notice of the refusal.

The Directors may refuse to register any transfer unless it is in respect of only one class of
share and is in favour of not more than four transferees or renouncees.

266



5.1.6 Changes in capital

The Company may by ordinary resolution:

(a) allot and grant rights to subscribe for or convert any security into shares of such
amounts as the resolution shall prescribe;

(b) consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of a larger amount
than its existing shares;

(c) sub-divide its shares, or any of them, into shares of a smaller amount than its existing
Shares (subject to the provisions of the Companies Act); and

(d) cancel shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not been taken
or agreed to be taken by any person.

Subject to the provisions of the statutes and the AIM Rules for Companies and to the
rights attaching to existing shares, the Company may:

(i) by special resolution purchase, or enter into a contract under which it will or
may purchase, its own shares; and

(ii) by special resolution reduce its share capital, any capital redemption reserve
share premium account or other undistributable reserve in any manner.

5.1.7 Conversion of shares and stock

Subject to the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001, the Company’s Board may allow
certified shares (as defined in the Company’s Articles) to be converted into uncertified shares
(as defined in the Company’s Articles) and vice versa make rules which govern the mechanics
of conversion and redemption of such shares.

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Acts and the Company’s Articles and to any
confirmation or consent required by law the Company may from time to time purchase its own
shares of any class (including any redeemable shares) at any price, and whether above or
below the nominal value of the shares and may enter into and vary any contract for such
purchase provided that if the Company has in issue any shares which entitle the holders to
convert them (whether immediately or otherwise) into equity shares of the Company
(“Convertible Shares”) then no purchase by the Company of any of its own shares shall take
place unless it has been sanctioned by a special resolution passed at a separate class
meeting of the holders of such class of Convertible Shares.

As from the date of the adoption of the Company’s Articles, the Company is not permitted to
convert further shares into stock. The Company may from time to time in general meeting
reconvert any pre-existing stock into fully paid shares of any denomination.

5.1.8 Variation of rights

Subject to the provisions of the statutes, if at any time the capital of the Company is divided
into different classes of shares (which it will not be following Admission), the rights attached to
any class may be varied or abrogated in such manner with the consent in writing of the
holders of not less than three-quarters in nominal value of the issued shares of that class or
with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a separate meeting of the holders of the
shares of that class. At any separate general meeting, the necessary quorum shall be two
persons holding or representing by proxy at least one-third in nominal amount of the issued
shares of the class in question or, at any adjourned meeting of such holders, shall be one
person holding shares of the class in question in person or by proxy whatever his or their
holding. Every holder of the shares of the class present in person or by proxy shall, on a show
of hands or on a poll, have one vote in respect of every share of the class held by them
respectively and a poll may be demanded by any holder of shares of the class present in
person or by proxy.

5.1.9 Directors

(a) The number of Directors (other than alternate Directors) shall not be less than four.
There shall be no more than 10 Directors. The quorum for meetings of the Board may
be fixed by the Board and, unless so fixed, shall be two.
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(b) A Director shall not be required to hold any shares of the Company by way of
qualification.

(c) There shall be no age limit for Directors.

(d) At each annual general meeting at least one-third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation. The Directors to retire by rotation shall include,
firstly, any Director who wishes to retire at the meeting and not offer himself for
re-election and, secondly, those Directors who have been longest in office since their
last appointment or reappointment, provided always that each Director shall be
required to retire and offer himself for re-election at least every three years. The
retiring Director shall, if willing to act, be deemed to have been reappointed, unless at
the general meeting it is resolved not to fill the vacancy or a resolution for the
reappointment of the director is put to the meeting and not passed.

(e) The Directors shall be entitled to such remuneration by way of fees (excluding
amounts payable under other provisions of the Articles) for their services in the office
of a Director as the Directors may determine (not exceeding £600,000 in aggregate
per annum or such larger sum as the Company may, by ordinary resolution, decide).
Such fee (unless otherwise directed by the resolution of the Company) shall be
divided between the Directors as they agree or, failing agreement, equally.

(f) The Directors may also be paid all travelling, hotel and other expenses properly
incurred by them in connection with their attendance at meetings of the Directors or of
committees of the Directors or general meetings or separate meetings of the holders
of any class of shares of the Company.

(g) The Directors may provide benefits, whether by the payment of gratuities or pensions
or by purchasing and maintaining insurance or otherwise, for the benefit of any
persons who are or were at any time Directors or the holders of any executive or
comparable office of employment with the Company or any other company or
undertaking which is or has been (a) a subsidiary of the Company or (b) otherwise
allied to or associated with the Company or a subsidiary of the Company or (c) a
predecessor in business of the Company or of any such subsidiary.

(h) Subject to the provisions of the statutes a Director may be a party to or otherwise
interested in any contract, transaction, arrangement or proposal with the Company or
in which the Company is otherwise interested either in regard to his tenure of any
office or place or profit or as vendor purchaser or otherwise. A Director may hold any
other office or place of profit under the Company (except that of auditor or auditor of a
subsidiary of the Company) in conjunction with the office of director and may act by
himself or through his firm in such professional capacity to the Company and in any
such case on such terms as to remuneration and otherwise as the Directors may
arrange. Any remuneration shall be in addition to any remuneration provided for by
any other article.

(i) A Director who to his knowledge is in any way (directly or indirectly) interested in a
contract, transaction, arrangement or proposal with the Company shall declare the
nature of his interest at the meeting of the Board at which the question of entering into
such contract, transaction, arrangement or proposal is first considered if he knows his
interest then exists or in any other case at the first meeting of the Board after he
knows that he is or has become so interested.

(j) A Director shall not vote or be counted in the quorum on any resolution of the
directors concerning his own appointment (including the fixing and varying of terms of
appointment) as the holder of any office or place of profit with the Company or any
other company in which the Company is directly or indirectly interested. Where
proposals are under consideration concerning the appointment (including the fixing or
varying of terms of appointment) of two or more Directors to offices or employment
with the Company or any body corporate in which the Company is interested the
proposals may be divided and considered in relation to each Director separately and
(provided he is not under the Articles or for any other reason precluded from voting)
each of the Directors concerned shall be entitled to vote and be counted in the
quorum in respect of each resolution except that concerning his own appointment.
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(k) A Director shall not vote or count in the quorum in relation to a resolution or meeting
of the Directors in respect of any contract or arrangement or any other proposals
whatsoever in which he has an interest which (together with any interest of a
connected person) to his knowledge is material interest. Notwithstanding the above, a
Director shall be entitled to vote (and be counted in the quorum) on: (a) any contract
in which he is interested by virtue of his interest in shares or debentures or other
securities of or otherwise in or through the Company; (b) the giving of any guarantee,
security or indemnity to him in respect of money lent or obligations incurred by him or
by any other person at the request of, or for the benefit of, the Company or any of its
subsidiary undertakings; or the giving of any guarantee, security or indemnity to a
third party in respect of a debt or obligation of the Company or any of its subsidiary
undertakings for which he himself has assumed responsibility in whole or in part and
whether alone or jointly with others under a guarantee or indemnity or by the giving of
security; (c) any matter relating to an offer of shares, debentures or other securities of
or by the Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings in which offer the Director is
or may be entitled to participate as a holder of securities or in the underwriting or
sub-underwriting of which the Director is to participate; (d) any contract, transaction,
arrangement or proposal to which the Company is or is to be a party relating to
another company, including any subsidiary of the Company, in which he and any
persons connected with him do not to his knowledge (directly or indirectly) hold an
interest in shares (as that term is used in Part 22 of the Companies Act 2006)
whether as an officer, Shareholder, creditor or otherwise representing one per cent.
or more of any class of the equity share capital, or the voting rights, in that company
or of any other company through which his interest is derived; (e) any contract,
transaction, arrangement or proposal for the benefit of employees of the Company or
any of its subsidiary undertakings (including in relation to a pension fund, retirement,
death or disability benefits scheme or personal pension plan) which does not award
him any privilege or benefit not generally awarded to the employees to whom the
arrangement relates; and (f) any contract, transaction, arrangement or proposal
concerning insurance which the Company proposes to maintain or purchase for the
benefit of Directors or for the benefit of persons including Directors.

5.1.10 Borrowing powers

The Board may exercise all the powers of the Company to borrow money and to mortgage or
charge all or any part of its undertaking, property and assets (both present and future) and
uncalled capital and to issue debentures and other securities, whether outright or as collateral
security for any debt, liability or obligation of the Company or of any third party. The Board
shall restrict the borrowings of the Company and exercise all voting and other rights or powers
of control exercisable by the Company in relation to its subsidiary undertakings (if any) so as
to secure (as regards subsidiary undertakings only so far as by such exercise it can secure)
that the aggregate principal amount outstanding at any time in respect of all borrowings by the
IGas Group (exclusive of any borrowings which are owed by one IGas Group company to
another IGas Group company) after deducting the amount of cash deposited will not, without
the previous sanction of the Company in general meeting, exceed an amount equal to three
times the Adjusted Capital and Reserves (as defined in Article 43.3 of the Company’s Articles)
or any higher limit fixed by ordinary resolution of the Company which is applicable at the
relevant time.

5.1.11 Meetings

Subject to the provisions of the Act, an annual general meeting shall be called by at least
twenty-one clear days’ notice in writing, and all other general meetings shall be called by at
least fourteen clear days’ notice in writing. The notice should specify the place, the date and
the time of meeting and the general nature of the business to be transacted. A general
meeting shall, notwithstanding that it has been called by shorter notice than that specified
above, be deemed to have been duly called if it is so agreed in the case of an annual general
meeting, by all the members entitled to attend and vote at the meeting; and in the case of any
other meeting, by a majority in number of the members having a right to attend and vote at
that meeting, being a majority together holding not less than 95 per cent. in nominal value of
the shares giving that right.
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5.1.12 Unclaimed dividends

Any dividend which has remained unclaimed for twelve years from the date when it became
due for payment shall, if the Directors so resolve, be forfeited, revert to and cease to remain
owing by the Company.

5.2 Mandatory Bids

The City Code applies to the Company. Under the City Code, if an acquisition of Ordinary
Shares were to increase the aggregate holding of the acquiror and its concert parties to
shares carrying 30 per cent. or more of the voting rights in the Company, the acquiror and,
depending on the circumstances, its concert parties would be required (except with the
consent of the Panel on Takeovers and Mergers) to make a cash offer for the outstanding
shares in the Company at a price not less than the highest price paid for the Ordinary Shares
by the acquiror or its concert parties during the previous 12 months. This requirement would
also be triggered by any acquisition of shares by a person holding (together with its concert
parties) shares carrying between 30 and 50 per cent. of the voting rights in the Company if the
effect of such acquisition were to increase that person’s percentage of the voting rights. There
are no provisions in the New Articles of Association of the Company delaying, deterring or
preventing a change of control of the Company.

5.3 Mandatory compulsory purchase or “squeeze out” provisions

Sections 974 to 991 of the Companies Act 2006 are applicable to the Company, so should a
takeover offer be made for all the Ordinary Shares then in issue (other than any already held
by the offeror) and the offeror, by virtue of acceptances of the offer, has acquired or
contracted to acquire not less than nine-tenths of such Ordinary Shares, excluding any such
shares held in treasury, the offeror may compulsorily acquire the rest of such Ordinary Shares
upon the same terms as those contained in the offer by serving a statutory notice on each
holder of such Ordinary Shares who has not accepted the offer. Further, a holder of Ordinary
Shares who has not accepted the offer may, where the offeror has acquired or contracted to
acquire not less than nine-tenths of such Ordinary Shares, give notice to the offeror, requiring
the offeror to purchase his Ordinary Shares. If the offeror has not previously served notice
requiring the compulsory acquisition by the offeror of the outstanding Ordinary Shares it must
serve notice upon each holder of such Ordinary Shares who has not accepted the offer, within
one month of the right of the holder to require the offeror to purchase his Ordinary Shares
arising, setting out the rights of such holders to require the offeror to purchase their Ordinary
Shares which may specify a time limit for the exercise of those rights which may end no earlier
than three months after the end of the period within which the offer can be accepted.

Where a notice has been served by the offeror on a holder of Ordinary Shares requiring the
compulsory acquisition of his Ordinary Shares, such holder may challenge the same by
applying to the court within six weeks of the notice being served upon him. The court may
order that the offeror shall not be entitled to acquire the relevant Ordinary Shares or that it
may only do so on different terms from those of the offer, although to succeed the relevant
holder of Ordinary Shares will have to show that the terms of the offer are unfair. Where a
holder of Ordinary Shares has served a notice upon an offeror, requiring the offer to purchase
his Ordinary Shares, either such holder or the offeror may apply to the court for an order that
the relevant Ordinary Shares shall be acquired on different terms to those set out in the offer.
The court may not order a holder of Ordinary Shares who is making an application to pay any
costs or expenses unless it considers that the application was unnecessary, improper or
vexatious, there has been unreasonable delay in making his application or unreasonable
conduct on his part in conducting the proceedings.

5.4 Notice of 3% interests

Subject to certain qualifications and exceptions, Chapter 5 of the Admission and Disclosure
Rules of the Financial Services Authority requires that a person who acquires an interest in
3% or more of the voting rights attaching to issued voting shares of a company whose shares
are admitted to trading on AIM must, within two business days of such acquisition, or of his
becoming aware of the facts constituting the acquisition of the interest, notify the Company
and the FSA of his interest. If while he has such an interest, he acquires or disposes of an
interest in 1% or more of the voting rights attaching to issued voting shares of the Company
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he must notify that event, and must also notify the cessation of his having a 3% interest.
Where a person is party to an agreement between two or more persons which obliges them to
adopt by concerted exercise of voting rights a lasting common policy towards the management
of the Company, the interests of all such persons are aggregated for the purposes of the
notification provisions and each party is required to notify not only his own interests and
changes therein but those of the other parties to the agreement. All notifications received
under these provisions will be the subject of a public announcement under the AIM Rules for
Companies.

5.5 Requirement to disclose interests in voting rights

Under provisions contained in Part 22 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company may serve a
notice on any person who it believes has, or may in the three previous years have had , an
interest in its voting shares requiring them to give particulars of their interest, or, if no interest
is then held, of any person to whom any previous interest was transferred. The Company must
exercise its right to serve such a notice if required to do so by holders of at least 10% of its
paid up voting shares. Failure to comply with a notice is a criminal offence and the Company
may impose sanctions against the Shareholder concerned under its Articles of Association
including disenfranchisement, withholding of dividends and restrictions on transfer. “Interest” is
widely defined and includes an interest of any kind in the shares, subject to certain specific
exclusions, but “interest” includes, inter alia, an agreement to purchase shares or the right to
do so by virtue of an option and a person is interested in shares held by companies which he
controls or by his spouse, civil partner and children and where a person is party to an
agreement between two or more persons that includes provisions for the acquisition by any
one or more of them of interests in shares of the Company which imposes obligations or
restrictions on any one or more of the parties with respect to their use, retention or disposal of
such interests and such interests are acquired in pursuance of any agreement, each party to
the agreement is regarded as interested in the shares held by each other such party.

6. Substantial shareholders

6.1 Save for the following persons disclosed below, the Company is not aware of any person who,
at the date of this document and following the Acquisition, directly or indirectly, jointly or
severally, holds or will hold three per cent. or more of the Issued Share Capital of the
Company or exercises or could exercise control over the Company:

As at the date of this
document and following

Admission
No. of

Ordinary
Shares

% of Share
Capital

Nexen Petroleum UK Limited 39,714,290 24.77
Francis Gugen 27,615,764 17.23
Levine Management and Peter Levine 14,429,135 8.80
Brent Cheshire 11,429,253 7.13
Andrew Austin 10,659,253 6.65
Baillie Gifford 8,088,217 5.04

6.2 All shareholders have identical voting rights in respect of the Ordinary Shares held by them.
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7. Material contracts

7.1 The following contracts (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business)
have been entered into by the Company or another member of the IGas Group (i) within the
two years immediately preceding the date of this document and are, or may be, material or
(ii) at any time and contain provisions under which any member of the IGas Group has an
obligation or entitlement which is material to the IGas Group at the date of this document:

Financing Agreements

7.1.1 On Completion, the Company will issue the Warrants to Macquarie pursuant to the Warrant
Instrument to acquire Ordinary Shares at an exercise price of 55.8 pence. The principal terms
of the Warrant Instrument are as follows:

(a) the Warrants may be exercised at any time from the first utilisation of a Loan (as
defined in the Credit Agreement) until the earlier of:

(i) the date on which all Warrants have been exercised;

(ii) the date of termination of the Warrants pursuant to a takeover offer for the
Company; and

(iii) six years after the date of first utilisation of the Loan as defined in the Credit
Agreement (or, if on the applicable end date, the holder would be considered
to have non-public price sensitive information relating to the Company, 90
days following the date on which the holder is no longer considered to hold
such information);

(b) Ordinary Shares issued on the exercise of the Warrants will rank in all respects pari
passu with existing fully paid Ordinary Shares;

(c) the holder of the Warrants can elect to exercise all or some of the Warrants according
to four completion methods:

(i) regular exercise, whereby the holder makes remittance to the Company on
the date of exercise of an amount equal to the aggregate Subscription Price
(as defined in the Warrant Instrument, being 55.8 pence unless nominal
exercise applies – see paragraph 7.1.1(c) (iii) below);

(ii) facility offset, whereby an amount of indebtedness owed by the Company to
the holder is satisfied by the issue of Ordinary Shares pursuant to the
exercise of the Warrants;

(iii) nominal exercise, whereby the holder can elect to exercise the Warrants at
an exercise price of the par value of the shares. The number of Warrants
which can be exercised in this way is calculated in accordance with a formula
contained in the Warrant Instrument; and

(iv) cashless exercise, whereby the holder can exercise a proportion of the
Warrants when the share price is equal to the Cashless Exercise Price (as
calculated in accordance with the Warrant Instrument). The remaining
Warrants to be exercised using this method are then cancelled and
discharged by the holder in consideration of the payment by the Company of
an amount equal to the aggregate strike price for the shares to be issued
pursuant to the exercise of the Warrants. The obligation of the Company to
pay such amount is offset against the obligation of the holder to pay the
subscription price in respect of the Ordinary Shares issued pursuant to this
completion method. The cashless exercise mechanism falls away in the
event that the Company passes resolutions to reduce the nominal value of its
Ordinary Shares to 10p or less.

(d) the Warrant Instrument contains provisions for the appropriate adjustment of the
number of Ordinary Shares issued on the exercise of the Warrants and the
subscription price upon a subdivision, consolidation, capitalisation of profits or
reserves or other reorganisation of share capital;

(e) during the subscription period, the Company undertakes:

(i) to maintain sufficient authorities to issue Ordinary Shares to satisfy the
exercise of the Warrants,
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(ii) not to issue any share capital other than Ordinary Shares pursuant to the
Warrants;

(iii) not to alter the Articles or the rights attached to the Ordinary Shares, except
for alterations which are properly adjusted for under the Warrant Instrument
and would not be otherwise prejudicial to the economic interest of the holder;

(iv) not to issue or pay up securities by way of capitalisation of profits or reserves
other than Ordinary Shares issued pursuant to the Warrants and properly
adjusted for under the Warrant Instrument;

(v) not to issue any equity share capital for less than full market value;

(vi) not to declare or pay any dividend or make any distribution of profits or
reserves without making a simultaneous payment to the holder of a sum
equal to the amount which it would have received had it exercised its rights in
full;

(vii) not to reduce its share capital or share premium account or capital
redemption reserve without the holders’ written consent;

(viii) not to purchase or redeem any share capital (other than deferred shares
having no economic value) without the written consent of the holder;

(ix) not to offer or invite its shareholders to subscribe for equity share capital
unless it notifies the holder and provides it with the same information at the
same time as it provides such information to the shareholders;

(x) not to carry out a placing of shares or other non-pre-emptive issue unless the
holder is offered, on the same terms, to participate in the placing, such
participation to be calculated in accordance with a formula contained in the
Warrant Instrument; and

(xi) not to grant any other share options unless the holder is offered a
participation on the same terms;

(f) if a takeover offer is made to all holders of Ordinary Shares, the Company shall notify
the holder and procure that the offer remains open for a minimum of 15 business
days to allow the holder to exercise its Warrants and participate in the takeover offer;

(g) Warrants may be transferred to a nominee, trustee or affiliate of or fund managed by
the holder without the Company’s consent or to any other proposed transferee with
the consent of the Company; and

(h) the Company will use its reasonable endeavours to procure that its existing share
capital is sub-divided to a price of not more than 10 pence per share as soon as
reasonably practicable after the date of the Warrant Instrument (and no later than six
months after such date).

7.1.2 On 21 November 2011 the Company and Macquarie entered into a senior secured facility
agreement (the “Credit Agreement”). The Credit Agreement consists of three separate
facilities:

(i) a US$90,000,000 5 year senior secured term loan, carrying interest at 5.5% over
LIBOR and a 2% commitment fee;

(ii) a US$45,000,000 5 year senior secured term loan, carrying interest at 12% above
LIBOR and a commitment fee of 3.5%; and

(iii) an uncommitted working capital facility of up to US$15,000,000 which may be made
available at the discretion of Macquarie.

The Credit Agreement contains certain representations, warranties and covenants customary
for a credit facility of this nature. Such covenants include the provision of financial and
reporting information, compliance with environmental law, maintenance of financial ratios and
certain restrictions on mergers, acquisitions, joint ventures, granting of security, disposals,
issuances of loans, incurrence of financial indebtedness and on payments of dividends by the
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Company and the other Obligors (as defined below). The Credit Agreement also contains
customary events of default, the occurrence of which allow Macquarie (and any other lender
that accedes to the Credit Agreement) to accelerate outstanding loans and terminate the
commitments. The facilities are required to be repaid in full on the date that is 60 months
following the completion of the Acquisition, on a change of control and the sale of the assets of
the Group. In addition mandatory prepayments are to be made upon the occurrence of certain
specified events, including upon certain disposals.

The obligations each of the obligors under the Credit Agreement and related documents are
guaranteed by the Company, each of the IGas Subsidiaries and the Star Subsidiaries
(excluding Larchford Limited and Star Energy Oil UK Limited) (together the “Obligors”) which
entities will accede to the Credit Agreement as additional guarantors on completion of the
Acquisition.

7.1.3 As security for the payment and discharge of the obligations and liabilities of the Obligors
under the Credit Agreement and related documents, on 21 November 2011 each of the
Obligors entered into a debenture (the “Debenture”) in favour of Macquarie (and any other
lender that accedes to the Credit Agreement). The Debenture contains a grant of fixed and
floating charges over all of the assets of each Obligor including a charge over the shares in its
subsidiaries and an assignment of its right, title and interest in the material contracts to which
it is a party and its insurance policies. The Debenture also contains certain covenants such as
the maintenance of the assets charged, the realization of receivables in designated collection
accounts and a restriction on the disposal of any of the assets charged. The Debenture is
expressed to be enforceable upon the occurrence and continuation of an Event of Default (as
defined in the Credit Agreement) in which case any monies realised by such enforcement
would be applied in accordance with the terms of the Credit Agreement.

Hedging Agreements

7.1.4 On 31 October 2011, the Company entered into a 2002 ISDA Master Agreement with
Macquarie Bank Limited. Under the 2002 ISDA Master Agreement, together with the
Schedules and Confirmations made or to be made thereunder (the “Macquarie ISDA Master
Agreement”), the Company agreed to enter into a number of derivative transactions with
Macquarie. These derivative transactions will hedge the future exposure of the Company and
its subsidiaries to fluctuations in certain rates or prices that the Company will be exposed to
after completion of the Acquisition and financing agreements related to the Acquisition.
Pursuant to the Macquarie ISDA Master Agreement, the Company agreed to enter into swap
transactions with the Bank hedging foreign exchange risk and the price of Brent Crude Oil.

7.1.5 On 31 October 2011, the Company, together with the IGas Subsidiaries entered into a
guarantee agreement with Macquarie Bank Limited (the “Guarantee Agreement”). The primary
purpose of the Guarantee Agreement was for the IGas Subsidiaries to guarantee the
Company’s obligations to Macquarie under the Macquarie ISDA Master Agreement, pursuant
to which the Company entered into a number of derivative transactions with Macquarie. In the
Guarantee Agreement the Company provided certain representations and warranties to
Macquarie regarding the accuracy of information and quality of security that it had provided to
Macquarie, pursuant to the Macquarie ISDA Master Agreement and a security agreement
entered into with Macquarie in relation to the derivative transactions. The Guarantee
Agreement also required the Company to provide certain documentation to Macquarie relating
to the IGas Group and the Acquisition of Star Energy Group Limited.

7.1.6 On 31 October 2011, the Company, together with the IGas Subsidiaries entered into a security
agreement with Macquarie Bank Limited (the “Security Agreement”) whereby the Company
and the IGas Subsidiaries agreed to provide security in favour of Macquarie, in relation to their
respective obligations under the Macquarie ISDA Master Agreement and the related
Guarantee Agreement. Under the Security Agreement, the Company created a first fixed
charge in favour of Macquarie over a number of the assets of the Company, including the
receivables, buildings and machinery, hydrocarbon licences and field rights, and securities of
the Company as well as creating a floating charge over all additional present and future
business, assets and undertaking. This security relates to the obligations of the Company
arising out of the Macquarie ISDA Master Agreement, pursuant to which the Company entered
into a number of derivative transactions with Macquarie, hedging the Company’s future
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exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and the price of Brent Crude Oil.
Additionally, under the security agreement the Company also granted Power of Attorney to the
Bank, in order to (among other things) allow the bank, if necessary, to carry out on behalf of
the Company, any obligation of the Company that is owed to the Bank under the Security
Agreement or any other agreement to which the Bank is a party.

Acquisition Agreements

7.1.7 The Acquisition Agreement is dated 16 September 2011 between (1) IGas and (2) Petronas.
Pursuant to the terms of the Acquisition Agreement IGas has agreed to purchase the entire
issued share capital of Star together with the benefit of a loan outstanding from Star to
Petronas from Petronas for a consideration of £110 million in cash.

The Acquisition Agreement contains warranties from Petronas with respect to, amongst other
things, the proper and lawful operation of the business of Star and the capacity of Petronas as
seller.

Any claims which could potentially be made by IGas against Petronas are limited by the terms
of the Acquisition Agreement to the value of £100 million and, in respect of warranty claims,
any claims may only be made where the liability in relation to the claim exceeds £5 million for
any individual claim, and an aggregate of £10 million for all claims.

A time limit of 9 months following 31 March 2011 is imposed for making claims under the
general warranties and a time limit of 6 years following 31 March 2011 is imposed for making
claims under the tax warranties or under the Tax Deed. The Acquisition Agreement is
governed by English law.

7.1.8 On 16 September 2011 the Company and Petronas Energy Trading Limited (“Petronas
Energy”) entered into a gas sales and marketing deed in which the Company will sell up to
150 Bscf of gas to Petronas Energy and provide additional services. The price is set by the
last published price in the latest issue of European Spot Gas Markets. Petronas has the
exclusive right to purchase and market all quantities of gas produced from the resource base,
or properly nominated or delivered at the delivery points.

7.1.9 At Completion the Company will enter into a services agreement with Star Energy HG Gas
Storage Limited (“Star Energy HG”) and Star Energy Weald Basin Limited (“SEW”) (the “Star
Energy HG Services Agreement”) whereby SEW will provide certain operational and
management services (as detailed in the SEW Services Agreement) in respect of certain
retained gas storage businesses following the completion of the Acquisition Agreement and
Reorganisation (as defined thereunder). Under the Star Energy HG Services Agreement, Star
Energy HG will pay fees on a monthly invoice basis of pro rata personnel costs equivalent to
the 12 month period prior to completion of the Acquisition plus 18 per cent (subject to annual
review).

7.1.10 At Completion SEW and Star Energy HG will enter into a services agreement (“the SEW
Services Agreement”) whereby Star Energy HG will provide control room access to certain
personnel in connection with monitoring, operating and managing of certain oil fields
transferred as part of the Reorganisation (as defined in the Acquisition Agreement) and/or
certain office facilities in relation to the same. SEW will pay £10,000 in monthly arrears for the
term of the SEW Services Agreement. The term of the SEW Services Agreement is 6 months
unless otherwise agreed between the parties.

7.1.11 On Completion Star Energy HG Gas Storage Limited (“HGGSL”) and Star Energy Weald
Basin Limited (“SEW”) will enter into an oil sale and purchase agreement. Under this
agreement the Company has agreed to transfer its interests in a retained licence (licence
number P116) and related assets to HGGSL and SEW has agreed to purchase oil from
HGGSL. The oil is in relation to production from Humbly Grove and the Herriard Field. SEW
will also arrange for the transportation of the oil. HGGSL warrants on an indemnity basis that
the oil made available for delivery and sale is in accordance with the specification. Indicative
volumes are to be agreed not less than one month before the next calendar year and
provisions for detailing the quantity are provided for in the agreement. The agreement remains
in force until the retained licence expires or, if earlier, then HGGSL serving 12 months’ written
notice on SEW. Payment due is in US$ and is set by a formula related to the price per barrel
of oil less sums for discounts.
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7.1.12 The parties to the Acquisition Agreement have also entered into a taxation deed (the “Tax
Deed”) pursuant to which Petronas has agreed to indemnify IGas against certain charges to
taxation should such charges arise in the future out of the activities of Petronas prior to the
date of Completion. Claims under the Tax Deed may be brought for a period of up to 6 years
following 31 March 2011.

7.1.13 On 2 May 2011 the Company and Hydrocarbon Strategic Services SA entered into an
agreement relating to the Acquisition pursuant to which Hydrocarbon Strategic Services SA is
entitled to a finders fee with respect to the Acquisition in the sum of £1,113,000 of which
£163,000 is payable in cash on Admission and £950,000 to be satisfied by the issue of
1,881,188 Ordinary Shares at a price of 50.5p per Ordinary Share on completion of the
Acquisition.

7.1.14 On 28 January 2011, the Company entered into a share purchase agreement with Nexen
Petroleum U.K. Limited (“Nexen Petroleum”) relating to the sale and purchase of the whole
issued share capital of Nexen Exploration U.K. Limited (“Nexen Exploration”). The agreement
completed on 10 March 2011, on which date Nexen Exploration became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The consideration paid by the Company to Nexen Petroleum was
the allotment and issue of 39,714,290 ordinary shares in the capital of the Company (the
“Nexen Shares”) (having an aggregate value of £29.2 million).

7.1.15 On 11 February 2011, the Company entered into a placing agreement (the “2011 Placing
Agreement”) with RBS Hoare Govett pursuant to which RBS Hoare Govett procured placees
for 27,500,000 new Ordinary Shares (the “2011 Placing Shares”) in the capital of the
Company. The fees which were payable by the Company to RBS Hoare Govett consisted of
(i) a commission equal to 2.5 per cent. of the aggregate value of the 2011 Placing Shares at
the placing price; and (ii) a fee equal to 0.5 per cent. of the aggregate value of the 2011
Placing Shares at the placing price, payable at the discretion of the Company. The Company
also agreed to bear all expenses of and incidental to the 2011 Placing Agreement. The 2011
Placing Agreement also contained (i) customary warranties, inter alia, as to the accuracy of
information prepared by the Company and provided in relation to the placing and
(ii) indemnities to RBS Hoare Govett which were not unusual in the type of transaction.

7.1.16 On 19 August 2010, the Company entered into an agreement with RBS Hoare Govett Limited
(“RBS Hoare Govett”) pursuant to which (i) RBS Hoare Govett agreed to act as nominated
adviser to the Company pursuant to rule 1 of the AIM Rules for Companies; and (ii) RBS
Hoare Govett agreed to act as broker to the Company pursuant to rule 35 of the AIM Rules for
Companies. The fees payable by the Company to RBS Hoare Govett under this agreement
are £50,000 (plus any applicable VAT) and the Company shall also reimburse RBS Hoare
Govett’s out of pocket expenses incurred in connection with the agreement. The Company has
given certain indemnities to RBS Hoare Govett which are not unusual in this type of
transaction. The agreement shall continue unless and until terminated by either party by
written notice.

7.1.17 On 25 November 2009, the Company entered into a placing agreement (the “November 2009
Placing Agreement”) with Cenkos and Levine Capital Management Limited (“LCM”) pursuant
to which Cenkos procured placees for 22,916,667 new ordinary shares in the capital of the
Company and LCM agreed to underwrite the entire placing. The fees which were payable by
the Company to Cenkos consisted of commissions of £859,376, in aggregate. The Company
also agreed to bear Cenkos’ out-of-pocket costs, charges and expenses and certain other
costs of LCM, as set out in the November 2009 Placing Agreement. The November 2009
Placing Agreement also contained (i) customary warranties to each of Cenkos and LCM, inter
alia, as to the accuracy of information prepared by the Company and provided in relation to
the placing and (ii) indemnities to Cenkos and LCM which were not unusual in the type of
transaction.

7.1.18 In connection with the acquisition of Nexen Exploration UK Limited, the Company entered into
a lock-up agreement with Nexen Petroleum and RBS Hoare Govett dated 10 March 2011
pursuant to which Nexen Petroleum has undertaken, provided that the Nexen Shares
represent 20 per cent. or more of the issued share capital of the Company, and subject to
certain limited exceptions, including a sale in the event of an offer for the entire issued share
capital of the Company, not to dispose of any of the Nexen Shares until 10 December 2011
(such period being the “Lock-up Period”). During the Lock-up Period, Nexen Petroleum may
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not dispose of some or all of the Nexen Shares without the prior written consent of the
Company. Between the expiry of the Lock-up Period and 10 November 2012 if the Nexen
Shares represent 20 per cent. or more of the issued share capital of the Company, Nexen
Petroleum may dispose of some or all of the Nexen Shares provided that it gives notice of its
intention to effect a disposal to the Company and RBS Hoare Govett. Such disposal will be
required to be effected in accordance with the reasonable requirements of the Company and
RBS Hoare Govett, including: (i) that the disposal is effected through RBS Hoare Govett; and
(ii) a delay in the disposal of up to 5 business days from the date upon which Nexen
Petroleum first notifies the Company and RBS Hoare Govett of its intention to effect a disposal
of Nexen Shares.

7.2 The following contracts (not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business)
have been entered into by IGas Subsidiaries (i) within the two years immediately preceding
the date of this document and are, or may be, material or (ii) at any time and contain
provisions under which any member of the IGas Group has an obligation or entitlement which
is material to the IGas Group at the date of this document:

7.2.1 On 5 August 2009 and 24 November 2009 the IGas Group entered into farm-up agreements
with Nexen (the “Farm-up Agreements”), under which the Group has agreed to meet 100% of
certain costs incurred in relation to certain licences, thereby discharging what, but for these
agreements, would have been Nexen’s share of such licence costs. The IGas Group’s
commitment is for up to £2 million of gross costs in the case of the agreement of 5 August
2009 and for £5 million of gross costs in the case of the agreement of 24 November 2009. In
return the IGas Group’s interest in the Swallowcroft licences in Staffordshire (excluding Pedl
78-2) rose from 20% to 35%, in the Point of Ayr licences from 50% to 75% and in Northwest
licences from 20% to 35%.

7.2.2 In connection with the acquisition by the Company of Nexen Exploration UK Limited, on
10 March 2011, Island Gas Limited entered into a services agreement with Nexen Petroleum
(the “Nexen Services Agreement”), whereby Nexen provides the services of two consultants to
Island Gas Limited until 10 November 2011 and 10 March 2012, respectively. Island Gas
Limited pays fees to Nexen Petroleum equivalent to the remuneration paid by Nexen
Petroleum to the consultants. The Nexen Services Agreement may be terminated by either
party if the other commit a material or persistent breach of its obligations under the
agreement, passes a resolution for winding up, makes a voluntary arrangement with its
creditors, or ceases to carry on business.

7.3 Related party transactions (which for these purposes are as set out in the standards adopted
according to the Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002) that members of the Group have entered into
during the three financial years ended 31 December 2008, 31 December 2009 and
31 December 2010 and up to the date of this document are set out at Notes 6, 12 and 21 of
the Company’s Annual Report and Accounts 2008; Notes 5,12 and 18 of the Company’s
Annual Report and Accounts 2009; and Notes 5 and 19 in relation to the Company’s Annual
Report and Accounts 2010 as referred to in Part 5 of this document.

8. Working capital

The Directors are of the opinion having made due and careful enquiry, that the working capital
available to the Enlarged Group will be sufficient for its present requirements, that is for at least 12
months from the date of Admission.

9. Litigation

There are no governmental, legal or arbitration proceedings, active, pending or threatened against, or
being brought by, the Company or any of the IGas Subsidiaries, which may have or have had during
the 12 months preceding the date of this document a significant effect on the Company’s financial
position or profitability.

10. Overseas Securities Laws

10.1 General

It is the responsibility of any person (including, without limitation, nominees and trustees)
outside the United Kingdom to satisfy himself as to the full observance of the laws of the
relevant jurisdiction in connection therewith, including the obtaining of any governmental or
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other consents which may be required, the compliance with other necessary formalities and
the payment of any issue, transfer or other taxes due in such jurisdiction. The comments set

out in this paragraph are intended as a general guide only and anyone who is in doubt

as to his position should consult his professional adviser without delay.

Persons receiving a copy of this document should not distribute or send it into any jurisdiction
where to do so would or might contravene local securities laws or regulations.

The attention of persons with registered addresses in the United States or any of Australia,
Canada, Japan or the Republic of Ireland is drawn to paragraphs 10.2 below.

10.2 United States, Australia, Canada, Japan, South Africa, New Zealand and the Republic of

Ireland

Due to restrictions under the securities laws of the United States, Australia, Canada, Japan,
South Africa and the Republic of Ireland (the “Excluded Territories”), Ordinary Shares in the
Company may not be offered, sold or otherwise transferred in or into any Excluded Territory or
in any other jurisdiction where such distribution, offer or solicitation would be unlawful.

11. Other information

11.1 The total costs and expenses payable by the Company in connection with or incidental to the
Admission including London Stock Exchange fees, printing and advertising and distribution
costs, legal and accounting fees and expenses for procuring placees are estimated to amount
to approximately £3.8 million (including any irrecoverable VAT).

11.2 Save as disclosed in this document, no person (excluding professional advisers otherwise
disclosed in this document and trade suppliers) has:

(a) received directly or indirectly from the Company within twelve months preceding the
Company’s application for Admission; or

(b) entered into contractual arrangements for (not otherwise disclosed in this document)
to receive, directly or indirectly, from the Company on or after Admission any of the
following:

(i) fees totalling £10,000 or more; or

(ii) securities in the Company with a value of £10,000 or more calculated by
reference to the current mid-market price of the Ordinary Shares; or

(iii) any other benefit with a value of £10,000 or more at the date of Admission.

11.3 Save for the Acquisition and as disclosed in this document, there has been no significant
change in the trading or financial position of the IGas Group since the last published unaudited
condensed set of financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2011 of the
Company.

11.4 Save for the Acquisition and as disclosed in this document, there has been no significant
change in the trading or financial position of the Star Group since 31 March 2011.

11.5 Save as disclosed in this document, the Directors are not aware of any exceptional factors
which have influenced the Company’s activities.

11.6 Ernst & Young LLP of 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF audited the group financial
statements of IGas Energy plc for the year ended 31 December 2010 included in Part 5 of this
document. Ernst & Young LLP is registered to carry out audit work for the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of England and Wales.

11.7 Save as disclosed in this document, there are no patents, licences, industrial, commercial or
financial contracts or new manufacturing processes which are material to the business or
profitability of the Company.

11.8 Save as disclosed in this document and in particular at paragraph 7.3 of Part 9 of this
document, there have been no related party transactions entered into by the Company prior to
the date of this document.

11.9 The Company’s accounting reference date has been changed from 31 December to 31 March.
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11.10 There has been no public takeover bid for the whole or any part of the share capital of the
Company or any member of the Star Group prior to the date of this document. There are no
mandatory takeover bids and/or squeeze out and sell out rules in relation to the Ordinary
Shares.

11.11 Save as disclosed in this document there are no exceptional factors which have influenced the
IGas Group’s activities.

11.12 There are no arrangements in place under which future dividends are to be waived or agreed
to be waived.

11.13 The Company operates within the natural gas market focusing on the production and
marketing of domestically sourced gas from unconventional sources such as CBM. The
company operates solely within the United Kingdom, with operations across the north west of
England and the North Wales coast.

The revenue in the audited Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 2010 related to
the supply of CBM services and expertise under management service contracts (£536
thousand), to the supply of electricity generation services and to sales of electricity associated
with CBM production (£120 thousand).

All Group revenue which represents turnover in the audited Annual Report and Accounts for
the year ended 2009 related to the supply of CBM services and expertise under management
service contracts (£828 thousand). £816 thousand of the Group’s revenue was derived from a
single customer.

All Group revenue which represents turnover in the audited Annual Report and Accounts for
the year ended 2008 related to the supply of CBM services and expertise under management
service contracts (£992 thousand).

11.14 Save as disclosed at Part 5 of this Admission document, the Directors are unaware of any
other principal investments in progress for the financial year ending 31 December 2010 and
the Company has not made any other firm commitment in respect of any other investments.

11.15 No financial information contained in this document is intended by the Company to represent
or constitute a forecast of profits by the Company nor to constitute publication of accounts by
it.

11.16 Save as disclosed in this Admission document, the Directors are unaware of any trends,
uncertainties, demands, commitments or events that are reasonably likely to have a material
effect on the Company’s prospects for the current financial year.

11.17 Senergy Group Limited has given and not withdrawn its written consent to the inclusion of its
report in the form set out in Part 4 of this document and the references to such reports in the
form and context in which they appear and Senergy, accepts responsibility for the report set
out in Part 4 of this document. To the best of the knowledge of Senergy (who have taken all
reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the information contained in the report set
out in Part 4 of this document is in accordance with the facts and contains no omission likely to
affect its import.

11.18 RBS Hoare Govett Limited has given and not withdrawn its written consent to the inclusion in
this document of references to its name in the form and context in which it appears.

11.19 John Blaymires, Chief Operating Officer of IGas, and a qualified person as defined in the
Guidance Note for Mining, Oil and Gas Companies, March 2006, of the London Stock
Exchange, has reviewed and approved the technical information contained in this document.
Mr Blaymires has more than 28 years relevant experience.

11.20 Where information in this document is indicated as having been sourced from a third party,
such information has been accurately reproduced and as far as the Company is aware from
information published by the relevant third parties, and no facts have been omitted from this
document which would render the information inaccurate or misleading.

12. Documents available for inspection

A copy of this Admission document is available at the Company’s website www.iglasplc.com.

Dated: 22 November 2011
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PART 10

DEFINITIONS

The following definitions apply throughout this document, unless the context requires otherwise:

“Acquisition” the proposed acquisition by the Company of the entire issued
share capital of Star pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement

“Acquisition Agreement” the conditional agreement between Petronas and IGas dated
16 September 2011 the terms of which are summarised in
paragraph 7.1.7 of Part 9

“Acquisition Price” £110,000,000

“Act” or “Companies Act” the Companies Act 2006

“Admission” the re-admission of the Ordinary Shares to trading on AIM
becoming effective in accordance with the AIM Rules for
Companies

“AIM” Alternative Investment Market, a market of the London Stock
Exchange

“AIM Rules for Companies” the rules for AIM companies issued by the London Stock
Exchange (as amended from time to time)

“AIM Rules for Nominated Advisers” the rules for nominated advisers issued by the London Stock
Exchange (as amended from time to time)

“Articles” the articles of association of the Company

“Board” the board of Directors of the Company, including a duly
constituted committee of such Directors

“Brent Crude Oil” a light sweet crude oil from the North Sea off the coast of
England between Norway and Denmark, which is a blend of oil
from 15 different oil fields

“CBM” Coal Bed Methane

“City Code” the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers as published by the
United Kingdom Takeover Panel from time to time

“Combined Code” the “Combined Code on Corporate Governance” published in
July 2003 by the Financial Reporting Council

“Company” or “IGas” IGas Energy plc, a company incorporated in England and
Wales with company number 4981279

“Completion” means completion of the Acquisition in accordance with the
terms of the Acquisition Agreement

“Conditions” the conditions to the Acquisition being (i) the passing of the
Resolutions at the General Meeting; (ii) Admission; and (iii) the
completion of the corporate reorganisation of Star Energy
Group Limited which includes obtaining certain regulatory
approvals in connection with the reorganisation

“CPR” the competent persons report drafted by Senergy dated
15 November 2011 and included at Part 4 of this document

“Credit Agreement” the senior secured facility agreement dated 21 November 2011
between Macquarie and the Company, the IGas Subsidiaries
and the Star Subsidiaries (excluding Larchford Limited and Star
Energy Oil UK Limited, a summary of which is set out in
paragraph 7.1.2 of Part 9 of this document

“CREST” the computerised settlement system (as defined in the CREST
Regulations) in the UK operated by Euroclear which facilitates
the transfer of title to shares in uncertificated form (as defined
in the CREST Regulations)
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“CREST Regulations” the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001 (SI 2001/3755)

“DECC” The Department for Energy and Climate Change

“Debentures” the security documents designated in paragraph 7.1.3 of Part 9
of this document

“Directors” the directors of the Company, whose names are set out on
page 4 of this document

“Enlarged Group” following Completion, the Company, the IGas Subsidiaries and
the Star Group to be acquired pursuant to the Acquisition

“Euroclear” Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited

“Financial Reporting Council” The Financial Reporting Council of the United Kingdom

“Form of Proxy” the form of proxy which is enclosed with this document for use
by holders of Ordinary Shares in connection with the General
Meeting

“FSA” the Financial Services Authority, acting through the United
Kingdom Listing Authority, in its capacity as the competent
authority for the purposes of Part VI of the FSMA

“FSMA” the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000

“Gas Offtake Agreeement” The agreement between Petronas and IGas dated
16 September 2011 pursuant to which IGas is obligated to sell
certain amounts of its gas production to Petronas

“General Meeting” or “GM” The general meeting of the Company to be held at 10:45 a.m.
on 9 December 2011, notice of which is attached to this
document

“Guarantee Agreement” The Agreement between IGas Energy plc, Island Gas Limited,
Island Gas Operations Limited, IGas Exploration UK Limited
and Macquarie Bank Limited dated 31 October 2011, the terms
of which are summarised in paragraph 7.1.5 of Part 9

“Hedging Agreements” the Security Agreement, Guarantee Agreement and ISDA
Master Agreement

“HMRC” Her Majesty’s Revenue & Customs

“IGas Group” IGas and the IGas Subsidiaries

“IGas Subsidiaries” Island Gas Limited, Island Gas Operations Limited and IGas
Exploration UK Limited

“ISDA Master Agreement” the agreement between IGas Energy plc and Macquarie Bank
Limited dated 31 October 2011, the terms of which are
summarised in paragraph 7.1.4 of Part 9

“Issued Share Capital” the entire issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
this document

“London Stock Exchange” London Stock Exchange plc

“Licence” any production, mining, methane, drainage, exploration,
appraisal or development licence as detailed more fully in
Part 11 of this Admission document.

“Macquarie” Macquarie Bank Limited

“Official List” the official list of the London Stock Exchange

“Oil Supply Agreements” the oil supply agreements between Saturn Weald Basin Limited
and Esso Petroleum Company Limited, and Saturn Oil & Gas
Limited and Conoco Phillips Limited.

“Ordinary Shares” Ordinary shares with a nominal value of 50 pence each in the
capital of the Company

“Petronas” Petronas International Corporation Limited
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“Resolution” or “Resolutions” all, or any of the resolutions set out in the Notice of General
Meeting attached to this document, as the context may require

“Security Agreement” the agreement between IGas Energy plc, Island Gas Limited,
Island Gas Operations Limited, IGas Exploration UK Limited
and Macquarie Bank Limited dated 31 October, 2011, the terms
of which are summarised in paragraph 7.1.6 of Part 9

“Star” Star Energy Group Limited, a company incorporated in England
and Wales with company number 5054503

“Star Group” Star, and the Star Subsidiaries being acquired pursuant to the
Acquisition

“Star Subsidiaries” Star Energy Limited, Star Energy (East Midlands) Limited, Star
Energy Oil & Gas Limited, Star Energy Oil UK Limited, Star
Energy Weald Basin Limited and the 33% interest in the issued
share capital of Larchford Limited

“Shareholders” the holders of Ordinary Shares of the Company

“Share Scheme“Share Schemes” together the IGas Energy plc Super Long Term Incentive Plan,
the 2011 LTIP and the IGas Energy plc Share Option Plan,
details of which are set out in paragraph 6 of Part 8

“Sterling” or “£” the legal currency of the UK

“Takeover Panel” the UK Panel on Takeovers and Mergers

“UK” the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland

“US” or “United States” the United States of America, its territories and possessions,
any state of the United States of America and the District of
Columbia

“Warrant Instrument” the warrant instrument to acquire up to 21,286,646 Ordinary
Shares at a price of 55.8p per Ordinary Share, the terms of
which are set out in paragraph 7.1.1 of Part 9 of this document

“Warrants” the warrants to be issued to Macquarie pursuant to the Warrant
Instrument

Unless otherwise stated, all times referred to in this document are references to the time in London.

All references to legislation in this document are to the legislation of England and Wales unless the
contrary is indicated. Any reference to any provision of any legislation shall include any amendment,
modification, re-enactment or extension thereof.

Words importing the singular shall include the plural and vice versa, and words importing the
masculine gender shall include the feminine or neutral gender.

For the purpose of this document, “subsidiary”, “subsidiary undertaking” and “undertaking” have the
meanings respectively given to them by the Companies Act and “associated undertaking” has the
meaning given to it by paragraph 19 of schedule 6 of the large and Medium-sized Companies and
Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (but ignoring for this purpose sub- paragraph 1(b)
thereof).

References to “£”, “sterling”, “p” and “pence” are to the lawful currency of the United Kingdom.
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PART 11

GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS

The following definitions apply throughout this document, unless the context requires otherwise

2C resources best estimate scenario of Contingent Resources (1C would be
low and 3C high)

boe Barrels of Oil Equivalent

boepd Barrels of Oil Equivalent per day

bopd Barrels of oil per day

Bscf Billions of standard cubic feet

CBM Coal Bed Methane

Conoco Conoco Phillips Limited

Contingent Resources Those quantities of petroleum estimated, as of a given date, to
be potentially recoverable from known accumulations by
application of development projects but which are not currently
considered to be commercially recoverable due to one or more
contingencies.

DECC The Department for Energy and Climate Change

Esso Esso Petroleum Company Limited

GIIP gas initially in place

LDZ Local distribution zone

Mcf: 1000 cubic feet

MMboe Millions of barrels of oil equivalent

mmcfd millions of cubic feet per day (of gas)

PEDL Petroleum Exploration and Development Licence

PRMS Petroleum Resources Management System

Probable Reserves are those additional Reserves which analysis of geoscience
and engineering data indicate are less likely to be recovered
than Proved Reserves but more certain to be recovered than
Possible Reserves. It is equally likely that actual remaining
quantities recovered will be greater than or less than the sum of
the estimated Proved plus Probable Reserves (2P). In this
context, when probabilistic methods are used, there should be
at least a 50% probability that the actual quantities recovered
will equal or exceed the 2P estimate.

Producing Related to development projects (eg wells and platforms):
Active facilities, currently involved in the extraction (production)
of hydrocarbons from discovered reservoirs.

Prospective Resources are those quantities of petroleum estimated, as of a given date,
to be potentially recoverable from undiscovered accumulations
by application of future development projects. Prospective
Resources have both an associated chance of discovery and a
chance of development. Prospective Resources are further
subdivided in accordance with the level of certainty associated
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with recoverable estimates assuming their discovery and
development and may be subclassified based on project
maturity

Proved plus Probable plus
Possible Reserves are those additional reserves which analysis of geo-science

and engineering data suggest are less likely to be recoverable
than Probable Reserves. The total quantities ultimately
recovered from the project have a low probability to exceed the
sum of Proved plus Probable plus Possible (3P) Reserves,
which is equivalent to the high estimate scenario. In this
context, when probabilistic methods are used, there should be
at least a 10% probability that the actual quantities recovered
will equal or exceed the 3P estimate.

Proved Reserves are those quantities of petroleum, which, by analysis of
geoscience and engineering data, can be estimated with
reasonable certainty to be commercially recoverable, from a
given date forward, from known reservoirs and under defined
economic conditions, operating methods, and government
regulations. If deterministic methods are used, the term
reasonable certainty is intended to express a high degree of
confidence that the quantities will be recovered. If probabilistic
methods are used, there should be at least a 90% probability
that the quantities actually recovered will equal or exceed the
estimate.

Proved plus Probable Reserves Probable Reserves are those additional Reserves which
analysis of geoscience and engineering data indicate are less
likely to be recovered than Proved Reserves but more certain
to be recovered than Possible Reserves. It is equally likely that
actual remaining quantities recovered will be greater than or
less than the sum of the estimated Proved plus Probable
Reserves (2P). In this context, when probabilistic methods are
used, there should be at least a 50% probability than the actual
quantities recovered will equal or exceed the 2P estimate.

Reserves are those quantities of petroleum anticipated to be
commercially recoverable by application of development
projects to known accumulations from a given date forward
under defined conditions. Reserves must further satisfy four
criteria: they must be discovered, recoverable, commercial, and
remaining (as of the evaluation date) based on the
development project(s) applied. Reserves are further
categorized in accordance with the level of certainty associated
with the estimates and may be sub-classified based on project
maturity and/or characterized by development and production
status

Stb/d Stock tank barrels per day

TCF Trillion Cubic Feet

Therms 1 Therm = 100 cubic feet
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NOTE ON LICENCE TYPES

PRODUCTION LICENCES

All modern production Licences run for three successive periods, or “Terms”:

• The initial term; after which, if the agreed work programme has been completed and if a minimum
amount of acreage has been relinquished, the Licence may continue into a second term;

• The second term; after which, if a development plan has been approved and if all of the acreage
outside that development has been relinquished, the Licence may continue into a third term; and

• The third term; which runs for an extended period to allow production.

The terms are of different lengths according to the licence type, and there is an escalating annual
rental.

While each term is commonly associated with a particular phase of a field’s life cycle, the licence gives
the same rights from beginning to end; so nothing in the licence would bar production during the initial
term, for example, if the Licensee were to move that fast.

All Seaward Production Licences have the prefix “P” (e.g. P001) whereas Landward Production
Licences have a range of prefixes (see below).

The Traditional Licence

This is the familiar Seaward Production Licence that has been in use since offshore licensing began.
Most of the approximately 1700 licences issued since seaward licensing began have been Traditional
Licences.

An applicant must prove technical/environmental competence and financial capacity before being
offered a Traditional Licence.

• The initial term lasts for four years.

• The second term lasts for four years.

• The third term lasts for 18 years.

• The mandatory relinquishment at the end of the initial term is of 50%.

The Promote Licence

This is a variant of the Seaward Production Licence that is designed to allow small and start-up
companies to get a production licence first and attract the necessary operating and financial capacity
later. The difference shows itself more in the application process than in the licence itself, except that
the annual rental rate on a Promote Licence is reduced by 90% for two years. The licence will be
drafted so as to require financial technical and environmental capacity to be in place, and a firm drilling
(or agreed equivalent equally substantive activity) commitment to have been made, by the end of the
second year, or the licence will expire at that time.

Applicants need not prove technical/ environmental competence or financial capacity before award but
they must do so within two years of the licence’s start date if they are to keep the licence, and they will
not be permitted to operate until they have done so.

• The initial term lasts for four years.

• The second term lasts for four years.

• The third term lasts for 18 years.

• The mandatory relinquishment at the end of the initial term is of 50%.

The Petroleum Exploration and Development Licence

This is the full name of the Landward Production Licence. It is similar in broad terms to the “Traditional”
Seaward Production Licence, although for historical and practical reasons there are many differences
in detail.

Applicants must prove technical competence, awareness of environmental issues and financial
capacity before being offered a PEDL.

• The initial term lasts for six years.

• The second term lasts for five years.
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• The third term lasts for 20 years. Applicants must prove technical, environmental and financial
capacity.

• The mandatory relinquishment at the end of the initial term is of 50%.

Supplementary Seismic Survey Licences

If the operator of a landward Production Licence wants to conduct a seismic survey right up to the
boundary of his licensed area, he may have to operate his survey equipment a little way outside it. If
that means working in unlicensed acreage, he can seek a Supplementary Seismic Survey Licence
(SSSL), which lasts for one year and covers a kilometre-wide strip adjacent to the existing Production
Licence. A SSSL will only be issued to the operator of the Production Licence, not to its partners.
DECC needs to be told the coordinates of the additional area. Any new Production Licence that is
subsequently issued over the same acreage will automatically terminate the SSSL. If there is only a
partial overlap, the SSSL will cease to operate on that overlap .

(Seaward) Exploration Licences

A company that does not need rights to drill or produce can apply instead for a Seaward Exploration
Licence. This is cheaper than a Production Licence and it covers all acreage outside those areas
covered at any given moment by Production Licences. It is particularly aimed at seismic contractors
who wish to gather data to sell it, rather than to exploit geological resources themselves. They cost a
flat rate of £2,000 per year.

An Exploration Licence covers non-intrusive exploration whether it is carried out for the sake of
hydrocarbon production, gas storage or Carbon Capture and Sequestration, or for any combination of
them.

If the holder of an Exploration Licence wants to explore acreage covered by a Petroleum Licence, it will
need the agreement of the holder of the Production Licence.

Older Types of Onshore Licence

Until 1996, the Government issued a sequence of separate licences for each stage of an onshore
field’s life: an Exploration Licence, an Appraisal Licence, a Development Licence and a Production
Licence. The Government introduced PEDLs at the Eighth Licensing Round (in 1996) to reduce the
bureaucratic burden of issuing a series of Licences. DECC no longer issues any licences of these
types but a number of them, and of even older licences, are still in force.

Mining Licences (ML)

Dating from the 1950s, these are the oldest licences still in force.

Exploration Licences (XL or EXL), Production Licences (PL), Appraisal Licences (AL) and

Development Licences (DL)

The Petroleum (Production) (Landward Areas) Regulations 1984 replaced the previous system of two
types of licence (Exploration Licences (XL) and Production Licences (PL)), with three: a new type of
Exploration Licence (EXL), Appraisal Licences (AL) and Development Licences (DL). The Department
of Energy issued EXLs from the First Onshore Licensing Round (1986) until the Sixth (1992). Each
Exploration Licence (EXL) ran for six years and carried an agreed Work Programme (just like the
six-year Initial Term of a modem PEDL). The five-year Appraisal Licence gave the Licensee time to
prepare a Development Programme and get long-term planning permission. Only if both of those were
in place would the Department consider issuing a 20-year Development Licence. Those EXLs that
have not expired or been relinquished by now have all been converted to the same terms as a PEDL,
but their names will not have been changed so they are still called – for instance – EXL141 or EXL169.

Methane Drainage Licences (MDL)

Many coalmines vent methane to the atmosphere, or else accumulate methane that must be dealt with
by the mine-owner. Either way, the methane can create a health & safety issue and (as a very powerful
greenhouse gas) an environmental problem.

To capture the drained methane requires a Licence under the Petroleum Act 1998, but safety is the
Government’s first priority and to regularise methane drainage we are generally prepared to issue a
Methane Drainage Licence (MDL) for a nominal fee.
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An MDL grants permission to get natural gas “in the course of operations for making and keeping safe
mines whether or not disused”. It grants no exclusive rights, so it can overlap geographically with one
or more PEDLs. MDLs generally cover much smaller areas than PEDLs – typically each covers one
mine, although the Coal Authority holds a licence that covers the whole country.

Licence rentals

All Production Licences carry a requirement for an annual rental, proportional to the area that the
licence covers at each anniversary. In each case, the rental starts at a low rate (per square kilometre)
and escalates to a maximum rate after several years (typically escalating over a period between 10
and 20 years).

The purpose of the rental is to incentivise the surrender of acreage that the licensee is not interested
in.

The rental is payable for the acreage held at the licence anniversary, so DECC will not make pro rata
refunds where the Licensee relinquishes the licence, or surrenders acreage, between anniversaries.

Promote and Frontier Licences start off with two to three years at a very low rate compared to
Traditional Licences (£151km2 instead of £150km2).

Flaring and venting of methane

Under the Energy Act 1976, as amended by the Gas Act 1986, the Secretary of State’s consent is
required to dispose of natural gas – (whether at source or elsewhere) by flaring or by releasing it
unignited into the atmosphere.
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PART 12

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETING

IGAS ENERGY PLC

(Incorporated and registered in England and Wales with Registered No. 04981279)

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a general meeting of IGas Energy plc (the “Company”) will be held at
the offices of Morrison & Foerster (UK) LLP, CityPoint, One Ropemaker Street, London EC2Y 9AW at
10:45 a.m. on 9 December 2011 for the purposes of considering and, if thought fit, passing the
following Resolutions of which Resolutions 1 and 2 will be proposed as ordinary resolutions and
Resolution 3 will be proposed as a special resolution.

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

Resolution 1:

Approval of Aquisition:

THAT subject to and conditional upon the passing of Resolution 2 the acquisition by the Company of
the entire issued share capital of Star Energy Group Limited in accordance with the terms of an
agreement summarised in paragraph 7.1.7 of Part 9 of the admission document dated 22 November
2011 to which this notice is attached, and a copy of which is produced to the meeting and initialled by
the Chairman for the purposes of identification only, be and is hereby approved and that the Directors
be and are hereby authorised to complete such agreement, subject to such immaterial modifications as
the Directors may deem appropriate, and to execute, sign and do all such other documents, deeds,
acts or things as may be necessary or desirable to complete the aforesaid transaction.

Resolution 2:

Approval of Increase in Borrowing Limit under article 43.2 of the Articles of Association and

Approval of the Credit Agreement:

THAT, pursuant to the provisions of article 43.2 of the Articles of Association of the Company, the
restriction on the borrowing powers of the Company be increased to an amount equal to 5 times the
Adjusted Capital and Reserves (as defined in article 43.3 of the Articles of Association of the
Company) and that the entry by the Company into the Credit Agreement summarised in paragraph
7.1.2 of Part 9 of the admission document dated 22 November 2011 to which this notice is attached, a
copy of which is produced to the meeting and initialled by the Chairman for the purposes of
identification only, and the borrowing under such agreement of up to $150,000,000 be and is hereby
approved and that the Directors be and are hereby authorised to complete such agreement, subject to
such immaterial modifications as the Directors may deem appropriate, and to execute, sign and do all
such other documents, deeds, acts or things as may be necessary or desirable to complete the
aforesaid transaction.

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

Resolution 3:

To disapply statutory pre-emption rights:

(3) That the Directors are empowered pursuant to section 570 of the 2006 Act to allot equity
securities (as defined by section 560 of the 2006 Act) for cash pursuant to the authority
previously conferred at the last annual general meeting as if section 561 of the 2006 Act did not
apply to any such allotment. This power:

(a) expires 15 months after the date of the passing of this Resolution or at the conclusion of the
next annual general meeting of the Company following the passing of this Resolution,
whichever occurs first (unless previously revoked or varied from time to time by special

288



resolution) but so that the Company may before such expiry, revocation or variation make
an offer or agreement which would or might require equity securities to be allotted after
such expiry, revocation or variation and the Directors may allot equity securities in
pursuance of such offer or agreement as if such power had not expired or been revoked or
varied; and

(b) is limited to save in the case of an allotment in connection with the company’s long term
incentive plans:

(i) the allotment of relevant equity securities pursuant to a rights issue, open offer, scrip
dividend scheme or other pre-emptive offer or scheme, which is in each case in
favour of holders of ordinary shares and any other persons who are entitled to
participate in such issue, offer or scheme where the equity securities offered to each
such holder and other person are proportionate (as nearly as may be) to the
respective numbers of ordinary shares held or deemed to be held by them for the
purposes of their inclusion in such issue, offer or scheme on the record date
applicable thereto, but subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the
Directors may deem fit or expedient to deal with:

(aa) fractional entitlements;

(bb) legal or practical problems under the laws of any overseas territory;

(cc) the requirements of any regulatory body or stock exchange in any territory;

(dd) directions from any holders of ordinary shares or other persons to deal in some
other manner with their respective entitlements; or

(ee) any other matter whatever, which the Directors consider to require such
exclusions or other arrangements with the ability for the Directors to allot
relevant equity securities not taken up, to any person as they may think fit;

(ii) the allotment of relevant equity securities for cash otherwise than pursuant to sub-
paragraph (i) up to an aggregate maximum nominal amount of £12,024,279, which
represents 15 per cent. of presently issued shares.

(c) is limited, in the case of an allotment in connection with the company’s long term incentive
plans, to the allotment of relevant equity securities for cash up to an aggregate maximum
nominal amount of £2,672,062.

22 November 2011

Registered Office: By Order of the Board

7 Down Street MoFo Secretaries Limited
London Company Secretary
W1J 8AJ

Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint one or more proxies to attend
and, on a poll, vote instead of him. A proxy need not also be a member. A Form of Proxy is
enclosed.

2. The Form of Proxy, if used, and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is
signed or a certified copy of such power or authority most be lodged at Computershare Investor
Services PLC at The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristol BS99 6ZY, or, (during normal business
hours) by hand, to Computershare Investor Services PLC at The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road,
Bristol BS99 6ZY not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the meeting.

3. Completing and returning a Form of Proxy will not preclude a member from attending in person at
the meeting and voting should he or she wish to do so.
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4. The Form of the Proxy must be signed and dated by the shareholder or his/her attorney duly
authorised in writing, if the shareholder is a company, it may execute under its common seal, by
the signature of a director and its secretary or two directors or other authorised signatories in the
name of the company or by the signature of a duly authorised officer or attorney. In the case of
joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or in proxy, will be
accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders and for this purpose seniority will
be determined by the order in which the names stand in the register of members in respect to the
joint holding. Names of all joint holders should be stated.

5. Members who hold Ordinary Shares in the Company in uncertificated form must have been
entered on the Company’s register of members by 6.00 p.m. on 7 December 2011 in order to be
entitled to attend and vote at the meeting. Such members may only vote at the meeting in respect
of Ordinary Shares in the Company held at the time, if the meeting is adjourned, the time by
which a person must be entered on the register of members in order to have the right to attend or
vote at the adjourned meeting is 48 hours before the date fixed for the adjourned meeting.
Changes to entries on the register of members after such times shall be disregarded in
determining the rights of any person to attend or vote at the meeting.

6. In the absence of instructions, the person appointed proxy may vote or abstain from voting as he
or she thinks fit on the Resolutions and, unless instructed otherwise, the person appointed proxy
may also vote or abstain from voting as he or she thinks fit on any other business (including
amendments to any Resolution) which may properly come before the meeting.

7. If you wish to appoint as your proxy someone other than the Chairman of the meeting, cross out
the words “the Chairman of the meeting’ in the Form of Proxy and write on the dotted line the full
name and address of your proxy. The change should be initialled.

8. If two or more valid Forms of Proxy are delivered in respect of the same Ordinary Share, the one
which was delivered last (regardless of its date or the date of its execution) will be valid, to the
exclusion of any ones previously delivered.
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